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mittee on Railways, Canals and Telegraph Lines:—

Adamson,
Applewhaite,
Beaudry,
Bertrand,
Beyerstein,
Bonnier,
Bourget,
Breithaupt,
Cannon,
Carter,
Chevrier,
Clarke,
Conacher,
Darroch,
Dewar,
Eudes,
Ferguson,
Follwell,
Fulton,
Garland,
Gauthier (Portneuf),

Attest.

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

Fripay, 16th February, 1951.
Resolved,— That the following Members do compose the Standing Com-

Messrs.

Gillis,
Gourd (Chapleau),
Green,
Harkness,
Harrison,
Hatfield,
Healy,
Herridge,
Higgins,
Hodgson,
James,
Lafontaine,
Lennard,
Macdonald (Edmonton

East),
MacNaught,
Maybank,
MecCulloeh,
MecGregor,
Melvor,
Mott,

(Quorum 20)

Murphy,

Murray (Cartboo),

Mutch,

Noseworthy,

Pouliot,

Richard (St. Maurice-
Lafleche),

Riley,

Robinson,

Rooney,

Ross (Hamilton East),

Shaw,

Smith (Queens-
Shelburne),

Stuart (Charlotte),

Thatcher,

Thomas,

Thomson,

Weaver,

Whiteside,

Whitman—60.

LEON J. RAYMOND,

Clerk of the House.

Ordered,—That the Standing Committee on Railways, Canals and Tele-
graph Lines be empowered to examine and inquire into all such matters and
things as may be referred to them by the House; and to report from time to time
their observations and opinions thereon, with power to send for persons, papers

and records.
Attest.

Attest.

81588—13

LEON J. RAYMOND,

Clerk of the House.

Tuespay, February 27, 1951.

Ordered —That the following B_ill be referred to the said Committee:—

Bill No. 75 (Letter F of the Senate), intituled: “An Act to incorporate
Trans-Canada Pipe Lines Limited”.

E. R. HOPKINS,

for Clerk of the House.
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Ordered—That the said Committee be authorized to sit while the House
is sitting. :

Tuespay, 6th March, 1951.

Ordered,—That the quorum of the said Committee be reduced from 20 to
12 members, and that in relation thereto Standing Order 63 (1) (b) be suspended.

Ordered,—That the said Committee be empowered to print, from day to day
800 copies in English and 200 copies in French of its minutes of proceedings and
evidence, and that Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

Attest.
LEON J. RAYMOND,

Clerk of the House.



RAILWAYS, CANALS AND TELEGRAPH LINES 3

REPORT TO THE HOUSE

Tuespay, March 6, 1951.

The Standing Committee on Railways, Canals and Telegraph Lines begs
leave to present the following as a

FirsT REPORT
‘Your Committee recommends:
1. That it be authorized to sit while the House is sitting;

2. That its quorum be reduced from 20 to 12 members, and that in relation
thereto Standing Order 63 (1) (b) be suspended;

3. That it be empowered to print, from day to day, 800 copies in English and
200 copies in French of its minutes of proceedings and evidence, and
that Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

L. O. BREITHAUPT,
Chairman.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

House or Commons, Room 262,
Tuespay, March 6, 1951.

The Standing Committee on Railways, Canals and Telegraph Lines met at
eleven o’clock a.m. this day. Mr. L. O. Breithaupt, Chairman, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Applewhaite, Beyerstein, Bonnier, Carter,
Conacher, Darroch, Ferguson, Follwell, Garland, Gauthier (Portneuf), Gillis,
Green, Harkness, Harrison, Herridge, Hodgson, James, Lafontaine, Lennard,
Macdonald (Edmonton East), MacNaught, McCulloch, Mott, Murphy, Murray,
(Cariboo), Noseworthy, Pouliot, Richard (St. Maurice-Lafleche), Riley, Rooney,
Shaw, Smith (Queens-Shelburne), Thomas, Thomson, Weaver, Whiteside.

In attendance: Mr. J. Decore, M.P.; Mr. John Ross Tolmie, Parliamentary
Agent; Mr. Frank A. Schultz, Vice-President, Canadian Delhi Oil Ltd., Calgary,
Alberta; Mr. Floyd Warterfield, Pipe Line Engineer, of the Oklahoma Contrac-
ting ‘Corporation, Dallas, Texas; Mr. George Shattuck, of the H. K. Ferguson
Company Ltd., Marketing Engineers, Washington, D.C.; ‘and Mr. Morris
Natleson, of Lehman Brothers, Bankers, New York City, N.Y.

On motion of Mr. Riley:

Resolved—That the Committee recommend that its quorum be reduced from
20 to 12 members.

On motion of Mr. Applewhaite: f

Resolved.—That the Committee recommend that it be granted leave to sit
while the House is sitting. '

On motion of Mr. Herridge:

Resolved: That the Committee recommend that it be empowered to print,
from day to day, 800 copies in English and 200 copies in French of its minutes
of proceedings and evidence.

On motion of Mr. Green:

Resolved —That Mr. McCulloch be Vice-Chairman of the Committee.

The Committee commenced consideration of Bill No. 75 (Letter F of the
Senate), An Act to incorporate Trans-Canada Pipe Lines Limited.

Mr. Decore, M.P., sponsor of the bill, addressed the Committee and intro-
duced Mr. J. R. Tolmie, Parliamentary Agent for the Petitioners.

Mr. Tolmie was called, explained the purposes of the Bill and was questioned.

Messrs. Schultz, Warterfield, Shattuck and Natleson were called and heard
regarding the project contemplated in the Bill; its practicability from a construc-
tion and engineering point of view; potential markets in the area to be served,
-and the proposed methods of financing the undertaking.

Mr. Schultz undertook to furnish the Committee with copies of a map of the
route of the proposed pipe line as far East as Fort William, Ontario, and the
route presently under consideration from Fort William to Montreal.

At the request of Mr. Gillis, it was agreed that Mr. W. E. Uren, Chairman,
Dominion Coal Board, be called before the Committee at its next meeting.

5
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It was also agreed that arrangements be made. for Mr W J Matthewis,
ks Dzrector, Administration and Legal Services, Department of Transport, to tbe in
attendance at the next meeting. i

At 12.55 o’clock p.m. the Committee admume& until Wednesday, Mavch 7,

A

A

s ; M eﬂeven o’clock a.m.

oo Red .'G’RATRIX,
Committee Clerk.




MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or CoMMONS,
Mareh 6, 1951.

The Standing Committee on Railways, Canals and Telegraphs met this day
at 11.00 a.m. The Chairman, Mr. L. O. Brelthaupt presided.

Tuae CuamrMAN: Well, gentlemen, we have a quorum so we can proceed
with the business of the commlttee The first item would be, if you so desire,
to pass a motion to reduce the quorum. The usual quorum is 20 but last year
I believe we had 12. What is your wish in this connection?:

Mg. RiLey: I move we reduce it to 12.
Mgr. McCuLrocu: I second.
Carried.

Tue CumamMman: We should also have a motion to sit while the House is
sitting. The committee will likely have a good deal before it this year.

Mg. AppLEWHAITE: I would so move.

Mg. CArTER: I second.

Carried.

Tue CuamMman: In connection with the printing of the evidence is it your
wish that it be printed? If so, would it be in order to print 800 copies in
English and 200 copies in French? Judging by experience in past years that is
about the way the demand would run.

Mgr. MurpHy: The meetings would be a'lot shorter if we did not print at all.

Mg. Herripge: I would move that we print the numbers as suggested by
the chairman.

Mg. CarteEr: I second.

Carried.

, Tuae Cuamrman: I think that it would be desirable to appoint a vice chair-
man as we did last year. Mr. Henry McCulloch discharged those duties very
well then.

Mg. Green: I would so move.
Mg. Weaver: I second.
Carried.

Tae Caamrman: Mr. McCulloch, T congratulate you on your election; a
popular choice.

The next thing, then, having disposed of the preliminaries, is to get down to
the business of the day and the reference of the House, that Bill 75, Letter F
of the Senate, an act to incorporate Trans-Canada Plpe Lines Lumted be
considered. Mr. Decore, the sponsor of the bill is here. He is not a member of
the committee but it is hls right and privilege to introduce the subject matter
of this bill. Would someone move that he be heard?

Mg. McCurroca: I so move.

Agreed.

Mg. Decore: Mr. Chairman, I would just® direct your attention to Mr.
Tolmie who is acting as agent for the applicants-and who will give you an’
explanation of the general outline of the bill. Mr. Tolmie is here, together with
a number of witnesses who will be prepared to submit evidence on behalf of this
proposed company.

7



8 : STANDING COMMITTEE

If you will call on him the committee will hear such evidence as he has
to offer. I think that is all I have to say at this time.

Tae Caammax: If it is the wish of the committee I would call on Mr.
Tolmie to come forward and outline the bill in general. Is that your pleasure?

Agreed.

Would you come forward, Mr. Tolmie? I would ask you to raise your voice
go that everyone can hear what you have to say.

Mg. ToLmie: Mr. Chairman and gentlemen: As Mr. Decore explained in
the House on second reading, this is an application to incorporate Trans-Canada
Pipe Lines Limited, as founded and drawn up in striet accordance with the Pipe
Lines Act which parliament passed in 1949.

If you have read the bill you have seen that it accords with the standard
form of pipe line bills which the law officers of the Crown, of the Senate and
House of Commons, the Department of Transport, the Board of Transport Com-
missioners, and I believe the Department of Justice, worked out in conjunction
with the first application made to parliament. It is pretty well a standard
form. T understand that the law clerk of the Senate and the law clerk of the
House of Commons have passed this bill as to form, and there is no question
about that.

The project, Mr. Chairman, as all members probably know by now, is to
build a gas pipe line from Alberta east as far as Montreal, and w1th the
possibility and the hope that it can be extended further east from Montreal at
a later stage when the capacity is fully utilized. The present project is founded
upon a survey of the route from Princess, Alberta, generally speaking following
the main line of the Canadian Pacific Railway to Winnipeg, and then across the
Great Shield touching on Port Arthur and Fort William. There is a possible
alternative route from Fort William via the Canadian National Railway but
that survey has yet to be made in detail because the engineer of the Oklahoma
Engineering Company—who is here by the way—after having made a survey
of the Canadian Pacific Railway Line was closed out by weather and found it
impossible late last fall to complete the Canadian National Railway alternative.

As T said, the whole conception of the line is that it will follow one or the
other of the main lines of the railways into the populated areas of Ontario and
along the Canadian National Railway route from Toronto to Montreal. The
relative ruggedness of the terrain between Kenora and Sudbury has given some
people the idea that this project is a little bit difficult, or even impossible, and
for that reason we have today the engineer who made the survey on behalf of
his company. I think that he will be able to give you some enhgh’oemng com-
ments on the type of country that these pipe line builders have met in other
countries and that the Shield country of Canada is not as formidable as we
have been led to believe, largely because of going over it by train and ’plane.

The line is to be a 30-i-nch line from Alberta through to Toronto, and then
a smaller line from Toronto to Montreal—24 inches—with laterals of varying
sizes off the main line to serve communities on either side of the pipe line within
economic reach.

Now, we have with us Mr. Shattuck of the H. K. Ferguson Engineering
Company Limited who has done, in conjunction with a group of marketing
engineers, a survey of the marketing area to be served. It is roughly a 20 mile
strip, 10 miles on either side of the main line, with occasional laterals going

further. He has made an analysis of the market in that avea which, by the way,

includes about 62 per cent of the urban population in the four provinces across
which the pipe line goes. That 62 per cent of the urban population, namely 133

communities, represents a total of over 3,600,000 people, so that it is quite a

substantial marketing area. Mr. Shattuck will tell you how he has proceeded
to analyze the fuel consumption possibilities in that area.
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We also have with us Mr. Frank Schultz, vice president of the parent com-
pany, Delhi Oil Company of Texas, and of Canadian Delhi Oil Company Lim-
ited of Alberta, which companies have been carrying on this work up to now.
They have spent a considerable amount of money not only in surveys l}uh in
active gas exploration in Alberta and they have had rather phenomenal suc-
cess in discovering new gas fields, in the time they have been operating—since
June or July of last year. This company has proceeded on the basic belief
that they must show and demonstrate, not only to Canada, but particularly to
Alberta, that there is gas there. That is I think in accordance with the policy
of the Alberta government as recently announced—that gas companies seeking
the right to export gas should show an aggressive attitude with regard to explora-
tion and discover fields that possibly everybody assumes are there but have
not been discovered and have not been sought after because there was no market
in sight for the gas.

Finally we have a representative, & partner, of the banking firm of Lehman
Brothers, New York, who have followed this project from its inception and who
have indicated a willingness to organize an underwriting group to sponsor the
underwriting of the necessary funds. The funds to be raised are very con-
siderable, estimated at $250 million, and it is a very heavy financial commit-
ment to make.

On the basis of the work done to date and the discoveries being uncovered
by Canadian Delhi of Alberta, this firm believes, and all those behind it, that
this project is economically sound and can be organized and built within a
reasonable time.

It may be that the steel shortage—I think that was raised in the Senate—
may cause a delay at the present time. We are no better off in that respeet
than many other projects in the country. On the other hand we all trust that the
steel shortage, and also ‘the international picture that gives rise to it, is not a
permanent situation. By the time that the three bodies who have to pass on
this—parliament, the Alberta Conservation Board, and finally the Board of
Transport Commissioners who will have to licence and authorize the building of
a line over a particular route—have dealt with this project and passed it, we
hope there will be some brightening in the steel situation. After all the fuel

'It;equir-emen.ts of middle eastern Canada have a certain relative priority, we
elieve.

Well, Mr. Chairman, if there are any questions which either I or any of
the special representatives of the various aspects of the project can answer we
will be very glad to do so. 1 do not want to bore you with a rather long detailed
harangue on the project. T am sure you have the meat of it.

The CuamrMan: I think you have covered the rough outline of the project
quite well. :

Gentlemen, would it be your wish at this time to question Mr. Tolmie or
to hear these other three men on the various aspects of the project? We have a
man here in the engineering department; we have one from the banking depart-
ment which is very important; and we also have a practical man who under-
stands gas wells.

Mr. ToLmie: We also have the marketing man Mr. Chairman.

The CuatrmMaN: What is your wish as to procedure? Do you wish to question
Mr. Tolmie at this point?
Mr. MurpaY: Why not hear the rest of them first, Mr. Chairman?

The CuamrMAN: Does that meet with the general wishes of the committee?
Agreed.

Mr. Toumie: I would suggest you first hear Mr. Schultz, the vice-president
of Canadian Delhi Oil Company Limited, and the vice-president of the parent

company. He possibly might start with the picture of gas development and the
exploration program.
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The Cramrmax: Mr. Schultz, could you come forward and give us a rough
outline.

Mr. Giuuis: Before you proceed, may I ask a question? This particular
project is going to affect in an adverse way many of the coal mining operations
in the maritimes. Is it possible to have some representative from that side of
the picture to ascertain just what this particular project is going to do to that
industry? I think they have a right to state their case before this kind of a bill
is adopted. Is it possible to do that—to have some representative from the coal
mining industry in eastern Canada?

The Caamman: Would you not be in a position to ask those questions as a
member of the committee?

Mr. GiLuis: I am not representing that industry but if it is going to cut into
the market to the extent I think it is, then I think they should have the right to
make some representations to the committee directly from the east.

Mr. Murray: Coming from British Columbia I would take just exactly the
opposite view. We have huge coal deposits out there and we have also huge
deposits of natural gas. We cannot turn the clock backwards; this is a progres-
sive business, and 1 do not think that the coal mining people have any interest
in it at all.

Mr. Giuurs: May I say that this pipe line bill does not affect British
Columbia at all. This is going straight down to Quebee City ultimately, as I
understand it. What I have in mind is this: that the main market for Nova
Scotia and New Brunswick, the only economic market, is about 100 miles west
of Montreal. If this pipe line went in and supplied the full requirements for that
area, it would practically eripple the market which New Brunswick and Nova
Scotia have for coal in Quebee, their main market.

Mr. Fercuson: Mr. Chairman, the company anticipates that the gas will be
salable and if it is salable it will be to the great advantage of the people there.
Now, the advantages of this gas going to Quebec—if it ever does reach Quebec—
should far override coal to the people of Quebec City. I believe it would over-
ride even a situation in which the coal mines are actually put out of operation.
Surely we will not say: do not give these people the advantages of using gas
because it might put some Canadians out of work. This country has never
done that since its inception.

The CramrMaN: I do not think we ought to get into that argument at this
stage. We have as a committee the right to hear anyone who wishes to be heard
on this question and we can deal with Mr. Gillis’s suggestion at a later time.
At the moment the committee has requested Mr. Schultz to come forward and I
think we should hear his remarks on the project. Mr. Schultz, will you take
the stand, please.

Mr. Frank August Schultz, called:

The Wirness: Mr. Chairman, considerations for this project were conceived
upon broad principles, principles which are common to all gas line projects.

No. 1: We had to be able to supply gas to the consuming areas at a price
which they could afford to pay for it. Now, we feel that we can supply this gas
at a price which is cheaper than the corresponding charge for coal or oil.

The second consideration was that it should be an all-Canadian project,
that it would be Canadian gas transported over an all-Canadian line, and that
one hundred per cent of the consumption would be in Canadian cities. It would
be a project over which the Canadian government would have complete juris-
diction both as to the projected line and, ultimately, as far as the prices which
are realized on the sale are concerned.
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The third consideration was that the project had to be economically feasible.
In that respect we hired outstanding firms to give opinions regarding feasibility
of the projected pipe line route and examine, in some detail, the various factors
involved in constructing a pipe line over a difficult terrain. We are satisfied,
at this stage, that the line is entirely feasible. We are going ahead with our
project as far as we can, particularly in developing gas reserves in Alberta to
supply this line.

We recognize that to obtain this end product we must first get clearance
from the Alberta government. To gain that clearance we have to develop gas
reserves, we have to demonstrate that the company is interested in finding gas,
and that the gas could be isolated and produced. We are committed to the
principle of spending several million dollars a year looking primarily for gas to
be dedicated to this eastern.project. At the present time our company has drilled
twelve wildeat prospects. Of these prospects eight have ended up as proven new
and heretofore undiscovered gas areas.

We are cognizant of the Alberta Board’s requirements that a gas company
which wishes to build a line has to find additional resources. We are committed
to the principle of carrying forward this program until such time as we can
convince the Alberta board that sufficient gas reserves have been developed and
that export from Alberta is feasible.

In carrying on a step further with the pipe line we knew that we had to have
adequate information on the gas reserves from independent experts, We have
hired the firm of De Golver and MeNaughton, which firm has a fine reputation
in our country for evaluating reserves of oil and gas. They are now carrying
forward their survey of the gas reserves in Alberta. That work will be finished
I think by April 15. ¥

We are satisfied at this stage that the gas reserves are adequate in Alberta
to justify this line. We are going to try to convince the Alberta government
that our position is a correet one. We shall carry on our wild-catting program
until such time as we can convince the Alberta government.

No. 2: You may be interested to know about the marketing situation. We
are satisfied at this stage that adequate markets exist in the eastern part of
Canada to consume all the gas that we can produce and move through this line.
We have taken the entire risk for the expenditure of this money of our own
stockholders, and we anticipate that we shall have several million dollars tied
into wild-catting, and several hundred thousand dollars tied into the various
services prior to the time we are able to get into production. That is the broad
range of principles and we would be glad to answer any specific questions in
regard to the project if anyone wishes to ask them.

The Cuamrman: Thank you, Mr. Schultz. Are there any questions before
we call on the next witness?

By Mr. Gallis:

Q. Mr. Chairman, I think that Mr. Decore has given us a very fine survey
of the project in the pamphlet which he supplied entitled “Trans-Canada Pipe
Lines Limited”. I see on page 3 of that pamphlet of explanation the following
statement: i

The existing gas companies with their mains, storage tanks and
stand-by coal gas production facilities will continue to handle the retailing.

Might I ask Mr. Schultz what these stand-by coal gas production facilities,
for example, would consist of?—A. Mr. Chairman, that means “stand-by coal
and gas production”. In other words we do not feel that in the early stages of

“this project we can supply all the gas that will be required by the consuming
areas, and we feel that it may be necessary to mix some of this natural gas from
Alberta with coal gas in order to take care of the demand.
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Q. What process would you use to extract that gas from coal?—A. We would
be only a transporting company. The local utilities which already have coal
gas making facilities to take care of the demand might want to mix some propor-
tion of coal gas which they could manufacture with our natural gas.

This project of ours is entirely a transmission project. We have no desire
to retail gas to the ultimate consumer. We merely want to produce and to buy
gas in Alberta and transport it to the various utilities that exist now or that may
be formed.

Q. Then am I right in thinking that possibly a certain area would be held
to setting up a low-temperature carbonization plant for the purpose of extracting
gas from coal?—A. No, sir. They could operate with the gas we furnish. We
have adequate gas to take care of their needs; but they might want to have
stand-by facilities. That would be up to each local distributing set-up.

Q. I thought that perhaps extracting a by-product from coal might off-set
the fears which have been expressed that the coal industry would be hurt.—A.
It is a situation over which the transmission people would have absolutely no
control. We would contract with the local utilities to sell natural gas to them
at the city gates. What they might do with it after that by way of mixing it
with coal gas would be their responsibility. -

Q. But you think there is a possibility of there being a combination of the
two?—A. Yes, sir. It has happened in areas in the United States where natural
gas comes in; and we can foresee that possibility pI‘lOI’ to the time we have built up
the pipe line to a capacity load.

By Mr. Green: X

Q. I presume those local companies which are already producing gas from
coal would continue to do so, using their production only as an auxiliary to your
natural gas?—A. In the beginning that would seem likely to be the case they
would mix the two products. But ultimately we feel that we would be able to
supply all the natural gas that would be required. I think the reason why they
will want to change to natural gas as rapidly as possible is that coal gas has a
B.T.U. content or roughly five hundred B.T.U. per cubic foot, while the gas
we furnish will have a content of one thousand and twenty-four B.T.U.s per
cubic foot. In other words, they will get twice the heating value out of natural
gas that they do out of coal gas.

By Mr. Harkness:

Q. Are there not considerable technical difficulties involved in switching
from coal gas to natural gas and vice versa, or in mixing the two together? T °
know that stoves built for coal gas will not work with natural gas and vice versa.
—A. That is right. Where artificial gas is now being used all the burners will
have to be changed. In other words, the mixture of air and gas will differ with
the two types of gas.

Q. The point I have in mind is this: do you not think that the operation of
a stand-by plant which would presumably have for its purpose the mixing of
coal gas with natural gas would be extremely difficult?—A. As a matter of prac-
tical approach, an amount of coal gas mixed with natural gas would bring the
ia,ierage B.T.U. content of the mixed product up to 850 B.T.U. or somethmg
ike that.

By the Chairman:

Q. But let us suppose you had a failure entirely of the natural gas. That
would present other difficulties, would it not?—A. Yes, it would; it certainly
would! From our experience with pipe lines, we recognize the posmblhty that
we might have a blowout in this line, so we are engmeermg precautionary
measures into this line that should reduce blowouts to a minimum. In the
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United States where they have good roads along these large pipe lines they have
standby equipment, say, every ten miles; they have an extra joint of pipe; every
fifty miles there may be an extra trenching machine or an extra v_veldlng’machme.
On our project we will double the safety factors; we will put a joint of pipe every
five miles; we will have welding machines at somewhat closer intervals so that
if there is an interruption of service the time involved to repair it will be at
a minimum.

Tue CuarMAN: I suppose that being on the railway’s right of way these
things will be noticed quicker than they would if the pipe line went through the
bush?

Tue Wirness: They will be noticed immediately in any event. We will
have to have small planes that fly the entire length of the route daily, and
being close to the railroad will facilitate our acting in cdse of failure—in other
words, we will be able to move equipment over the railroad within a matter of
minutes after trouble has been localized.

By Mr. Applewhaite.

Q. Is there any estimate‘as to the length of time over which this project
would continue to operate to capacity, I mean an estimate based on the reserves of
gas?—A. Our overall thinking of this project is that, if I understand your question
properly, we plan on two nine months long construction periods to construect the
entire line. When we get an export permit from the Alberta government we
know it will have to be in terms of 365 million feet.

Q. Suppose you do get your export permit, have you any idea as to how
long you can remain in operation before you have exhausted the available
supplies of gas?—A. We are asking for a permit for twenty-five years. Our experi-
ence in other natural gas areas has been that, when a pipe line has been developed
and producers actually go after finding gas, the gas reserves double and triple and _
quadruple rapidly. We are not disturbed on that. We are asking for a twenty-
five year permit. We are convinced that the reserves in Alberta when they are
finally determined will take care of a much longer period of time.

Q. How long would you have to operate at normal capacity before you
could return your capital costs plus all operating costs and so on?—A. We think
that the twenty-five year period will liquidate the entire investment.

By Mr. Riley:

Q. What is the .B.U.T. difference between natural gas and propane?—A.
Well, propane—I am speaking from memory—runs about 4,000 B.T.U.s
per gallon. I cannot make a direct comparison as I do not have the data. Dry
natural gas will be in the range of 1,024 B.T.U.’s per cubic foot.

Q. What do you estimate the effect of natural gas will be on the propane
business in the different cities?—A. I think it will have an effect
in the cities proper. Where propane and butane are sold natural
gas will replace them, as natural gas is cheaper. In the rural
communities it will have no effect, because in the final analysis where
we can sell gas depends on economic conditions. A sufficiently large community
we can serve, but to justify a line today it will have to be an economic sound
situation. The smaller communities far removed from the right of way will
continue to use propane and butane. »

By Mr. Ferguson:

Q. Have you a map showing the proposed route that the pipe line will
follow?—A. We have a tentative map only. As soon as we finish our survey on the
Canadian National Railways right of way we will finalize our proposed right
of way, but until we can survey that Canadian National Railways route we are
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following very closely the Canadian Pacific Railway route. In the final analysis
the project has to be built along the cheapest right of way, the idea being that
the cheaper we can construct this line the cheaper we can furnish gas to the
domestie commercial and industrial users in the east.

Q. Have you established any points yet that will be permanent, I mean
that you intend to construet through on the route across Canada?—A. Yes, sir..

Q. Have you a copy of that map available?—A. We have a copy of the
overall map but the route shown on that may have to be changed somewhat.

Q. Is that map available for us to see?—A. Yes.

Q. I would suggest that we have it. It might be important to members
representing some communities in Canada as these communities might want to
know where the pipe line will come through—A. We will be glad to furnish it,
with the understanding it is preliminary and the route may change somewhat.

Q. Well, any change that will be made will not be very great. It will be
say a quarter or a third or something of that nature.—A. No change as to
specific areas, that is all.

Q. How soon can you have that map made available?—A. We can furnish
it to you today.

Tae CuairmaN: I think each member of the committee should be supplied
with a copy of that map, or, if you care to bring a larger map and show it to the
members of the committee at an adjourned meeting, that might be satisfactory.
I imagine every member of the committee would like to see that map. I think that
is a good point. If as you say you only have fifteen of those maps I do not think
you have enough for all the members of the committee.

Mgz. Fercuson: By photostating the maps you could have some ready for
this afternoon and those with what you already have will be sufficient.

Tae CuamrMaN: We will likely adjourn this meeting until four o’clock. I
do not think we can get finished with this work this morning. If you can have
a copy of the map for this afternoon’s meeting that will be satisfactory-

Mg. Mort: Mr. Chairmain, have we got any information in this committee
regarding this line that we heard so much about last year, the natural gas line
coming in from Detroit and Buffalo into Ontario and coming down as far as
Montreal. Have we any information regarding that particular line, that is coming .
in? It seems to me that gas coming in over that line could be supplled at a much
cheaper rate than over this long line from Alberta. This line was mentioned on
many occasions during the discussion last year, and I am ]ust wondering if any
information is available on that project?

Tuae CuamrMAN: There is no information on that in the hands of the
committee at the present time.

Mr. Morr: Can we get any information on that?

Tue CHARMAN: 1 suppose there is something available but there are so
many pipe lines under consideration that I doubt whether that is germane to this
question,

By Mr. Follwell :

Q- Has the Delhi Oil Corporation of Texas any interest in the
gas business in the United States? If so, I would like to know if
they have a line that could come to eastern Canada from that way?—A. We are
in the gas business in the United States. We have discovered and carried out
other projects of this nature where it meant developing a new area. The project
I am particularly thinking of is in Northwestern New Mexico, the San Juan
basin, in which we were the prime company developing the reserves and carrying
through that project, building a twenty-six inch diameter line from those
reserves to Cahforma, where the reserves were sold to the Pacific Gas and Electrie,
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and they transported the gas to the San Francisco area. We have no line coming
into the eastern part-of the United States; all of our lines are in the New Mexico-
Gulf Coast area.

- Q. Recently, there was a company,—the Eastern Gas Syndicate,—which
requested munieipalities in Ontario to have a vote taken as to whether or not
they would give a franchise to this particular gas company to bring gas in over
that route that Mr. Mott mentioned, in through Detroit, down through Windsor
and so on. Their intention was, I think, to take Alberta gas and trade it across
to the western United States and bring Texas gas up here.

.The point I am trying to make is, are you contemplating any such deal as
that or are you interested in Canada only and are going to bring the gas from
Alberta down through Canada to this area?—A. Our only interest is bringing
Alberta gas to the eastern part of Canada. We think that the difficulties are
insurmountable for taking western Canadian gas down to the western coast of
the United States and working out an exchange; the selfish interests involved in
the various communities, we think, will prevent an effective exchange.

By Mr. Conacher:

Q. Mr. Schultz, what is the longest gas line in existence now, and secondly,
does Texas gas come to Detroit at this time?—A. I believe that
is right. The longest line at the present time is the Transcontinental
Pipe Line Company which comes from the Mexican border, McAllen,
Texas, to New York City. That line is approximately 1,840 miles long. Ours
would be 2,200 miles. Their costs were approximately $245 million; we estimate
ours at $250 million. They have, as I remember, a thirty inch line, which is
what we contemplate. They have.an ultimate deliverability of 550 million cubic
feet a day; we expect the same thing.

By Mr. Ferguson:

Q. Dr. T. A. Link, a very eminent western geologist, yesterday in Toronto
made a statement that to heat and cook and put to all the necessary uses that
he could put natural gas to in a home would cost $150 a year in Calgary, com-
pared with the present methods used in the city of Toronto for the same purposes
at a cost of $600 a year. In your opinion what difference would it make to
users of natural gas in the city of Toronto, in comparison with the same home
in Calgary at $150 and the same home in Toronto at $600? With natural gas
what would be the saving made?—A. That is a question we cannot
answer at this time. We know we can sell natural gas far cheaper.
Our marketing survey will be finished some time in April. The
mechanics of the pipe line are this: We will have & fixed invest-
ment; we think it will be $250 million. The more gas that we can put through
that pipe line the cheaper we can sell each 1,000 cubic feet of it. Now, if the
marketing survey shows we can immediately sell 365 million cubic feet a day
then we will have one price; if we can only sell 250 million cubic feet a day we
will have the same fixed investment and a smaller number of units of ,gas
therefore the gas will have to be higher in price. Now when that marketiné'
survey is made we will be able to come up with ‘a price. It is still in the

preliminary stage and will have to be determined in the light of facts as they
develop.

Q: ‘You were talking about your charter. Can you give us any idea what
the saving might be to the consumer through the granting of this charter. If it

1 granted and a pipe line comes into operation and you are in a position to

deliver gas, will it be an advantage for the person to use gas? Do you think
81588—2
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it would be an advantage to the consumer?—A. Yes, as I understand it, most of
the gas being consumed now is artificial gas, and the immediate saving that we
will be giving consumers will be the mcrea~ed value in the gas. Now, we have
no jurisdiction over what the local utilities charge for it; but we of course will.
have to have a price that will completely liquidate tlus investment over the
vears. We hope that we can sell gas at a price which will be equivalent in
B.T.Us to coal or oil. We know from past experience that we can undersell
coal and oil, that people will want natural gas. Think of the convenience of it.
People can it upstairs and turn the heat on or off as they want. Think of the
cleanliness of it; getting away from soot; not having to carry out the ashes.
Those are all important factors to consumers, and if we can undersell coal and
oil we are confident that people will want natural gas. When this marketing
survey is finished we will be able to say specifically the price at which we can
sell gas in Toronto, Montreal, and Winnipeg, and so on.

Q. I want to ask about your American company, has it any lines at the
present time headed for Canada?—A. No, it has not. Our lines are all to the
south-west. :

Q. You are not negotiating at the present time on any deal with anyone to
pump any gas from the United States into Canada?—A. No, sir, we have no
project under way at this time.

Q. As you know, there are a number of companies in the United States
today which are piping gas in from the States to points like London, Ontario.
If you have a franchise for a pipe line coming down from western Canada to
Hamilton and Toronto, those cities would be pretty well in the centre of the
vice as regards price.—A. I can assure you that we have no project under con-
templation at the present time, nor have we had in the past, for bringing gas
anywhere east. All of our reserves are in Texas and New Mexico and are
transported to California; most of that gas will go to California or to, say, Salt
Lake City, in Utah.

Q. You are not connected with any companies at the present time running
into Canada, or partly into Canada?—A. No, sir.

Q. Would any block of your stock be held by people who have the idea of
coming into Canada?—A. That is a question I cannot answer.

Mr. CoNacHER: The publie will be allowed to buy, will it not?

The Wrrness: Yes sir, and we recognize the principle. We want and need
Canadian participation in this entire project, in all stages of the financing.

By Mr. Garland:

Q. How fast will you be able to get on with this project, assuming that
you get the necessary authority and assuming that materials are available,
how much time would then be necessary, from the time you get the authority,
to deliver the goods to central Ontario?—A. We contemplate two nine month
long construction periods, during December, January, February and part of
March. There would be very little we could do at the end of the first nine
‘month period, but we think that deliveries could be started at the end of nine
.months, that the project could be completed in a construction period of 18
months.

Q. You would be able to start delivering gas to eastern towns then?—A,
Yes, for all practical purposes.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Would you care to comment on what proportion of the gas would be
used for domestic purposes and what would be used for commercial purposes
from the supply from the western field?—A. T think Mr. Shattuck will have
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to answer that question. In all likelihood the situation is one which would be
rapidly changing. However, I can say this, that we know from experience that
the domestic load would increase rapidly during the years in relation to the
commercial and industrial load.

Q. What would you say about the use of gas, for instance in manufacturing,
In the manufacture of steel? Is there much use for gas in the manufacture of
steel? Would the cost be low enough to be attractive?—A. Well, only in con-
verting serap, or reducing it. :

Q. You have to use coal in any steel plant in order to make coke for blast
furnace use—A. That is right. It is my impression that for iron ore you have
to have coke to reduce the ferric iron to elemental iron, and you can only do
that by burning off the oxygen in the ferric iron of the ore. The reduction of
serap, of course, can be done with natural gas, and as a matter of fact it is now
being done in Kansas city. It is a matter of burning out the oxygen.

Q. Do you take into consideration that the amount of coal used in the steel
manufacturing industry, and the amount of coal used for the melting of serap; is
relatively small?—A. Very small. -

Q. Therefore they will still have some use for coal in the manufacture of
stee]?—A. Gas cannot at this time replace coal in the steel industry.

Mr. Fercuson: Unless there is a utilities set-up in any city, town or village
to handle gas that particular community will not be served by your pipe line?

The Cuamrman: That is a good question, what would be the situation in
such cases?

The Wirngss: Our idea on that would be this. The transmission company
would transport the gas. We hope to be able to get people in these communi-
ties along the right-of-way to obtain local franchises and distribute the natural
gas. We are perfectly willing to eco-operate with them and work with them in
every way. Gas will be much easier to sell in cases where communities have
distribution facilities already in existence, but in a lot of these small communities
they will have to install facilities. We intend to co-operate in every way with
the people in cases like this to encourage them to install facilities which will
develop the market for our product. ‘
~ Mr. Ferauson: At first you are going to market principally with the larger
mndustries?

. . The WirnEss: Yes, we recognize that we will have to depend on the larger
Industries to begin with, that we will have to sell to the larger industries such
as the paper mills, and so on; until such time as groups or individuals will take
the responsibility of setting up local utilities in towns which are not now supplied

with gas.

The Cuamman: After all, that would not be an exper}siv.e procedure in
most cases because they would not have to build much equipment.
The Wirness: That is right.

The Cuamman: It would be different in the case of some of the older
communities where they would probably have to consider the cost of their
compressing equipment and other expensive pieces such as retorts. I think,
however, that would probably take care of itself.

By Mry. Murphy:
Q. What about the relative value of the fuel you would supply as compared

- to that at present available? Would it be as high in value?—A. Yes, there

would be an advantage to them in this way, these communities would get a gas
which will have a minimum of 1,000 B.T.U.s in it.
8158893
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Q. You would have a 1,000 B,T.U.’s minimum?—A. Yes, sir. We dehy-
drate it and take out any liquid that may be in it and then it is dealt with as
dry gas. We guarantee a minimum-of 1,000 B.T.U.’s.

Q. Can you give us any idea of the price at which you would be able to lay
it down at the principal points?—A. No, but it. would be more or less stable.
Mr. Shattuck can answer that specifically and in greater detail than I can; I
mean regarding prices.

Q. Can you give us any details as to the cost of the gas?—A. What it will
cost at different points? We recognize that the cost in Winnipeg will be cheaper
because of the shorter distance over which it is transported. The general rule
of thumb on this—I cannot give it to you exactly—is that it costs between a
cent or a cent and a quarter per hundred miles to move the gas; so, in Toronto,
let us say, which is approximately a thousand miles further east than Winnipeg
it would cost correspondingly more to move the gas to that point.

Q. Then the distributors will have to supply ¢ertain facilities, and presum-
ably that would add to the cost?—A. Well, we will have no control over that,
that will be up to the local authority; but the minimum B.T.U. value will be
in the gas.

Mr. Fercuson: When a pipe lines bill was before this committee last year,
if I remember correctly, I believe we were told that the gas could be sold at
practically the same price at the far end of the line because of the general
scheme of over-all distribution of cost and the amortization of cost.

The CuamMAN: I do not think that is a good question here because this
firm had nothing to do with any previous witnesses.

Mr. Fercuson: Well, Mr. Chairman, this company is concerned with this
business; and I recall distinetly that last year we were told that that company
could deliver it at the far end of the line at practically the same cost. Here
is 4 company asking for a charter for a 2,200 mile line and they say that they
can deliver it cheaper in Winnipeg than in Toronto.

The CramrMAN: Oh, I see what you are getting at. Is it a flat price, or how
do they intend to deal with it?

Mr. FeErGcusoNn: Yes. ;

The CuAlRMAN: Perhaps another witness could give us the details on that.

The Wirness: All I am saying is that as a general proposition I do not think
we would be able to deliver gas for the same price at Toronto as at Winnipeg.

The cost to us would be lower at Winnipeg; we could not sell it for the same
price in Toronto.

Mr. Fercuson: There is a question I would like to ask you right here. That
company which was before the committee last year put in an overall cost
to meet the requirements of the whole population, and they proposed to sell it
at the far end at about the same price as to all points along the line.

Mr. Green: That is what they were trying to tell us, that the gas would
be cheaper near Vancouver.

By Mr. Smith: /

Q. Can you tell me anything about extending this line further east eventually
so that it will reach the Maritime area?—A. We have no surveys on pipe line
costs, or on marketing conditions around the Maritimes. If there were a large
enough market and we could build a line with a reasonable cost, at some future
stage we might go that way with it. We would also have to consider the economic

aspect of it and the matter of markets, together with the cost of transportation.

They would be the controlling factors.
Q. And you feel now that the distance you would have to carry the gas
would be too great in the light of present market demand?—A. Yes.
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Q. But if manufacturing should build up in the Maritimes you would be
ready to consider extending this pipe line down there?—A. That is right, under
proper government permission we could go ahead, and we would—when and if
market conditions justify it.

The Cuamman: Is there anything else you would like to ask Mr. Schultz?
There have been some good questions asked and I think the answers have been
very helpful, Mr. Schultz; thank you, very much.

Perhaps you would like now to have me call Mr. Shattuck, or the engineer.

The Wirness: I think the next witness should be Mr. Warterfield, of the
Oklahoma Engineering Company, who would explain the pipe line construction
and progress and the surveys which he made. After that we could deal with the
mining end of it, if you wish.

The CaARMAN: Good.

Mr. Floyd Warterfield,—Pipe Line Engineering Company and Oklahoma
Contracting Corporation called:

The Wirness: I will have to apologize as I have been sick with the “flu”
but I will try to talk as loudly as I can without barking. I feel just like a bull pup
with a bone in his throat.

My commission in connection with this project was to survey a pipe line
route from the province of Alberta into the eastern consuming markets and areas.
By way of self qualification perhaps I can mention that I have been doing this
sort of thing for 31 years and if there is anything that a pipeliner likes better
than locating a pipe line it is the chance to go out and locate another pipe line
so that he can build that one too. I have been coming to Canada since 1922
and I have had opportunity to study the topography and, like a postman, a
holiday for a pipeliner means that as he crosses the country by train or ’plane
he just mentally visualizes how he could build a pipe line through that area.
I have had a lot of opportunity for that sort of thing in Canada.

Mr. Drcore: In view of the technical nature of this evidence could we
have the qualifications of this witness?

The CHalRMAN: Yes, although I think Mr. Tolmie gave them to us in a
general way. _

The Wirness: I will be glad to give them to you.

The CuarrmMAN: You are a practical man.

The Wirness: I am a graduate mechanical engineer of the University of
Oklahoma. I graduated in 1920. I have followed pipe line construction, design,
engineering, and operation, during the succeeding 31 years.

For twenty-five years before I started a business of my own I was employed
by the Standard Oil Company of New Jersey and I have had actual supervisory
experience on design, location, construction, operation and installation of pipe
lines and systems in the following states: Oklahoma, Missouri, Kansas, Louisiana,
Texas, Illinois, Arkansas, Wyoming, Alabama, Mississippi, Georgia, North
Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee, Virginia, Pennsylvania, New Jersey and
New York State. That about covers the United States. I am now engaged in
the design of a line through Pennsylvania, New Jersey and upper New York
involving about 420 miles of pipe line. \ :

During the war I was in charge of the design of the pipe line projects in the

" China-Burma-India theatre of war, in the design and location of the pipe line

system from Caleutta to Dibrugahr, and then from Dibrugahr to Kunming,
China, and from Rangoon to Mandalay and thence to the Lido Road.

In Europe I had charge of design and location of pipe line systems from
Le Havre to Paris, France. :
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In South America, I have done work for the Andian National Corporation
Ltd. and there is an-interesting pipe line which is now being built. It begins -
550 miles up the Magdalena river and runs from a point called Puerto-Salgar to
Bogota. Over a distance of 84 miles it rises from an elevation of 600 feet to the
Bogota plateau where the elevation is 8600 feet, the route going transversely
across the eastern Cordilleras. 1 regard this construction as more difficult from
the standpoint of accessibility and transportation, line work, climate, materials
and supplies than anything I saw along this route. At the present time I am
retained by the Governor of the Department of Cundinamarca. Also I designed
and laid out the pipe line system from Umiat to Fairbanks, Alaska, which is a
pipe line outlet to serve Petroleum Reserve No. 4 under the commission and
direction of Commodore Greenman.

The CrairmAN: Well, I think that is all that is necessary in the way of
qualifications. You are in.

The Wrrness: Getting closer to home, it was my pleasure and privilege
prior to forming Pipe Line Engineering Company to be employed by the Imperial
Oil Company as a consultant for the design, location and construction of the
Interprovincial and Lakehead Pipe Line system of Canada. I am quite familiar
with the prairie provinces and. the territory from the standpoint of pipe line
construction. More recently I did work on the Winnipeg line from Gretna up
to Winnipeg, and also from Sarnia to Toronto. That was a portion of the
country that you might generally think of as being particularly difficult
construction, but as a pipeliner I would consider it average or normal and in
some instances better than average for construction.

In accepting this commission no strings were put on me whatsoever. I was
not, told what route to select or where to go or where not to go. I merely had to
find a route which was feasible, practical, and which could be constructed at a
reasonable and proper cost.

In studying the map, Winnipeg seemed to be a focal point. There was not
much difficulty of any consequence west of Winnipeg. East of Winnipeg across
the province of Ontario some very severe problems were likely to be encountered
so two possible routes were explored. However, the weather closed me in and
I did not get a chance to explore the combination or alternate route. One of the
factors which influenced me in the primary route was the proximity of the trans-
Canada highway. In picking a pipe line route you look at the transportation
of men, materials, and supplies and working equipment, access roads, rail
facilities, and everything of that nature required during the initial stages of
construction. You take a look at the same time for the later problems of
maintenance, repairs, and service. So, everything being considered, the so-called
south route as I referred to it along the lakes, presented some quite difficult
construction problems but I have seen much worse in our own country in Penn-
sylvania. There are certain sections of that country which are difficult,
particularly across the Tuscarora mountains and in West Virginia. That is a
pipeliner’s hell there.

So, there is nothing in this pipe line construction that in insurmountable.
It is just big. Some of it is going to be difficult of construction but the average
over-all cost comes to a very reasonable and reconcilable figure.

I have a preliminary map here if you care to have it exhibited.

The Cuamrman: Is that the map you have for the next meeting? In a
general way perhaps the members could see it from where they sit.

The Wrrness: You remember I spoke of Winnipeg being the common point.
There was not much of an alternate there. In making this reconnaissance
survey 1 started at Toronto, went to Montreal, back up to Ottawa, along the
Ottawa river through what is more or less the clay belt, via Cochrane Kapus-
kasing, Hearst, Nikina, Minaki, and on to Wlnmpeg Returmng from
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Winnipeg on the southern route we doubled back to a point around Kenora,
through to Fort William, Port Arthur, and Nipigon; through Schreiber and on
down to Sudbury. :

The route over which I was prevented from flying was the alternate route
over the C.N.R. Having flown over the territory I have mentioned though, I
was able to evaluate it. There is some rough construction, yes, but it is
construction, generally, that any pipeliner can do who is competent, who has the
know-how, working equipment and personnel.

Mr. GarLaxp: You mentioned Sudbury; does it pass through North Bay?

The Wirness: I did not get the question.

The Cramrman: Does the line pass through North Bay?

The Wirness: Wait until I spot North Bay in my mind. It goes into
Sudbury, but it goes south of North Bay.

By Mr. Muwrray:

Q. May I ask a question in a general way, Mr. Chairman? I refer to
the amount of attention being given to the question of defence of this country.
Would it not be dangerous to put a pipe line near a main line railway ?—A. May
I answer the question in this way, sir. No.

I do not mean that abruptly please, sir, but since 1898 along the Reading °
railroad out of Linden, New Jersey, there have been three eight-inch lines in
continuous operation. The trains run along there every day.

Q. How often have they been bombed?—A. They have not been bombed
as yet but I might answer in this way. In connection with the pipe line T
mentioned from Dibrugahr to Calcutta, the Japanese bombed that every day
but they never succeeded in securing a direct hit or damaging the line.

Q. Would it not be wiser to follow the trans-Canada highway?—A. If you
asked me from a personal standpoint or from the standpoint of construction I
would say that the construction would cost less if it did follow that route. I
consider it to be the better of the two routes.

Q. It might encourage a better highway, in a straighter line?—A. I am
looking at this thing from the impersonal point of view of a pipeliner building
a pipe line.

By Mpr. Ferguson:

Q. Come back to the point of running a spur line say about 40 miles from
your pipe line to a population of about 40,000. In your opinion do they do
that in the United States? Do they run a spur line off the main line to supply
gas?—A. I know they do it.

. Q. Tt is feasible?—A. There is nothing mechanically that cannot be done
if it is economically justifiable. There is nothing to keep.you from tying
Into the line at any point. It is very simple and easy to do.

Mr. Murray: Would the construction of this line assist in the redistribution
of industry across the country? Would it assist in dispersing the industrial
centres and the building up of industries in the small towns back in the
country ?

- The Wrrxess:I did not get that.
The Crammax: Your question is has it had that effect in the United States?

: The Wirngss: I think it is axiomatic that wherever cheap fuel is available
Industry follows.

Mr. MurpnY: It would benefit the small towns along the way?

The WrrnEss: I cannot see any reason why it would not benefit everything
everywhere, because fuel is the backbone of industry.

/
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Mr. Herrmee: 1 would just like to point out at this stage that last year

when Mr. Dixon was giving evidence on another pipe line in respect of our .

pleas for an all-Canadian route, dealing with the small towns along the route,
he told the committee that it had not been the experience of pipe line builders
in the States that industry was developed along the pipe line because of the
building of the pipe line.

Mr. Murray: He was speaking of Texas.

The CHamRMAN: There are other factors but I think the witness has answered
very well—that it does assist.

Now, gentlemen, our witness is burdened by a bad cold. He has been very
good to give us the benefit of his experience and so I wonder if there are any other
questions?

By Mr. Harkness: )

Q. How would the cost of construction through this area in Ontario which
is largely rock, in the Great Shield, compare with the cost of construction on
the prairies?—A. It is considerably higher, sir.

Q. Can you give a specific figure, as to how much higher it would be?—A.
From two to three times. That is due to one other thing aside from the rock.

Q. I beg your pardon?—A. That is due to one other thing aside from the
rock. In your prairie provinces you have a two-mile grid system where you do
have access roads. They are not passable in certain seasons of the year but in
certain locations through Ontario it would be necessary to construct access roads
in order to reach your pipe line right of way. For that reason your cost would
be accelerated over what it would be if the same location were dumped into
Pennsylvania or West Virginia where the territory is literally laced with roads.

" Q. In Ontario would you bury this line or not?—A. I would only half
bury it.

Q. That would require blasting wherever you buried it?—A. Yes. That is
done for mechanical reasons and for other reasons. If you would like me to
enumerate them I could.

Q. I know something about this because I come from Alberta.—A. The idea
of half-burying a line is to provide an anchor saddle for the line to protect it
through your rock. This is protecting the corrosion protective materials by a
rock shield or covering of an approved or aceeptable type and then earth is back-
filled over the top of the line. That is done so as to form a snow barrier to keep
vour temperatures down. At the same time you provide an anchor for the pipe
line, and you guard to some extent against accidental damage and to a great
extent against intentional damage.

Q. In effect you would have to blast a trench for this line?—A. Yes.

- By Mr. McCulloch:
Q. Would the pipe be fully covered?—A. It would be just a semi-cireular
mound. If T wanted to go across this pipe line and it were laid on top of the
ground, I would have to build a ramp over it or drag it out my of way.

By Mr. Harkness:

Q. I presume that construction of the line would be done by a number of
pipe line construction firms, such as Williams Brothers and so on?—A. Unfor-
tunately there is a very limited number. of pipe line construction firms which
have the know-how, the work equipment and the organization fo undertake a
job such as this one.

Q. All construction would not be done by one firm?—A. I doubt if any one
firm has sufficient amount of work equipment or individual personnel to under-
take it, particularly in view of the fact that there are less than sixteen hundred
ql\laliﬁed pipe line welders in the United States.
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Q. Particularly because there would be a number of sub-contractors?—A.
Yes. The contractors would rely very heavily upon the talents of Canadian con-=
tractors especially in the way of construeting roads, blasting, ditching and things
of that kind.

By the Chairman.:

Q. You are giving evidence as the head of an engineering firm. You do not
undertake the work yourself?—A. I have been in the construction business.
: Q. Are you in the construction business now?—A. No. I am doing engineer-
ing design and inspection work entirely. .

The Cmamman: If there are any other questions, perhaps we might have
them now. We have another half hour. Perhaps the members of the committee
would like to have a chance to hear a representative of the financial end of it.
Thank you very much, Mr. Warterfield.

Mr. Tormme: I think mention has been made of market demand and I
wonder if we could call now upon Mr. George Shattuck who is a representative

_ of H. K. Ferguson Company, Ltd., the marketing and survey people. He would

describe the procedure which they have adopted in the market survey, and would
give you some generalizations from it. His report is still in the “finalizing”
stage and he has yet to have it drawn up and printed. But he can give you the
highlights at this time.

The Cuamman: Is it the wish of the committee that we hear from Mr.
Shattuck now? Come forward Mr. Shattuck.

Mr. J. G. Shattuck, called:A

The Witxess: Mr. Chairman, H. K. Ferguson Company Limited was asked
to verify the fact that there are sufficient natural gas markets in the eastern part
of Canada to support a pipe line from Alberta through to Toronto and on te
Montreal. , ;

Beginning about Christmas time we put a crew of industrial engineers
acquainted with fuel consumption in Ontario and Montreal Island to determine
the amount of industrial consumption of fuel in those areas.

After Christmas several of the men were detailed to go westerly and to
follow the route all the way back as far as Regina and Moose Jaw. During the
same time the Research members of our erew have been examining data showing
the percentage of residential and commercial sales in those areas and the prices
competitive with present fuels.

Our field work is about completed but we shall have to review all of it and
to fill in data that has been missed. We hope to have the completed results by
about the middle of April.

However, our work has gone far enough so that we are assured that, at any
rate, the market would absorb one hundred billion cubic feet of gas a year at
prices that will service the pipe line, pay the operating costs, and service the
debts necessary to finance construction.

By Mr. Ferguson:

Q. Have you any idea of the possible reduction in cost over present methods
of heating and over the use of gas, let us say, for the City of Toronto?—A. T am
somewhat dependent upon my United States experience. I believe that in most
cases you will find actually fuel will cost about one half what it does cost with
manufactured gas. However, I would not like that opinion quoted against
Canadian utilities here because I have not studied the question.
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Q. Would you say that the cost to the consumer for your fuel would be
one-third less than it costs today?—A. You mean, if they heated their houses
with manufactured gas?

Q. Yes—A. Yes, I think that would be a conservative statement; but not
necessarily so as to cooking and water heating. Those sales are depended upon
by local utilities to maintain most of their fixed costs, and they might not be able
to reduce that cost.

Q. Would the cost to the local utility for the fuel they are delivering,
outside of their cost of operation, be one-third less than their present cost of fuel?
—A. T do not believe I could answer your question.

Q. Whatever burden the utilities might have would be a horse of another
colour; but if they are paying one-third less for the product which they are
supplying, do you think that the product could be sold for one-third less to the
consumer?—A. They might make reductions when they started selling the gas,
but I would hesitate to give any opinion.

Q. Have you had any experience with studies of a similar nature?—A. It
has been found generally that after natural gas has been introduced into an
area which has used manufactured gas for heating that rates may be reduced
after several years service. Some cities do it immediately, while others do it
after some years.

Q. So you think that we can look forward to a reduction in the cost of
heating our homes in Canada?—A. Yes.

By the Chairman:

Q. But you cannot say how much?—A. No.

Q. Your experience has not covered Canadian cities, utilities, and com-
missions. All those factors would come into the question, would they not?—
A. Our assignment did not cover it.

Mr. LenNarp: It says in the circular:

“...a preliminary calculation in January showed a competitive
advantage of $1 a ton over American anthracite coal...”

That would be only about five per cent, would it not?

The CuHAmRMAN: It is difficult for the witness to say how much.

Mr. LexNarD: It does not say who is the author of the pamphlet. We
got it through the mail.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions?

By Mr. Smith:

: Q. What control does the Public Utilities Board of any one of the provinces
have over the price which you will get for the supply of gas to the distributing
company? Is there any or none?—A. I think that is entirely out of my
experience. I do not think I can answer your question.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other questions?

By Mr. Harkness:

Q. Have you any figure to show what the cost is going to be at your main
gate at Princess?—A. No. It is true that I have been given a figure to assume
at this time, but I do not believe that it is a figure that should be quoted. It
was just a starting assumption for my work.
© . Q. What I was going to ask you next was: what is your estimated cost
of transportmg one thousand cubic feet of gas? In other Words, I think we
should have some idea of what the estimated cost of this gas is going to be at
your main gate, and what the estimated cost is going to be for transporting it,
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let us say, to Toronto?—A. We would have to wait until the final marketing
estimates are completed, because the costs of the line tend to vary in proportion
with the amount of gas handled. It is more or less a lump sum for a large
part of the cost. For instance, if you have ten per cent more gas handled, the
cost becomes roughly ten per cent less.

Q. The pipe line companies we had appearing before us last year were
able to give us what they estimated the cost of gas would be and what they
estimated the cost of transporting it would be, that is to say, what they
estimated it would cost to deliver one thousand cubic feet of gas to its
destination—A. I think that by May we shall have those figures to quote,
that is, when my work is completed.

Q. You have not got them now?—A. They would not be reliable.

By Mr. Follwell:
Q. Did you survey any place where the municipalities had no set-up for
the distribution of gas?—A. Yes, we have.
The CuamrmaN: Is that all you have?

By Mr. Ferguson: s

Q. Are there any limits on the profits you can make or the length of period
of time that you require to write off these expenditures? Suppose you
could write these expenditures off, say, in ten years, with the price of gas
selling at a price which would be advantageous for the consumer to buy
rather than to buy coal? If you can write this project off in ten years,
then stockholders would be able to expeet good profits?—A. I think it is a
widely accepted utility practice to try to serve as many people on as wide a
market as you can economically, and that will attract investors to the project.
In other words, serve as many as you can at a fair price.

Q. For instance, in the case of the Bell Telephone Company there is a
restriction on their profits, yet there is no restriction on the profits of pipe lines.
I do not suppose there will be many pipe lines built across Canada. To your:
knowledge is there any restriction on the profits you can make?—A. I do not
understand Canadian law very well. :

Q. In the United States is there a limit to the profits a pipe a line can make
there?—A. Yes, there is.

Q. You do not know if there is one here in Canada or not?—A. No.

The CuamMAN: Mr. Matthews of the Department of Transport could
answer that this afternoon. ,

Mr. MurpHY: Are we going to have evidence before the Committee as to
- the cost of the product at the various places? 5
The CrammMan: That is up to the committee.

The Wirxuss: I did not understand the question.

The CramMAN: The question was as to whether the cost at different points
would be available so that we could make a comparison with the present setup
and determine how much savings would be likely to acerue to a given municipal-
Ity or a given commission in a municipality. ,

The Wirness: I believe that the data we are now preparing to present to
the Alberta board would largely answer that question.

Mr. Fereuson: What is that again?

- The Wirngss: I believe that the data we are now preparing to present
to the Alberta board would largely answer your question. That will be
completed about the first of May. ’

The Cuamman: If there are no other questions at this point, Mr. Tolmie
may wish to introduce another witness. .
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Mr. Toumie: Mr. Chairman, before I call on Mr. Natleson, a partner of the
firm of Lehman Brothers in New York, the last witness was asked whether the"
sale of gas on this project would be subject to some kind of control with regard to
price. Now, I only know that you have in most of the provinces of Canada
public utility commissions, and these utility commissions primarily govern the
profit hydro electric companies can make. We have not had much experience
in Canada yet with natural gas companies but my understanding is that these
boards will have jurisdiction.

Mr. Hargness: We have regulations in Alberta. The public utilities com-
mission sets the rates there.

Mr. Toumie: Yes, I understand so, but when it comes to the eastern prov-
inces I understand the provincial utilities commissions will take over control,
and the rate structure will be subject to the particular provincial commission.

Mr. HarkNEss: Yes, I think the setup will be the same as in Alberta.

Mr. Fercuson: The utilities commissions may only dictate the difference
between the purchase price and selling priee, they might have nothing to do
with the pipe lines purchase price. They might say you can make so much
of a profit but that has no bearing” on what the pipe line people are paying for
thagproduct.

Mr. ToLmie: With respect sir, T would suggest that the utility commissions
would assume control and under provincial jurisdiction would have the right
to control the purchase price that the local utility would pay. They would
have to be satisfied with respect to the fairness of that price, otherwise they
would not allow the local city utility to buy the gas from them. They would
dictate a price, as some provinces have done in other types of service such as
electricity and, I believe, in British Columbia they have attempted to do the.
same thing with respect to petroleum and gasoline.

Mr. Fercuson: Are you sure that they have that control? Are you simply
building a pipe line without having appeared before the various utilities com-
missions in each province that will say we will permit you to charge so much
and no more? Are you going blindly ahead to build this pipe line and then
run into provinecial utility ecommissions, who will say they will not allow you
to chaige that amount?

Mr. Toumie: We expect we will have to meet the provinecial utility com-
missions in each provinee, but that procedure is encountered by every pipe
line company in other areas. In the United States where each state utility
commission exercises the same control, that is done.

Mr. Fercuson: And you believe they have control over your selling price
to the local ufility, is that right?

Mr. Toumie: That is right, sir. 1 do not believe the jurisdiction lies with -
the dominion and, therefore, it must lie with the provincial, and they have not
exercised it in the eastern provinces yet because the problem has not come up
to them. We expect they will follow the same procedure as they do in control
of electrical energy, and as Alberta has done within its own borders.

Mr. Greex: I think there is a defect in the Pipe Lines Act which authorizes
the board of Transport Commissioners to put eontrols on oil but not on gas.

The CramrMAN: Mr. Matthews could inform us on that and clear this
point up. :

What is the other point you were going to talk about, Mr. Tolmie?

Mr. Toumie: I was going to introduce Mr. Natleson. He is a partner of
 Lehman Brothers, a firm of bankers in New York. As I mentioned, this firm
has indicated a willingness to undertake the organization of an underwriting
group. I may say briefly that Mr. Natleson is in charge of the industrial
section of Lehman Brothers. : :
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Mr. Morris Natleson, called:

The Wirness: Mr. Chairman, I have been with Lehman Brothers for
about twenty-five years and have been a partner for a number of years. Lehman
Brothers has been associated with a great many large and substantial under-
writings and in the development of a number of new industries. Most notable,
I think, is our experience in, developing the aviation industry in the United
States. We were directly concerned, with most of the major air transport lines
at a time when most other banking houses were a little bit afraid of them from
the financial point of view.

In this case, we feel that we can perform a real service for Canada as
well as for our friends of Delhi Oil Company in making available financial
aid to develop resources which unfortunately exist so far away from your
centres of population and from the area of your country which is in most need
of those resources. As far as our relations with Delhi Oil Company are concerned
we-feel they are competent to develop a pipe line, even one as big as this. They
have built pipe line projects in the past, and have found and developed large
gas reserves. They have gone ahead with their own money in this project to
develop gas reserves in your province of Alberta. We are also impressed with
the calibre of experts they have selected. It may be that when we arrive at
the point where financing will be undertaken, just prior to the construction of
the line, we will find it necessary, with a view to satisfy investors, to make
spot checks of our own with other experts, and for that we will spend our own
money.

This is a very substantial project, a $250 million project, which is about
as big as any project that has been financed in the United States, and it will
require on our part, a very large banking group. We would like very much to
have the co-operation of the major banking houses in Canada to permit us,
through them, to attract Canadian investors to the purchase of bonds as well
as of capital stock. Obviously, at this point we can have very little information
as to specifically what the costs are going to be and what annual charges will
be, since the bond market does not remain static, and this financing is likely
to take place within a period of a year, probably not before eight or ten months.

There was one question asked which is not in my province but I do have a
thought on it. The question was asked about the prices of gas in particular
communities. Gas is usually sold to utilities on the basis of a long term contract,
and that contract is normally made prior to the time that gas is ready for delivery.
At the time the contract is made it occurs to me that the local rate body in each
province would probably want to examine the contract to see that the contract
is suitable for the particular public utility. We also hope that we can line up,
and I think it will be necesary to do so before the pipe line is financed, the
assurance that there is enough gas available in Alberta and under contract to the
pipe line to support the requirements of the users on the other end of the pipe
line. We probably will require contracts, and I think they will be forthcoming,
from major industrial users who will wish to assure their requirements, for a
long period of years. At the time these contracts are written, which probably will
be prior to the time the pipe line is built and prior, perhaps, to the time it is
financed it will be possible to specifically determine what the selling price of the
gas will be.

From the financial point of view and from the marketing point of view,
we will have a pretty good idea of what the pipe line requires to pay its debt
service, to amortize its debt and pay for maintenance, cost of transportation,
ete.; so that the contract will have to be based at that time on these estimates
of cost. s
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And then, again, in answer to a question by one of the honourable gentle=
men—about rate for gas to public utility companies. The contract with utilities
might very well be on a sliding scale so as to provide for reductions in rates
in the future as sales volume increases.

The Cuamrman: I believe that Mr. Warterfield mentioned that this line
is one of the longest ever undertaken, that it exceeds the line which was built
in the United States by some 400 miles. :

The Wirness: That is right, Mr. Chairman. I do not want to minimize
the size of the undertaking; but the cost is somewhat lower than it would be
in the United States; even though there is some difficult terrain, the cost should
be somewhat lower because so much of the terrain is comparatively easy to
build over. As I said, I am not an engineering expert. The engineers will
be the ones to determine the ultimate cost of this line; but it appears to us
to be completely feasible and serve an economic purpose, and can deliver gas
over this route, 2,200 miles, to a point like Montreal at prices competitive with
other fuels.

By the Chairman:

Q. You have built and operated other pipe lines?—A. We have been in
a number of issues of other pipe line companies.

Q. So that you would have the benefit of your experience in their construc-
tion and operation?—A. Yes. We have been in a number of pipe line businesses
—without refreshing my memory as to the details I could not tell you the
lines specifically—but we have been in a number of them. There are four or
five major pipe lines in the United States, and we have participated in financing
most of them.

The committee adjourned to meet again tomorrow March 7, 1951, at
11 o’clock a.m.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

House or ComMons, Room 430,
WebpNESDAY, March 7, 1951.

The Standing Committee on Railways, Canals and Telegraph Lines met at
eleven o’clock a.m. this day. Mr. L. O. Breithaupt, Chairman, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Applewhaite, Beyerstein, Bonnier, Cannon,
Carter, Conacher, Dewar, Ferguson, Follwell, Garland, Gauthier (Portneuf),
Gillis, Green, Harkness, Harrison, Herridge, James, Lafontaine, Lennard,
Macdonald (Edmonton East), MacNaught, Maybank, McCulloch, Mott,
Murphy, Murray (Cartboo), Noseworthy, Riley, Rooney, Ross (Hamilton East),
Shaw, Smith (Queens-Shelburne), Thomas, Thomson, Whiteside.

In attendance: Mr. John Ross Tolmie, Parliamentary Agent; Mr. George
Shattuck, of H. K. Ferguson Company Ltd., Marketing Engineers, Washington,
D.C.; Mr. Morris Natleson, of Lehman Brothers, Bankers, New York City, N.Y.;
Mr. Frank A, Schultz, Vice-President, Canadian Delhi Oil Ltd., Calgary,
Alberta; Mr. W. E. Uren, Chairman, Dominion Coal Board, Ottawa, Ontario;
Mr. W. J. Matthews, Director, Administration and Legal Services, Department
of Transport, Ottawa, Ontario.

The Committee resumed consideration of Bill No. 75, (Letter F of the
Senate), An Aect to Incorporate Trans-Canada Pipe Lines Limited.

Mr. Natl\eson’s examination was continued.
Mr. Uren was called, examined and retired.
Mr. Matthews was called, examined and retired.
Mr. Schultz’s ekamination was continued.

At 12.55 o’clock p.m. the Committee adjourned until Thursday, March

8, at eleven o’clock a.m.
R. J. GRATRIX
Commattee Clerk.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or Commons,
MarcH 7, 1951.

The Standing Committee on Railways, Canals and Telegraphs met this day
at 11.00 am. The Chairman, Mr. L. O. Breithaupt, presided.

The Cramrman: Gentlemen, we have a quorum. We would like to get
started as nearly on time as possible. Yesterday at the adjournment we were
hearing the evidence of Mr. Natleson. Is it now the wish of the committee that
we continue with him at the moment? He was speaking with respect to the
financial end of the company. If there are no other suggestions, I would ask
Mr. Natleson to come forward and to continue with his evidence; following
which the members of the committee may ask him any questions in relation to
the financing.

Mr. Morris Natleson, Lehman Brothers, recalled:

The Wirxess: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yesterday at the close of the
session I was talking about prices and costs. I think it might be advisable for
me to touch very briefly on the price and costs aspects to consumers.

The price of the gas in the first instance will be determined by the cost of
bringing the gas to the consumer and by the price that is paid for the gas in
Alberta.

The price will depend upon the following factors: In the first instance, how
much is paid the producer of the gas in Alberta. That price is fixed by the
province of Alberta. So what we shall do will be to get a long term commit-
ment from the producer of the gas at a price permitted by the province. I
would doubt very much if we were permitted to negotiate a price for the gas
as such.

The second element in cost is the cost of the pipe line itself. In the overall
cost of the pipe line there must be included the rate of interest that has to be
paid on the money. That will determine the cost of transporting the gas
through the pipe line. There are also operating expenses in running a pipe line
which, as a rule—while they look big in amount—are small in relation to the
amount of gas carried through. ,

So there are really three factors which will determine the price of gas,
assuming that we carry a full load of gas through the pipe line; that is, our
original cost of the gas, the cost of the pipe line, the cost of servieing and
maintaining the pipe line, and the cost of paying the interest and other charges
on the cost of the money.

In the first studies, the amount of cost that can be set will be comparatively
small in relationship to the total carrying capacity of the line. The reason for
that is that our gas will be coming into an area which until now has had
comparatively high prices for gas and comparatively low prices for electric
current and other forms of fuel, so that initially we would not expect that the
full capacity of the line would be used.

In determining the price at which this gas will be sold in the first instance,
we will in effect take the total cost of transporting the gas to the market and
divide it by the amount of gas which we think we can sell. That will determine

31
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the initial price and we expect that the initial price must be lower—even if only
moderately lower—than the cost of competing forms of fuel.

Once that price has been set—and it must be lower than competitive prices—
from then on the growth of the use of gas should be very rapid, if it is based
upon all previous experience.

As the market for gas develops, based on competition and a promotional
rate at which we are going to be able to deliver gas, then further decline in the
cost, of the gas to the consumer can take place.

So I think we can summarize it by saying that there will be a moderate
reduction in price to the consumer initially with the opportunity of a very
substantial reduction in price when the full potentialities of the line have been
developed.

Now, before the consumer gets this gas, it must go through a public utility
distribution system. The public utilities in the States and, I presume, your
public utilities here are equally intelligent in carrying on their business. The
practice has been for the rate charged by public utilities for gas which is used
in excess of normal requirements to become lower. In other words, when the
consumer buys more gas to use, let us say, for heating, space heating and water
heating, such increase in sale of gas to the consumer results in giving him a rate
which is lower than his present gas rate, so that for any gas he uses in excess
of his present requirements, over and above them, his rate will become lower
as pipe line costs and the cost of the gas delivered to the public utilities become
lower.

I think I have covered that, question understandably, Mr. Chairman.

The CaAlRMAN: Are there any questions?

Mr. Herrmce: Mr. Chairman, is it in order to ask the witness a few ques-
tions on the financial aspects of the company?

The CrHAlRMAN: Yes.

By Mr. Herridge:

Q. I wonder if the witness could tell the committee why the share capital
18 stated to be $5 million?—A. Mr. Chairman, I think the initial share capital
might be said to have no relationship to the ultimate share capital required.
Five million dollars was selected for purely arbitrary reasons. It represents an
amount which is believed to be adequate to cover the cost of operating this
business until the pipe line starts to be built; but it has no relationship to what
the capital will be in the future. It merely indicates that this is a substantial
business.

Q. Where will these shares be floated? Will it be in New York or in
Canada?—A. There will probably be bonds as well as capital stock. The bonds
will probably be sold privately because that has been the practice in the past.
The reason for it is that the terms and conditions of the bonds have to be
negotiated with direct buyers. Those bonds will be sold in this country as well
a}? in the United States, depending on the willingness of buyers to purchase
them.

As to the share capital, it will be sold; we presume we will have a syndicate
which will include leading houses in the United States as well as leading houses
in Canada and that a substantial amount of the share capital will be made
available to Canadians through Canadian major banking houses.

Q. Could the witness tell the committee the names of the brokers who
would be used?—A. I would like to be excused from that question, Mr. Chair-
man. It could be very embarrassing if I should leave out one of my good
friends through inadvertence.

' Q. What commission is likely to be paid to the brokerage houses?—A. That
obviously would depend on market conditions at the time. The specific price
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at which the securities will be sold will, of course, determine the cost of selling
at that time. So it is very difficult at this point to indicate what the cost of
selling the share capital would be.

On the other hand, the cost of selling the bonds can be pretty well deter-
mined. I think it would represent a fraction of a cent provided it is done
privately. But if it is done publicly, it might run higher than that.

In selling a large amount of common stock, the cost of selling capital stock
might run in terms of percentage, I would say, under ten percent; but I would
not like to be held to that. I do not know of any way I ean determine at the
moment what the cost might be.

Q. Could the witness tell the committee if the holders of the share capital,
let us say, of this $5 million, as opposed to the $245 million of bonds and other
securities—will they control the company?—A. There is some misapprehension. -
I do not think we can have debentures of $245 million. As I indicated before,
share capital of $5 million represents the cost; but I cannot say what might
be necessary before long-term financing can be arranged.

In the United States long-term financing has been done on a basis of
between 75 and 80 per cent in bonds. That would méan something between
$180 million and $200 million in funded debt; and the remaining $50 million
would be in the form of capital stock, approximately, anywhere from ‘$40
million to $60 million in the form of capital stock. -

Q. Have you any idea what the par value of the debentures or the other
securities would be when they are sold?—A. Debentures usually are attempted
to be sold at par, at 100 per cent of par value. That is done by setting an
interest rate which would make it worth while. So the price will be par; but
the interest rate may vary, depending upon conditions at the particular time
that the debentures come to be sold.

By Mr. Applewhaite:

Q. With respect to this eapital, Mr. Chairman, it is not risk capital. Will
it be paid up on an amortization basis, or will it just be a capital debt bearing
interest?—A. The practice with respect to pipe line companies has been to
provide for the paying out of the debentures over a period which represents
the usual life of the field, or something less than the life of the field from which
the natural gas is drawn. In this case 1 imagine that these debentures will be
sold on a basis of an interest rate and an amortization rate which will retire
all the bonds over a period of 20 to 25 years.

Q. Is it the intention of this company to buy and sell gas entirely, or is
it the intention of the company to act as a common carrier, carrying other
people’s gas for a fee?—A. I cannot answer that. I do not know. I would
doubt it, though.

By Mr. Conacher:

Q. What about this new ruling of the SEC in the State of New York,
according to which Canadian capital or Canadian companies cannot raise
money where there are any outstanding options? How could you get around
that to bring in capital for common stock in the case of your company?—A., If
you have no options it would bring it out from the SEC. But if the company’s
options are essential, we might be able to work it out with the SEC and to get
their permission. I think we might be able to get the SEC to make a reason-
able extension.

Q. The same difficulty arose in connection with companies just as big as
your company, under that ruling of the SEC. It applied to Imperial Oil and
everybody else—A. I appreciate that. But our own experience is that upon
reflection and upon proper representation, they have usually adjusted their
point of view in the matter to conform to the realities of the situation; and



34 STANDING COMMITTEE

it is my impression that with respect to Canadian companies which are worthy,
investors have been and will be exempted from the order. :

Q. Ultimately the common stock would control this company, and when
the bonded debt is paid off, control then comes into the hands of the common
shareholders—A. 1 think it is a matter of definition what you mean by
“control”. Actually, the common stock will control the company from the .
very moment that it is sold, because the common stock will elect the board of
directors. The bonds will not have any hand in electing the directors.

Q. That is all T have, thank you.

By Mr. Harkness:
. Q. Mr. Chairman, might I ask the witness who is expected to subscribe
this first $5 million?—A. T believe it is the Delhi Oil Company Limited.

Mr. Scuurrz: Might I hear the question again, if you please?

~ Mr. Hargxess: Who is expected to subscribe this first $5 million? Is any
of it to be sold to the public?

Mr. Scuurrz: We expect that both Canadians and Americans will partici-
pate in this $5 million of shares from the very beginning. It will not be a
situation where it will be subscribed privately by a group of Americans. We
expect 1t will result in Canadians being placed on an equal basis from the very
beginning.

Mr. Hark~Eess: Then I take it that these shares will be placed in the
hands of stock dealers and offered to the general public in the regular way?

Mr. Scuuvnrz:  Yes, sir, through regular channels.

Mr. NosewortHy: ~ Will this stock be sold before the company gets a
permit to build its pipe line?

The Cuairman: I wonder if we might confine our questions to the witness
here and later on we can recall Mr. Schultz, possibly with respect to another
matter. Would that be satisfactory? Are there any further questions?

The Wirness: There will be no stock sold to the public through public
distribution until the pipe line is ready to be built and until all the necessary
permits and necessary contracts for gas are obtained at both ends. I do not
think we can sell stock to the public out of the blue sky.

By Mr. Noseworthy:

Q. How much of this $5 million share capital is likely to be put up prior
to receipt of the permit?—A. Whatever is to be put up will be put up privately.
Obviously the intention is that whatever is needed to get the line to the stage
where contracts can support it will be up to the Delhi Oil Company Limited.

Q. The point I have in mind is this: we may have a considerable number
of these pipe line companies incorporated. It has been said on numerous
occasions that probably not more than one will operate over any one given
route. I am trying to find out just what is the advantage to @ company to
have, let us say, a part of $5 million invested before they know whether or
not they are going to get a permit. I would like to know why so many of
these companies are anxious to become incorporated? Just what advantage
is there in becoming incorporated, in getting a company Incorporated without
knowing whether they can ever get a permit or mot.—A. To answer that
question would require an explanation of the capitalist system and what makes
it work. That is what has developed America and I hope, will develop
Canada,—the fact that people are willing to risk their own hard earned money
to develop a new industry.
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By Mr. Riley:

Q. I understood the witness to say that the initial $5 million capitalization
was what was anticipated to take care of the requirements of the company
up till the time construction was ready to begin. Is that right?—A. I must
have misunderstood the first question but I understand it now. It is a five
million share capitalization. The five million shares will ultimately represent
the capital stock that is to be sold behind the bonds. The amount of money
that is necessary to go into this picture in order to develop this company to the
point of construction has no relationship to that five million shares. It will
go in as either stock purchased to buy some of the shares or go in in the
form of a loan, but there will be enough money put in this company to bring
1t to the point of starting construction, but those five million shares we are
talking about are mot $5 million. It is five million shares which will be
sold at a price to yield whatever is necessary over and above the debt.

By Mr. Murphy:

Q. In your survey, do you expect to deliver gas, say, at Montreal or
Toronto, as cheap as gas now being delivered in Canada through the other
lines?—A. I did not know there was any natural gas being delivered by other
lines. Do you mean manufactured gas? 5

Q. Gas coming in to western Ontario,—Texas gas—A. I could not answer
that question because I do not know the exact situation. I am not an expert
gas man.

By Mr. Lennard:

Q. You did mention that this natural gas would be put on the market
much cheaper than any existing fuels—A. Cheaper than existing manufactured
gas, or coal or oil.

Q. ‘Yes, but we are getting gas from Texas through a pipe line laid through
Windsor. '

Mr. MurpHY: I thought that when you were making your survey you
would know pretty well the prices you could deliver gas for at Montreal,
ISIEaView of the fact that there is now gas coming into Canada from the United

tes.

The CuamrMaNn: I imagine that is more of a technical question that
one of the other witnesses could answer. Mr. Natleson is the banking
connection.

Mr. MurpHY: I assume, Mr. Chairman, that a banking firm would make
a survey of general conditions as part of their own survey.

The CuamrMAN: I do not think they would have the engineering details,
they would probably look at the project from the financial side.

The Wirness: We obviously have looked at the economics of the situation
and the economics include the kind of question you ask, but I cannot answer at
the moment. Unfortunately, in‘the first place, I do not know at what price this
gas can be delivered from the States into that area you mentioned. I do not
know what kind of contract they have. In the second place, we could not
compete with that price in the initial stages of our gas line because that line is
n a fully developed state and it is carrying gas at capacity. Now, eventually
our price will compete with that price but I cannot say it would in the first year
or the second year. g

By Mr. Rooney: ,
Q. I suppose the bonds that you will issue would be first or second mortgage
debenture bonds, so if you were not successful the control of the company would
eventually go to the bondholders, and you people who are putting up the
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initial money would lose out, is that not right?—A. That is the legal aspect
of mortgage bonds. I think we will have the economics of this pretty well
settled before we sell those bonds so that it will appear that the line can operate
even at this moderate capacity and earn enough to pay interest and amortization
on the bonds so they will not go into default.

Q. But if that failed, the bondholders would naturally take over?—A. If
for any reason it failed the bondholders would have the right under Canadian
law to take over the property but they may or may not avail themselves of
that right.

Q. Therefore, the stockholders, you people who are putting up all this
. initial money, could be wiped out and the bondholders would get the whole
thing?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. You are taking the chances?—A. The investors who put the capital
stock in are always subordinate to the interests of the first mortgage bondholders.

By Mr. Riley:

Q. Would the trustee not be represented on the board of directors?—A.
Which trustee, the trustee of the bonds?

Q. Yes.—A. If it is the practice in Canada to do so, yes. It is not the
practice to do so in the United States but we will follow whatever the Canadian
practice is.

The CuamMman: Gentlemen, I believe we have covered this matter pretty
well with Mr. Natleson’s evidence of yesterday and today. I do not want to
hurry things along but unless there are more questions I think perhaps we will
call another witness. Thank you Mr. Natleson.

Yesterday, you will recall that Mr. Gillis brought up a question in
connection with the economic aspects of the situation, particularly as related
to the production of coal. It was suggested that we have Mr. Uren here. He
is here this morning, and I was wondering if you wished to hear him at this
time. Mr. Gillis perhaps might lead off with a question. We will call Mr.
Uren to the head table. Mr. Gillis, you can proceed then and ask a question
of the coal controller.

Mr. W. E. Uren, Chairman, Dominion Coal Board, called:

By Mr. Gillis:

Q. We coal men must stick together. What I had in mind, Mr. Uren, was
how this particular project, when completed and in operation, is going to affect
the coal industry of the maritime provinces. Now, it was brought to our atten-
tion yesterday that no survey for this particular natural gas project was made
east of Montreal. Very few surveys are made east of Montreal! It struck me
during the course of the discussion that if this natural gas project is developed
and goes into the Montreal and Quebec market, which is one of the main
markets for maritime coal, that it would affect in an adverse way the marketing
of our coal, and not only Nova Scotia coal, I am also interested in American
fuel coming into this country. I am a coal miner. They claim that when this
project is completed they can undersell American anthracite in the Ontario and
Quebec markets by at leaset one dollar a ton, and if and when this project is
fully developed it will mean the coal miners in the United States will lose a
large market in Canada. What I am particularly interested in is, whether
you could give us some idea as to how this project is going to affect the Nova
Scotia and New Brunswick industry in the market they have now in Quebec
up to about 100 miles west of Montreal?—A. Well, the inclusion of any other
form of fuel energy always seems to affect the consumption of coal. I mean

R o ,’-,‘ o T
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gas or liquid fuels, plus the hydro. This is borne out by the increased
productivity that there is in the province of Quebec and the lower consumption
of solid fuel. In other words, we know that production in the province of
Quebec is at peaks in practically all areas, whereas consumption of coal has
an total shown a decline in comparison with the increased production.

Over a period of the past five years, or more particularly since the war,
the consumption of coal has gone down. Very fortunately, through the initiative
of the coal industry and with the help of the government, the consumption
of Canadian coal in the province of Quebec has gone up remarkably. I say
remarkably. 1 would not look at totally how much damage it might do. The
Inclusion of gas, I would say, into the province of Quebec, would necessitate,
where the Canadian market is concerned, a considerable change in their
combustion facilities. In other words, not being a technologist, I would say
that industrially they would have to make very considerable changes in their
boilers. The price of the fuel, that is of gas, plus the assured continuity of
service, might determine whether they would change their boilers to the

urning of gas, or whether they would continue to burn coal. For the fore-

seeable future, as far as we can forecast at the present time, the maritime coal
Industry is in this position, that I do not think that gas would make a great
deal of difference for a great mumber of years because we still have many
pockets and gaps in the province of Quebec to fill with maritime coal of a
suitable quality which is not available, and the market for which has not
een undertaken by liquid fuels or the continued importation of American
coals. Now, perhaps I am a little different from Mr. Gillis on this,—I am a
hard rock miner. I consider that one of my duties on the coal board is to do
everything possible in assisting the various coal operators to market Canadian
coal, first of all to the exclusion of competitive solid fuels coming in from
the United States, and secondly, in other forms of fuel energy that are
available.

To summarize I would say, no, that the inclusion of gas over a period of
the next three years, and I cannot forecast for too far ahead, would not be
damaging or serious in any way to the coal mining industry of the maritimes.

Q. I do not anticipate it would myself for a few years, but I look upon
the coal industry of Nova Scotia as the basic industry of that province and -
without it there is not anything else. These pipe lines are going to go into the
large centres of the population, they are not going to fan out into the little
pockets at all. Now, Quebec city and that area between Quebec city and
Montreal up to about Coteau, is about the main market now for Nova Scotia
coal in that province. Now, those pipe lines are definitely going into Montreal,
Where there is a large coal market?—A. Yes.

Q. And they are definitely going through to the city of Quebec?—A. Yes.
Q. Well, T am not opposing this project from the technological standpoint;
1t is progress; but it seems to me that I cannot see any hopes for putting cheaper
fuel into that particular center without wiping out perhaps the economy of the
bart of the country on the other side of it. Perhaps the effect would not be imme-
diate, but T am thinking of what will happen in the next five years or even within
the next ten years. The Canadian government have a considerable investment in
the mining industry of eastern Canada and at the present time they are financing

Y way of loans a large mechanization proposition. I just want to tell you, Mr.

ren, that I am glad you are because it is helping with the marketing of that coal
and the mechanization of that industry. You are doing an excellent job. I
Would not like to see something happen now without due consideration being
&iven to what the repercussions from it would be in the next five or ten years.
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By Mr. Murray:

Q. Mr. Uren, do you consider that the coal industry of Canada is on an

efficiency basis at the present time?—A. We are only talking at the present time
about the eastern part of it, let us stay with the eastern part. They are not on
an efficiency basis in eastern Canada, they are not on the efficiency basis that

they are going to be on; and that is the reason for the expenditure of some $18 -
million to $20 million, in which the government participates to the extent of $7

million—and to a smaller extent with some of the other operators in eastern
Canada. If you want to jump over to western Canada, they have been mechan-
izing for a long period—not only the war years, but since the war years—and if I
might say so, Mr. Chairman, without any detraction from other individuals,

efficiency in the west is of a higher degree than it is in the east. At the same time,

mining conditions in the west are more favourable for it than are mining condi-
tions in the east. But to bring them up to the efficiency they should have in

comparison with their working conditions we have already spent a large amount =

of money; and we are in hopes, and we feel certain, that that expenditure of
money over a period of five or six years in eastern Canada would improve the
efficiency of their production. Perhaps I should explain what I mean by that;
not only will they improve their production, but also the quality of the coal

should improve. They will never become competitive in total amounts of pro- =

duction with their competitors in the United States, because their man-days are

so much greater, and their seams are much easier to work ; which means that even

with a better class of mechanization it will be imposs ssible to get produection up to
anything like a comparable basis with them; but we believe that they most
certainly will improve and must improve their man-day production, and the
cost of that day.

Q. Well, transportation would enter into that—A. Transportation is one
of the chief factors in the inability of the Maritime industry to further satisfy

the Quebec market; and I stick to the Quebec market because a great deal of the
coal, a good portion of the coal gets a subvention, and we do not intend to permit

operabors to move coal into areas on subvention that are more costly to serve than
some of the areas they could satisfy. In other words, we move the coal to the

closest point, cheapest to the taxpayer, and leave the more distant points to be

served by imported fuels.

The CrarrMAN: Gentlemen, this is all very interesting. I know we are all

interested in this general discussion on coal, both in the east and the west, and
we are interested in the general aspect of the points raised by Mr. Gillis.

By Mr. Gillis:
Q. Would you say, as a long range proposition, this project would not have
a serious effect?—A. Not seriously.
Q. Not seriously?—A. If it would be interfering seriously with the opera-

tion in the Maritimes then we are wrong in what we think we are right in, in

mechanizations and so on.

Q. That is what I thought.—A. The inference of the company is that we are '-

wrong there.
Q. On the other hand, if it does not interfere and the market cannot absorb
the gas, the pipe line company are making a bad investment.

By Mr. Murray:

Q. I understand that they are conveying coal in pipe lines down in the
States.—A. Pittsburg Consolidated just started a very small experimental, pilot
~ plant.

that.

Q. Yes, four miles long.—A. Yes, and we have an opportunity of examining
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By Mr. Gillis:
Q. Have you had any representations from the coal industry in Nova Scotia
on this?—A. No. '
Q. None whatever?—A. No.
Q. That is all I wanted to know, it would look then as though the pipe lines
are very foolish to go into that market.

By Mr. Riley:
Q. What percentage of the output of New Brunswick coal would be brought
into Quebec?—A. Did you say, New Brunswick coal?
Q. Yes—A. In 1949 it was 2,851 tons, of the total production of approxi-
mately 500 thousand tons.

By Mr. Harkness:

Q. Mr. Uren, I am sure you know the situation in Alberta. The miners are
very much concerned over the future of their industry, and of their jobs, as a
result of the number of gas pipe lines that are coming into operation. Could you
tell us anything about what effect those particular pipe lines, or any other pipe
lines running east would be as far as the coal industry in Alberta is concerned?—
A. This pipe line is, as I understand it, a trans-Canada pipe line?

Q. Yes—A. Are they going to have offshoots any place along the line?

Q. Yes, they are reckoning on serving Moose Jaw, Regina, Portage, Brandon,
Winnipeg and so on. :

By Mr. Shaw:

Q. Mr. Chairman, may I ask Mr. Uren what he thinks on that?—A. Very
serious, more serious that in the case of the Maritimes.

Q. Might I ask Mr. Uren another question: Do you think that industrializa-
tion resulting from gas export will result in power development from coal which
would offset any anticipated disastrous effect of gas export from Alberta.—A.
Well, that would be a useful thought, but I haven’t given it any study. 3

Q. There appears to be a certain situation associated with that, that in view
of the acute shortage of power in Alberta today and the relative cheapness of
developing power to the use of low grade coal, that it would likely offset.—A. I do
not know whether it would offset, but we are working through committees with
the Deputy Minister of mines out there, Mr. Tanner, and there are discussions
about the construction of power near Edmonton, where we have some of our
cheapest holdings.

The CraarmaN: Are there any other questions?
Mr. Gruus: T just want to ask Mr. Uren one more question.
The Cuamman: All right, one more.

By Mr.Gillis:

Q. Have you any idea what percentage of Maritime coal was used for
domestic purposes in the areas to be served by these pipe lines, as far east as
Quebec city?—A. In the Quebec area—domestic—I could give you more on the
industrial consumption than I can on the domestic. It is pretty difficult to get
the domestic in percentages. I can get it for you Mr. Gillis, but' I have the
Industrial right here.

Q. You do not think it would hurt us very much in the industrial field; but
I am interested in the domestic.—A. I do not think it would hurt us very much
I the industrial, but by far the highest percentage of consumption of Maritime
coal is in the industrial field.




40 STANDING COMMITTEE

Q. It is in the industrial field?—A. Yes. And now, in the Quebec ared the
consumption of Canadian bituminous coal in 1950 was 42-8 per cent, and United
States bituminous was 57-2 per cent. That is approximately the same as it was
in 1944 in the Quebec area. In the Montreal area the consumption of Canadian
coal in 1950 was 53 per cent, and United States was 47 per cent; and that
compares with 7-3 per cent Canadian in 1944 and 92-7 per cent United States.

Q. Therefore, I'd say you are doing a good job mechanizing the mines.

By Mr. Murray: -

Q. Is there not some sort of assistance given Canadian coal in the form of
subvention?—A. Yes.

Q. And they have obtained that during the last three years?—A. Yes.

Q. What is the total sum?—A. I am sorry I haven’t got this year’s figure
for you, because it has not been tabled yet.

Q. No.—A. In 1949-50 we paid out $3,918,000 for 2,386,000 tons of coal;
in 1948-49, $1,679,000 for 1,783,000 tons of coal; in 1947-48, $764,000 for
616,000 tons of coal; and by 1946-47, $1,500,000 for 1,100,000 tons of coal; and
in 1945-46, $1,897,000 for 1,163,000 tons. This year it will be along the lines
of last year. We can’t pay out any more because we can’t move any more coal,
we haven’t got the transportation facilities with which to do it.

The CHamrMAN: Mr. Harkness.

By Mr. Harkness:

Q. Mr. Uren, can you tell us anything about the possibility of gasification
or liquefaction of this Alberta coal and its eventual transportation by pipe line
to the east? In other words is there any possibility that the coal industry in
Alberta might be able either to keep up or to go ahead?—A. Yes.

Q. Because of development of that kind? What can you tell us about
that?—A. I cannot tell you very mueh because, as far as Canada is concerned
our operations on gasification or hydrogenatlon have amounted more or less
to looking or watching briefs on the tremendous experiments they are making
in the United States.

George Hume is here. He is an expert in all these fields. I do not know
whether he is here as a witness but he can certainly tell you more than I can.
We are watchiing very closely what they are doing in the States. Also, as soon
as they revamp the buildings out at the Fuels Division they will have a small
pilot plant for hydrogenation, but there is nothing for gasification up to date.

Q. As far as the Alberta coal industry is concerned it would appear that
the development of pipe lines must go on and there will be future difficulties
along these lines—A. I personally do not agree with that. I still think there
will continue to be favourable markets for Alberta coal.

Q. However you think this pipe line development presents a very serious
threat?—A. Very serious.

The Cuamrman: Well thank you, very much, Mr. Uren. We appreciate
your handling of the situation. I think everybody is satisfied that we have got
the answers to the questions.

Yesterday there were a few other answers asked and we promised to have
Mr. Matthews from the Transport Board here. If you would care to come up
Mr. Matthews I think there are a few questions which the members would like
to clear up.

Mr. J. W. Matthews, General counsel, Board of Transport Commis-
sioners for Canada, called:

The CrARMAN: Mr. Mott, would you like to ask your questions now?
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By Mr. Mott:

Q. Mr. Matthews, last year during the discussion regarding pipe lines,
both east and west from Alberta, it was mentioned that there would be an
agreement, between the United States and Canada that the United States would
pipe gas into Ontario and Canada would pipe gas into the United States on
the west coast. Now I want to ask this. According to the information that I
have received since that time, I understand that, while there is a line from
Detroit and Buffalo into Windsor and it was the intention to expand it—
according to the information we had in the House last year—since that time
the United States has put an embargo on gas coming into Canada. They will
not allow gas to come into Canada that way?—A. Well, Mr, Chairman, I am
sorry I do not know anything about that.

Q. You do not know that there is an embargo on gas coming from the
United States into Canada?—A. No. ;

Q. You do not know if there is any agreement between Canada and the
United States about gas coming into Canada?—A. I do not know that there
is any agreement.

The CHAIRMAN: The matter has not come before the commissioners.

Mr. Conacugr: There is gas coming into Canada from the United States
through Detroit. There is gas coming in at the present time, originating in
Texas.

The WirNess: I am sorry I have no information on it.

By Mr. Ferguson: !

Q. Mr. Matthews, does your department set a maximum of profit that a
pipe line company can make when they are applying for a charter?—A. No, sir.

Q. They can charge or write off the cost of this installation in ten years,
we will say, and the user will have to pay for it. That may be a ridiculous
figure but we have been told it would be written off in twenty-five years.
As far as your department is concerned there is no restriction rpade of virtual
necessity on the amount of profit allowed when the charter is applied for?
—A. That is so. There is no restriction. i

Q. In other words this could be written off by the cost charged to the con-
sumer in ten years and, from then on, this .pipe line would probably be the
only method of transporting this valuable asset to the consumers of Canada.
The owners could charge whatever they felt like according to their charter.
There would be no supervision by your department?—A. There is no control
by our department, that is true. There is the constitutional question which we
went into very carefully at the time the pipe lines bill was before parliament.
It appeared at that time, and I believe it is still the opinion of the Department
of Justice, that the dominion has no jurisdiction over the prices charged to the
consumers of gas. That matter is up to the provinees. ' o

Q. The provinces have jurisdiction by way qf the public utilities com-
missions, and they have supervision over the local distributors.—A. Yes.

Q. But have the provinces the right to interfere with a company operating
under a dominion charter, and set a price at which the companies can sell to
the local municipalities or the local opera’oors?_ Must the provinces not say
these people have a charter and they are permitted to charge whatever they
can. The companies can say they only make a profit that will pay the stock-
holders 6 per cent, 7 per cent, or 8 per cent. It is like Bell Telephone. They
say our cost is this much and therefore we are not robbers; we are making
only a reasonable profit. Does not the province supervise only with respect to
the charge by the actual retailer of the product?—A. I see what you mean
but T think the province has jurisdiction over the price gas is sold for in the
province, :
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Q. You just think so?—A. I think so.

Q It mlght be possible that there is no supervision over what the plpe
line eompanies can charge to the public utilities in the various provinces. The
control would come over the local public utility in every province?—A. That
might be but it would work back to the price the pipe line company charges
the public utility.

Q. They could prove they were paying a certain figure and making a
reasonable profit over that, but there is the possibility this pipe line could make
a most unreasonable profit, something which is not permitted in the United
States but which is permitted in Canada?—A. I think that would be within the
control of the province.

Q. When they apply for a charter to the Security Exchange Commission in
Washington they are asked what profit they are going to make, and they are
not allowed more than a reasonable sum.

Mr. MurrHy: We have a commission in Ontario.

Mr. Rooxey: Competition would look after the prices.

Mr. MurpHY: They have to go before the commission to get the price
established.

Mr. Morr: The pipe line or the local authority?

Mr. MurpHy: The merchandiser; the gas company which we have in
Ontario has its rates set by the gas controller.

Mr. Morr: That is the retailer.

Mr. MurpHY: No, the price the company has to sell the gas at—that is
my understanding.

Mr. Mort: The retail company? I do not think there is any control, but
I hope there will be.

Mr. MurpHY: There is control over the pipe line company that brings the
gas in.

Mr. Mort: Is there a restriction on the price they sell at?

Mr. MureHY: They have to go before the board to have the price set.
When there was a limitation on gas during the war, the matter that was men-
tioned a few moments ago, the question of the rise in price disturbed many people,
and it had to go before the board at that time.

Mr. Morr: I think it should be established by every member of this
committee that pipe lines companies must have some control over the prices
they ean charge—control either by the provinces or the dominion. If not, people
will think that they have been granted this charter, that it has been approved by
the members of the House of Commons, that it has been gone into thoroughly and
that everything is all right. Even though the local authority may be fairly
well restricted to a certain figure, restricted by the commission in Ontario or in
the other provinces, yet the pipe lines might make an excessive profit.

The CramrmaN: That is not within our jurisdiction. The Transport Com-
missioners have to pass on these various pipe lines after the province of Alberta
gives them the right and the licence to go ahead. So, the matter is not within the
jurisdiction of this committee.

Mr. Morr: No, but as a committee we migh’s say that it would not pass
if the Transport Commissioners did not have some restriction. Unless that is so
I do not think the members who are sent here to protect the public should pass
the charter. It cannot go before the Board of Transport Commissioners unless
it is passed by this committee.

1 am not trying to delay this in any way, shape or form but I am looking
to the future
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By Mr. Riley:

Q. Is it not so, Mr. Matthews, that the rates for services of public utilities
are matters for the provinces to control?—A. Yes, that is so. The dominion has
no jurisdiction over the prices charged.

Q. It is a matter for the public utility boards or such similar commissions
ag are set up in the provinces?—A. That is my opinion.

Q. That applies to telephone rates, gas, electricity, and all that sort of
thing? :

Mr. Green: No, it does not apply to telephone rates.

The CaamMman: Mr. Green, do you wish to have the floor?

Mr. GreeN: It does not apply to telephone rates because, in the provinee
of British Columbia our company is governed by the dominion.

The Wirness: Yes, the Bell Telephone Company and the interprovinecial
telephone companies come under the Railway Act and they go before the board.

Mr. Rooney: Mr. Matthews, do you think that as far as price at which
gas is sold is concerned, it would be guided by supply and demand. They can
make no unreasonable profit in my opinion, because they would not get sales
and other fuels would take their place. Does not this all come right down, as
far as gas is concerned, to supply and demand?

The WirNess: Yes, I suppose the competitive angle would have some
pearing on it.

Mr. Morr: It does not have any bearing on it necessarily. If they can
produce this gas in the city of Toronto at a certain figure, at a much lower
figure than that for heating homes by coal, then they can step up their price
to the retailer and simply say that it is still lower for the user. He may save
a small fraction as against the cost of heating by coal, but it still may be an
exhorbitant price to charge the retailer or distributor of this gas, which is God’s
gift to the people of Canada. Supply and demand may not have any bearing at
all. Certainly they would not be crazy enough to make this large expenditure
and charge prices so high that nobody would use the gas, but there is a possi-
bility that they will charge prices that are ridiculous. This is a public utility
and it is a question in the minds of our own people whether it should be ccn-
trolled by the government and gas distributed to the people at actual cost.

The Wrrness: - All I can say is that the dominion has not got jurisdiction.
It is a matter for the provinces.

Mr. Herripge: I would like to ask this question. The people holding these
interprovineial charters for the carrying of gas and oil are carriers. We have
heard that in the committee before. They are common carriers of gas and oil.
On what basis does the Transport Board distinguish between common carriers
of gas and oil—interprovincially—and the ccmmon carriers on the railroads
whose rates they control? : MY

The Wirness: That is a matter of carriage. There is a provision in the Pipe
Lines Act that a carrier of oil may be declared to be a “common carrier” and
then the rates of course have to go before the board—but that is for the
carriage. Gas is in a different category because we are told by the American
experts that it is impractical to call a carrier of gas a “common carrier”. The
gas gets all mixed up and there must be provision for storage. So, there is no
provision in the Pipe Lines Act for carriers of gas to be declared “common
carriers”. There is a provision regulating common carriers of oil. The board
has nothing to do, however, with the price fixed for the sale of gas.

Mr. AppLEwnHarTE: The Board of Transport Commissioners, and no other
body of your department, has any authority at the present time to compel a
company of this sort to act as a common carrier or to handle anyone’s gcods?

The Wirness: That is so, as'long as they stick to gas.
81600—2
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By Mr. Green: -

Q. Let me get this clear on this matter of control of rates. An oil pipe line
is a common carrier under the Pipe Lines Act?—A. It can be declared to be one.

Q. A gas pipe line is not?—A. That is so. .

Q. There is provision in the Pipe Lines Act that the Board of Transport
Commissioners may make orders ors regulations with respect to all matters
relating to traffic, tolls, or tariffs?—A. Yes.

Q. That applies only to o0il?—A. That is right.

Q. There is no such provision with respect to gas?—A. That is right. !

Q. But is it a fact this provision for. setting a toll or tariff is only for
the carrying of the oil and does not apply to the sale of the oil to a distributing
company >—A. That is so, Mr. Green.

Mr. RiLey: Could we not have a witness brought here who would establish
to our satisfaction who might have control of the rates from the source right
through to the retailers in each of the provinces? That would clear this
matter up.

Mr. LenNarp: That is a matter of economics. Competition with other
fuels will regulate prices.
The CuHARMAN: It could be done, Mr. Riley. What is the wish of the
committee? |

Mr. Rooxey: I think the last answer is correct; that competition with other
fuels will set the price.

The CaarMAN: You can give us that at a later date. can you not?

By Mr. Shaw:
Q.+Speaking of the common carrier angle with respect to this question, is

it true that while the Board of Transport Commissioners has not been given

the authority to declare any pipe line to be a common carrier as far as gas

is concerned, that it could do so? In other words, that it does have the legal

right to so declare it?—A. No, Mr. Chairman. The legislation does not cover it.

Q. I mean this: that while the legislation does not cover it, the authority

to do so does rest with the department?—A. That is so.

The CuARMAN: Thank you very much, Mr. Matthews, for coming here
today. i
Returning now to the main subject of the bill, might T ask Mr. Tolmie if
he has any other witnesses that he wishes to call? I notice that he has maps
here for distribution.

Mr. Toumie: Yes, Mr. Chairman. Unless there is a witness you would
like to have recalled for further questioning, I do not think there is anything
more we wish to add. I might say that those maps were culled from the
Oklahoma Engineering reports, and we could not get them photostated. They
would not fit the photostating arrangements. However, there are 24 copies
of them here. :

~ There are two maps. One shows generally the route of the main transmission
line. The other shows the projected gathering system in Alberta. But we
must indicate to you that the gathering system projected is only tentative. It
is based on the known gas field in Alberta. That gathering system will stretch
out to whatever gas fields are discovered and available within economical reach °
of the pipe line, including the Peace River district.

The CuamrMan: I wonder if Mr. Schultz would come forward while the
members have these maps before them. We promised to have the maps available
here today. The members might want to ask Mr. Schultz a few questions.
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Mr. Frank A. Schultz, recalled:

The CuatrmMaN: Is there anything you want to say about it, Mr. Schultz?
Mr. Schultz has pointed out that the map is fairly self-explanatory; but if
any of you are interested in particular phases of it which do not appear, or are
nterested in municipalities or constituencies—from the point of view of
members of Parliament—which are not covered, now is the time to ask your
questions. '

By Mr. Whiteside:

Q. Mr. Chairman, I think it was mentioned yesterday that the pipe line
would follow the main line of the Canadian Pacific generally. But I notice
here that it follows a straight line directly east from Princess. Is it contemplated
to put it through in a straight line or to follow the track through the prairie
region?—A. No, sir. The idea is to build it as nearly to a straight line as
possible in order to save in pipe costs and ditching costs. There may be some
detours necessary, but primarily it would be just a straight line.

Q. What would be the approximate smallest concentration of population
serviced? Suppose this line were adjacent, let us say, to a rural community or
to a village of 50 or more. Would it be possible to serve them? Would it be
feasible on an economical basis?—A. If there was a small community situated
let us say within a half mile of the pipe line, we would endeavour to serve it.
The principle is that a pipe line has to serve the most people possible, and we
would endeavour to serve that small community.

Q. What would be the smallest number of persons who could be served
economically in a distribution center by making a tap into your pipe line?
Would it be 50 or more, or less than that number?—A. Mr. Chairman, that is
a most, difficult question to answer. It would depend entirely on the amount
of gas to be consumed. If an industry be locafed, let us say, in a small
community, other than the general residential requirements of that community,
it would follow.

By Mr. Ferguson:

Q. Mr. Chaiman, what type of industry would use a considerable quantity
of this gas, and how much would that industry have to use before it would
be advisable to run a pipe line, let us say, 40 miles? If a community has, let
us say, a population of 10,000, would it be possible with that population to run
a distance of 30 miles from your main line for the purpose? Would it be
profitable?—A. Certainly, if the industrial demand were large enough. Even
30 or 50 miles would make no difference.

Q. Would you say that a pipe line to a community of around 10,000 would
be feasible?—A. Yes.

Q. What type of industry uses the largest quantity of your gas?—A.
Practically any industry which is now using coal or other fuel could
utilize natural gas. The important thing is that we would sell gas at a price
under their present fuel costs and when we did that, they would want to convert,.
There is one exception, the steel industry, which has to have coal in order to
reduce its iron ore. : '

Q. Well, consider a community of around 10,000 which is using, let us say,
8,000 tons of coal a year. Would it be profitable to strike off from your main
line for a distance of 40 miles with a spur line in order to feed them?—A. Your
question is too technical for me to answer. I have not got the data.

. Q. But have you any idea?—A. No, sir. I do not have any rule of thumb
to go by. :

81600—23
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By Mr. Shaw:

Q. Mr. Chairman, might I ask who will have the final say as to whether
or not a given community shall or shall not be supplied with gas? The company
may assert that while it is economically feasible, there is just not a wide enough
margin of profit to lead up to supplying that community. Will the company
have the final say as to whether that community be served, or will the Board
of Transport Commissioners or some other authority determine it?—A. Mr.
Chairman, I think that is a legal question and I am sorry, but I cannot answer it.

Q. I think it is a question which may come up all along this line.—A. I think
we will be glad to serve any community we can serve economically.

Q. But it would be your definition of “economically”.—A. We will have a
transmission company which is a service company, to serve the most people.
We would gladly bend over backwards to serve the smaller communities, but |
we could not do it at a loss.

Q. I realize that—A. To do so would place an extra inerement of cost
upon the gas supplied to other communities. It obviously would not be fair.

Q. Would you supply gas to any locality which might determine that it is
economically feasible to do so?—A. Yes, sir. If some community should desire
natural gas and should lay a lateral line to our main line, we would certainly
supply them with the gas they needed.

By Mr. Murray: ¥
Q. I mnotice that your map does not show the Peace River country. Have
you any idea of the potentialities in the Peace River country at this time?
Would there be, let us say, eight million feet of gas in reserve there?—A. Our

thinking at this time on the Peace River reserves is that there are possibly a

trillion and a half to two trillion feet available in the Peace River country.

Q. That is, in British Golumbia and adjacent in Alberta—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That would be enough, in itself, to supply a pipe line?—A. We think
that the Peace River reserves will increase in importance; and at such time as
we can justify an additional two or three hundred miles of gathering system
to go up there and get it, we will be prepared to lay the line and go up and
get the gas from any of the fields now discovered or to be digcovered in the
future.

Mr. Murray: Thank you!

By Mr. MacNaught:

Q. With respect to the question asked just now by Mr. Shaw, do you think
it would be largely left to the discretion of local public utility boards or to
your company to supply gas to certain areas?—A. I do not know enough about
provincial law to answer your question. I would just say that if we were
directed to sell gas to a community, we would certainly do so.

The CuamMaxN: I imagine that Mr. Shaw was referring to communities .

which were so small that they did not have any public utility commission. E

Mr. SHAW: But you would have your provineial board. However, I doubt
if they would have the authority to supply any given community. I might say
that one of the complaints in my province now is that some communities claim
that they should be served and are not being served today. In some cases
companies have said: you set up your local company and we will supply you
with the gas. But many of these small communities do not have the capital
available.

By Mr. Herridge: ‘
Q. I think that Mr. Shaw’s point is very well taken. We have railroads
in Canada running branch lines in services at a loss because they are public

)
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service corporations and they have to give those services even though they are
operated at a loss, and that loss is spread over the rest of the population of
Canada. Then, take the case of telephone companies. There are many small
places with telephone companies operating although they do so at a loss to the
companies concerned. Then again, take the case of the Power Commission
of British Columbia. It serves many communities at a loss, but the loss is
carried by the community as a whole.

In view of what the witness has said, could we expect a small community
to be served at a loss? To do so would mean increasing the rates generally.
But in view of this being an almost national public service organization all
the people along the line could be charged with the cost which would be very
small in relation to the total cost of operation, because the communities are
small—I mean the operation of all this service by the company?—A. The desire
of the transmission company is to sell the maximum amount of gas. If a small
community can be serviced, we would want, and we would need to do it. The
more gas that we can put through the line, the smaller the differential becomes
between the cost of presently used fuels and the cost that we have generally.
In short, if there be a small community, we would be happy to serve it.

By Mr. Ferguson: ;

Q. You mean that you would be happy to serve a community and that
you would bend back to serve that community?—A. Exactly, sir. :

Q. Mr. Chairman, this is a private company which is owned by stock-
holders” I have noticed that stockholders will bend back just about as far as
necessary in order to sell their product. But stockholders do not exhibit much
In the way of generosity. Personally, I do not appreciate any company in which
I own stock being overly generous. In short, I want the profits. We are con-
sidering the granting of a charter to a national venture. I do not own any
stock in it and probably I never shall unless it is going to have a free hand
with tremendous profits, in which case I will jump in with the rest of them. My
point is that a pipe line company will bend back as far as is necessary to sell
their product over present methods of heating and cooking—A. The pipe line
has to sell its gas and the only wav it can sell its gas is to bring its price pro-
gressively downward to a point where more people will want to use it. If we
over-price our gas, no one will want to buy it. They will prefer to buy fuel oil.

Q. Yes, but this country is very cold and it is not optional whether you heat
vour house or not. It is compulsory to do so. Therefore, you should have no
difficulty in selling gas if you can undersell the present methods of heating.

By Mr. Riley:

Q. I would like to ask the witness this: would not the service to the smaller
communities depend upon convenience and necessity as the development pro-
gresses, as is the case with all other public utilities?—A. That is true. The
only yardstick we know is to measure it on an economic basis. If the community
is large enough and close enough to the pipe line we will be happy to serve it.
If the community is small and far removed from the pipe line where it could
be served only at a loss, then our inclination would be that we could not serve
that community.

Q. And you would be governed in that respect by the Board of Transport
Commissioners, would you not?>—A. By whatever agency had the jurisdiction.

By Mr. McCulloch:
Q. Would consumers off the route of your main pipe line have to pay a
higher rate for their gas than those on the main line? In other words, consumers
far removed would not be able to get gas at the same price as in a large city?—
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A. Tt would depend. The communities that are nearer the Alberta fields,
generally speaking, would be served at a lower cost than the communities in
Ontario.

Q. But where your lines go into a small community your prices would have
to be a little higher?—A. Yes, sir. That is true.

By Mr. Noseworthy:

Q. I would like to follow the objection raised by Mr. Ferguson. This
charter, we will say, is granted but no provision is contained in the charter
regarding rates. Let us assume that this company builds the line from Alberta
to Montreal. Ten years from now industries along that line, as well as
domestic consumers, have been converted to the use of natural gas. Nobody
has any authority to regulate those rates except the provinces, and the position
is, will the provinces be in a position to say to this gas company, you are
making an exorbitant profit. When the major part of industry and domestic
consumers have already converted to the use of natural gas, this company will
have a monopoly on their supply. It seems to me there should be, before that
charter is granted, some clause in it saying that that company must limit their
profit to a eertain amount. I can see where the province is going to be up against
a monopoly, and completely helpless as far as rates are concerned. Installations
will have been made and prices hiked up to just as much as the traffic will bear,
and we will find we are completely at the merey of that monopoly.

Mr. Fercuson: I do not see that the provinces should have the jur'\sdiction
to say what prices this company should charge.

The Cuarrman: There is no use getting into that discussion now.

Mr. Fercusox: If they did have that right, one province would decide that
the price was too high and would force the company to sell gas at another figure
which might be so low that the company could not distribute it to the other
provinces who felt the price was right. I think you will find that a province
has not the right to tap into a natural gas pipe line and say, you can deliver gas
in this province only at a certain figure. As I said, this might have the effect of
shutting off the supply of gas to the other provinces. I believe the only body
which has any jurisdiction over the price you can charge is the dominion
government, not the provincial governments.

The Cuamrman: Mr. Schultz is not in a position to answer that.

By Mr. Whiteside:

Q. In referring to this gathering system here, the line is taken off at
Princess. Now, you said yesterday that you were carrying out some work on
some wildeat discoveries in Alberta. Is there any chance that the main lead
might be changed from Princess to some other portion of the field?—A. Well, it
is entirely possible it could adjust slightly. If new fields were found in this
general Princess area, of continuing and substantial quantity of gas, then the
gathering system could change in some general aspect.

By Mr. Murphy:

Q. T notice in this memorandum that was sent around to us, and also from
your map which, by the way, shows a red line going from Toronto to Stratford,
that you hope, you expect, to ship gas to the old gas and oil fields in western
Ontario as your storage. Can you tell me what fields you expect, to store gas in
during the summer months in western Ontario?—A. At the present time we
cannot. We have had a consulting geologist evaluating some of the old fields
in southern Ontario. We know that there are numerous fields that are capable
of gas storage but we have made no attempt to purchase any of these fields as
we feel that is something that should be done after the pipe line is in operation.
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Q. Do you know anything of the company that is now bringing gas into
Ontario?—A. Generally, ves.

Q. Have you any relationship with that company?—A. No.

Q. None, whatsoever?—A. No.

Q. Just one more question which I wanted to ask a while ago. In view of
your coming into this area I assume that someone in your organization knows
the cost of gas that is coming into Ontario?—A. We know generally ; specifically,
we do not. We have read the newspapers to the effect that Tennessee has
proposed to supply gas in the southern part of Ontario. One aspect to that, we
think, is very important. The gas that will come into southern Ontario from the
Uni_te('l States has been classified as dump gas, which is gas that will be delivered
during the summer months.

Q. I am talking about gas that is coming in now. Have you any idea what
the price of that is?—A. Just very generally. We feel that at the beginning of
our project in its first stages, the gas that we will deliver to this area is within
a competing range with their costs, within a general range. We do feel that
this gas that is coming up from the United States is subject to the jurisdiction
of the federal power commission which by precedent has said that it will always
be a dump load proposition, meaning that when there is demand for it in the
United States it will be cut off from Canadian users. On the other hand, our
line that we propose will supply an increasingly large amount of gas year after
year to this eastern market. In the one case as the population in the United
States grows the gas that is imported from the United States now will gradually
diminish, whereas our project will increase its supply through the years.

Q. Is there any territory other than the thickly populated cities like Toronto
and Montreal where you might have storage comparable to what you have in
southern Ontario?—A. There are some artificial gas storage facilities, steel
storage, around the country, but they are of minor importance.

Q. In your own experience, have you stored gas in other gas fields
previously ?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you did not lose much gas?—A. If you can count on a 15 per cent
factor you are safe. In other words, you can afford to lose 15 per cent and still be
in good shape.

By Mr. Conacher:

Q. This company will have no monopoly on serving the small communities
referred to. For instance, in Vermilion, Alberta, there is a small company serving
the community from the gas fields there, and as independents drill in places
surrounding these areas,—Vegreville is another, I think,—in those areas that
gas will be used for local consumption independent of any of these broader pipe
lines. Further, on the question of price a question that seems to be worrying
the committee, when they get down into Ontario they will run into competition
with, for instance, Union Gas, and they will have to undersell them or sell with
them. As far as charging an exorbitant profit is concerned Union Gas have been
in business for years, getting their gas in Ontario, so this concern, bringing gas
over the long distance they do, in all likelihood it will cost them more to produce
gas in Ontario than it does Union Gas, as far as price in concerned. I do not
- think the committee should tie anybody’s hand in connection with making
a fair profit in producing something that is going to be so valuable to'all of
Canada. I may say further that we do not have all the gas in the world in
Canada; the Montana and Texas fields in one day could vroduce more sas than
we all could use and unless these opportunities are taken advantage of while
people are putting up the capital to bring that preduct down here, there is a
possibility that Americans will run pipe lines up to our borders and make it so
attractive that our own gas production would be lost to this country.




50 STANDING COMMITTEE

By Mr. Harkness:

Q. In connection with this gas gathering system that you provided us with
a map of, Mr. Schultz, is that an integral part of your estimated $250 million
construction or do you propose to have a separate Alberta charter for this gas
gathering system, a separate company?—A We consider the entire project as
a single unit and the reason for it is that the gas has to be purchased and
gathered -at the cheapest possible price and if the gathering were done by a
separate unit it would be entitled to some increment in profit on the gathering. =

We do not propose that the gathering and the main transmission line will be
operated other than as a single unit with one overhead.

Q. You probably know that there are one or two other projected gas °

gathering systems in Alberta. In the event that one of these companies gets

a charter from the Alberta government and builds the gas gathering system,
are you then prepared to buy your gas from it and not build it yourself ?—A. If

someone else had a charter we would be forced to buy from them. We appreciate
the Alberta commission has control over the gathering system, but we think

that if someone else owned the gathering system it would mean higher prices.

Q. In other words, you are prepared, even if you do not get the right to =
build this gathering system, to go ahead and build a transmission line to the
east just the same?—A. We want to build a gathering system, because we have

to supply the gas at the cheapest cost we can.

Q. But what I am getting at is this: If you do not get the right to build
a gathering system are you still prepared to go ahead with the transmission

system?—A. It would not kill the project. We just know the gathering system
has to be an integral part of the project to save that additional increment

of cost.

Q. In other words, the proposition would be much more attractive to you |

if you were able to have a complete gathering system of your own throughout

that country?—A. Yes sir, for the very reason that the cheaper we can buy
the gas and the cheaper we can sell the gas in the east thie more customers we
are going to have, and the more customers we have the more gas we are going

to sell and the better off we will be.

Q. Where are you building your own gas lines about which you spoke =
yesterday?—A. In this general Cessford area, roughly 32-4 miles north of -

Princess. We have three fields southwest of the Cessford area—

The CrHalrrMAN: Would you mind raising your voice a little? I do not j

think the people down here can hear the conversation at all.

The Wirxess: I will start over. We have three fields in the general‘ :

Cessford area shown north of the Princess; and approximately 12-14 miles,

some such distance as that, southwest of the Cessford area we have a field 3

that we call the Countess area. We own an area here in the general Cessford
field in which we have two completed wells and one now drilling. We have

the Picardville field and the Cardiff field—that is shown at the north end of

the map. We own the Picardville field. We have a field called the Royal Park,

in the general area east of Morinville. We are now drilling a new dlscovery 4
that is approximately 12 miles south .of the Castor area; and we have discovered,

within the last sixty days, a field just north of Castor one whlch we call the
Link Lake area, a new field.

By Mr. Harkness:

Q. Where do you anticipate getting the major portion of your gas from?—
A. Well, I gave you those figures. We estimate that the quantify that would
be available from, or that we could produce from our own fields would be

sufficient to supply the 365 million.

S
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Q. The biggest field, of course, is this one down here at Pincher Creek?—
A. Yes sir, that is right. We have tested, but we are reserving the Pincher Creek
field. The corporation which owns that field thought they could deliver 165
million feet of sour gas per day; that with 125 million feet from the other pipe
line would give us our 450 million.

Q. I see that you have a line running from the Pendant D’Oreille right
down to the southern border of the province. Do you consider that that field
1s essential to your project?—A. We are carrying 48 million feet of gas that may
be used somewhere elge. That is just a small part out of a flow of 365 million

‘feet. It may be that we will need the Countess area, then we have the district
up here known as Link Lake.

Q. The reason I am asking these questions is that there is now before
parliament the bill relating to another company which proposes to take gas from
that field into Montana for use by the Anaconda Copper Company.—A. Yes sir.

Q. And that is why I was wondering whether you considered this field
essential to your project?—A. We projected a lateral of some 27 miles down
through—27 plus 14—and there are some wells, some fields in there that we
anticipate being able to buy.

Q. Would you anticipate any difficulty with the gas of the field owned by
the Calgary Gas Company, which is not presently active, and which is only
about 14 miles from the Pendant D’Oreille field?—A. Well, as far as we are
able to tell the Alberta gas company have not made any effort to produce a gas.
I understand it is shut down at the present time; therefore, it is a prospective
gas purchasing contract for us.

Q. Perhaps I should clarify what 1 was saying a little more; you would
like to have this field which is only 40 miles from the border, the Pendant
D’Oreille, but I take it that you do not consider it essential?>—A. I would say
that other than Pincher Creek, that no single field is an indispensible field if

' we can make up the amount of gas from reserves that we have in this system,
- or from reserves still to be discovered.
Q. And you must have Pincher Creek in order to produce the volume you-
want.—A. Yes. :

By Mr. Murphy:

Q. You said that you would get so many tons of sulphur?—A. Yes, in the
case of one of the fields there the chemical analysis is approximately 15 per cent
acid gas; 8 per cent sulphur sulphide and 10 per cent sulphur oxide.

Q. Would it be part of your operation to obtain sulphur?—A. That is a
matter of negotiation. We could put a plant there to fix the sulphur, the sulphide
will be fixed, and produce an amount of sulphur which will add materially to
Canada’s natural resources; I would say, to the extent of 350 tons a day over
the period of the useful life of the line, a matter of 25 or 30 years; and it is our
understanding that that represents about a quatter of the total requirements
at the present time for sulphur in all of Canada. That would be a very useful
contribution to our national economy. :

The Cramman: Yes, there is a great shortage of sulphur.

By Mr. Murphy: ;

Q. I wonder if you could tell us in the light of your experience what it
would cost you to produce sulphur?—A. Well, the actual fixing of the sulphur
1s not a very expensive proposition. We anticipate being able to fix this sulphur
In a plant which would cost less than a million dollars.

Q. You would build a factory for the purpose?—A. Yes sir. Considerably
less than a million dollars I would say. The big item, of course, is in the plant;
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the overhead for operating the plant is not very great, it would only require
three or four men to operate it.

Q. Would you be in a position to give us any idea of what the cost would be
per ton?—A. I could obtain the figures for you. We have fields in northwestern
Mexico with-respect to which we have worked out very exact cost information;’
but I regret that, from memory, I would not be able to tell you. I would be glad
to get it for you. ,

Q. I feel that it would be good. for us to have that information; no doubt,
the defence department people would be very interested in having it—A.And,
of course, the pulp and paper companies are very greatly interested in an
improved supply of sulphur for that industry.

By Mr. Applewhaite:

Q. Is it possible—and has any consideration been given to this—that your
company might carry gas for other companies?—A. No, sir; by its very nature
a gas pipe line could not operate as a common carrier. What I mean by that is
this, that we would be required, prior to financing this line, to obtain firm con-
tracts with respect to the operations, at both ends of the line. You will have to
have firm contracts for the sale of your product, as well as for its supply. There
is no capacity left for the line to act as a common carrier.

~ Mr. MurpHY: I would just like to follow up one point. Mr. Schultz said a
moment ago that he would get us certain figures in respeect to this matter of the
production of sulphur. I suggest, Mr. Chairman, that when he does that he gets
a copy of the material on sulphur production for the use of each member of the
committee. : '

The Cuairman: Yes, that would be a good idea, if you can do that, Mr.
Schultz.

The Wirness: You are speaking of the development in western Canada?
Mr. MurpHY: Yes.®

By Mr. Shaw:

Q. Earlier today Mr. Conacher referred to the fact that a number of the
larger industries in Ontario are now being supplied with gas from local wells,
and that being the case they obviously would get the supply at a more attractive
rate than it would be possible for them to get gas from Alberta; and I was
wondering how that would apply to communities which might be served by this
new pipe line. Would the witness indicate whether his company will or will not
have the final say as to which communities are to be served? Surely, his answer
to that is something which you as a company would have to know. I think we
should have that information. The point I am interested in there, Mr. Chairman,
is this. A small community such as the one in which I live, which has a popula-
tion of 1,300, is fairly surrounded by pipe lines and yet it is possible that we
might be without gas.—A. Well, our attitude with regards to supplying all
communities is that I think it has been demonstrated already that we are com-
petitive, and the whole of our effort would be directed toward supplying an
adequate service. You see, our very existence depends on the kind and quantity
of service we are able to give. ‘

Q. But your company has the right to determine that, hasn’t it?—A. Well, I
think there is a legal aspect to it.

The Cuairman: Well, gentlemen, it is getting close to the time for adjourn-
ment.

Mr. NoseworTHY: Before we adjourn, Mr. Chairman, I think we should have
some information on the constitutional provisions which render it impossible for
a pipe line company of this kind to be classified as a common carrier. As I see it,
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they should be in exactly the same position as was the oil pipe line company whose
bill was before parliament last year, and who come under the jurisdiction and
control of a federal authority: Personally, I do not see why we should throw that
responsibility back on the provinces in a case like this.

_ The CuatrMAN: Well, Mr. Noseworthy, I do not think there is anything that
this committee can do about it. I mean, that this‘committee has no direction, no
reference, of that kind. We can get the information, certainly; but that won’t
change the law.

Mr. NoseworrHy: I suggest that we should review that point and prepare a
recommendation on it.

The Caamrman: We will make a note of that.

Mr. Harkness: I do not think a gas pipe line would be in the same position.
In the case of the oil pipe line company you have a firm contract to deliver specific
volumes of commodities. ;

Mr. Greex: Is there not some difference in carrying oil? They ean block out
& certain amount of oil which is to be delivered to or for another company.

Mr. Warresioe: That is right, and there is another reason too; this oil is
delivered to the refinery and is refined, and the oil pipe line company delivers a
specified amount, let us say ten thousand gallons to ‘a certain customer. In that
way, the situation is different. Z 3

Mr. MurpaY: Yes, and gas has a lot of air in it.

The Crairman: I do not know just how soon we can come to a consideration

of the bill itself, but I think we should get there as soon as we can. Shall the
committee sit again tomorrow at 11 o’clock?

Some hon. MeMBERS: Agreed.

The committee adjourned to meet again tomorrow, March 8, 1951, at 11
o’clock a.m,



2 sl A R
S LA s
E v [







SRR oy - Loy ki S o o o s Mt R TRE . A
.
. .
;
%
: .
v
~ 7 #
A '
g

\
' \ “
‘ {
/ \
-~ ¥ ]
: y / -~
§ I
'
1 N
2y \ :
)
Bel I ) ;
s ! \ s
4 L ’ !
N 4 ) iy / r
. A :
£4ed . 7 . L :
i 4 o i % !
g - a1 P
.f.al-." e :










SESSION 1951
HOUSE OF COMMONS

J STANDING COMMITTEE

ON

RAILWAYS, CANALS AND
TELEGRAPH LINES

CHAIRMAN—MR. L. O. BREITHAUPT

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS AND EVIDENCE
No. 3

BILL No. 75 (Letter F of the Senate);
An Act to Incorporate Trans-Canada Pipe Lines Limited.

THURSDAY, MARCH 8, 1951

WITNESSES:

Mr. Frank A. Schultz, Vice-President, Canadian Delhi Oil Ltd., Calgary,
Alberta.

Mr. W. J. Matthews, Director, Administration and Legal Services,
Department of Transport, Ottawa, Ontario.

OTTAWA
- EDMOND CLOUTIER, C.M.G., O.A.,, D.S.P.
PRINTER TO THE KING'S MOST EXCELLENT MAJESTY
CONTROLLER OF STATIONERY
1951
81675—1







D REPORTS TO THE HOUSE
TrURSDAY, March 8, 1951.

The Standing Committee on Railways, Canals and Telegraph Lines begs
leave to present the following as a

SecoND REPORT

. Your Committee has considered Bill No. 75, (Letter F of the Senate),
intituled: “An Act to incorporate Trans-Canada Pipe Lines Limited”, and has
agreed to report same with amendment.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

L. O. BRIETHAUPT,
Chairman.

TuespAay, March 13, 1951.

The Standing Committee on Railways, Canals and Telegraph Lines begs
leave to present the following as a

THIRD REPORT

On March 8, 1951, Bill No. 75 (Letter F of the Senate), An Act to incor-
porate Trans-Canada Pipe Lines Limited, was reported by your Committee
as amended. |

A printed copy of the proceedings and evidence taken in relation to the
said Bill is now tabled. ‘

All of which is respectfully submitted.

L. 0. BREITHAUPT,
Chairman.

)
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
TruUrspAY, March 8, 1951.

The Standing 'Committee on Railways, Canals and Telegraph Lines met at
eleven o’clock a.m. this day. Mr. L. O. Breithaupt, Chairman, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Applewhaite, Bonnier, Cannon, Carter, Conacher,
Dewar, Follwell, Gillis, Green, Harkness, Harrison, Herridge, Hodgson, Lafon-
taine, Lennard, Macdonald (Edmonton East), McCulloch, Meclvor, Mott,
Murphy, Murray (Cariboo), Noseworthy, Richard (St. Maurice-Lafleche) , Riley,
svoloney, Shaw, Smith (Queens-Shelburne), Stuart (Charlotte), Thomas, Weaver,

hiteside.

In attendance: Mr. John Ross Tolmie, Parliamentary Agent; Mr. Frank A.
Schultz, Vice-President, Canadian Delhi Oil Ltd., Calgary, Alberta; Mr. W. J.
Matthews, Director, Administration and Legal Services, Department of Trans-
port, Ottawa, Ontario.

The Committee resumed consideration of Bill No. 75, (Letter F of the
Senate), an Act to incorporate Trans-Canada Pipe Lines Limited.

Mr. Schultz’s examination was continued.

Mr. Matthews was recalled, heard, questioned and retired.

The Preamble and Clauses one to five inclusive were severally considered and
adopted. :

At 12.30 o’clock p.m. the Committee adjourned to meet again at 4.00 o’clock
p.m. this day.

AFTERNOON SITTING .

The Committee resumed at 4.00 o’clock p.m. Mr. L. O. Breithaupt, Chair-
man, presided. -

Members present: Messrs. Applewhaite, Bonnier, Carter, Conacher,
Gauthier (Portneuf), Gillis, Green, Herridge, Lafontaine, Lennard, Macdonald
(Edmonton East), McCulloch, Meclvor, Mott, Murray (Cariboo), Noseworthy,
Rooney, Shaw, Smith (Queens-Shelburne), Thomas, Weaver.

In attendance: Mr. John Ross Tolmie‘, Parliamentary Agent; Mr. Frank A,
Schultz, Vice-President, Canadian Delhi Oil Ltd., Calgary, Alberta.

The Committee resumed a clause by clause consideration of Bill No. 75,
(Letter F of the Senate), An Act to incorporate Trans-Canada Pipe Lines
Limited. |

On clause 6:

Mr. Green moved:

That paragraph (a) Clause 6 of this Bill be amended by inserting after the

~word hydrocarbons in the twenty-eighth line the following: “provided that the

main pipe line or lines, either for the transmission and transportation of gas or
oil shall be located entirely within Canada”.
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After discussion, and the question having been put, the said motion W
agreed to.

considered and adopted.

The Bill, as amended, was adopted and the Chalrman ordered to report the
same to the House forthwith.

At 4.12 o’clock p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

R. J. GRATRIX, -
Clerk of the Committee.

CORRIGENDUM
Evidence No. 2, March 7, 1951
(By Mr. Murray (Cariboo))

Page 46, line 22 thereof: “eight million” should read, “between three and.
three and one half trillion”. q
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or Commons,
March 8, 1951.

The Standing Committee on Railways, Canals and Telegraph Lines met this
day at 11.00 am. The Chairman, Mr. L. O. Breithaupt, presided.

: The CuarrMAN: Gentlemen, we have a quorum. It is 11.05 and we believe
in starting meetings as nearly on time as possible, so with your consent we
will proceed. Yesterday before adjournment the question came up as to the
estimated cost of construeting and operating a sulphur reduction plant capable
of converting residue hydrogen sulphide gas to elementary sulphur such as from
the Pincher Creek field. Mr. Schultz is here and he has prepared a statement
on this which I would ask the clerk to distribute and then he will enlarge on it.
Is it your wish that he be heard at this time?
Agreed.

Mr. Frank August Schultz, Delhi Oil Ltd., recalled.

The CuamMAN: I believe all the members of the committee present have
the statement. Would you care to proceed, Mr. Schultz, please?

_ The Wirness: I have prepared some figures on this possible sulphur reduc-
tion plant. The background for it is figures that we have prepared on a field
that the Delhi Oil Corporation owns in northwestern New Mexico that has a
%r}?i_lar acid gas content to that of Pincher Creek. I will file the figures, Mr."

airman,

ESTIMATED COST OF CONSTRUCTING AND OPERATING A
SULPHUR REDUCTION PLANT CAPABLE OF CONVERT-
ING RESIDUE H,S GAS TO ELEMENTAL SULPHUR
SUCH AS FROM THE PINCHER CREEK FIELD,
ALBERTA

"Total v Plant, Castrlie it Al bl SR s G, S $750,000 00
Operating Cost per day (including Labour, Amor-
tization on a 10-year basis, Insurance, Replace-

ment Costs and Contingencies) ............. $600 00
General Overhead and Sales Costs per day ...... 300 00

i 7 Y e he T IR WA U TR (R e SR B $900 00
Production

One thousand cubic feet of Hydrogen Sulphide gas contains 87
pounds of elemental sulphur. An efficient plant will recover 85 per cent
of the 87 pounds or 72 net pounds per 1,000 cubic feet of gas. The raw
gas at Pincher Creek will average approximately 74 per cent Hydrogen
Si.llphide or 5-4 pounds of Sulphur per M.C.F. at the outlet side of the.
plant. )

Assuming a daily production rate of 165,000 M.C.F. of raw gas, this
will result in 891,000 pounds or 425 tons of elemental sulphur per day.
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Production Costs :
Assuming that the raw hydrogen sulphide gas is delivered free of all
costs to the hydrogen sulphide reduction plant, then the cost per ton for

fixing this sulphur would be —— S0 — $2.04 per ton. This figure con-

425
templates only the basic costs, exclusive of all handling and shipping
charges.

Due to the corrosive nature of the hydrogen sulphide gas, replace-
ment, costs on the equipment might be higher than that indicated above
(viz. ten year amortization), resulting in a somewhat higher production
cost.

We recognize that costs at Pincher Creek will vary from what they are in
northwestern New Mexico but I have attempted to adjust the plant cost and
the operating cost, overhead cost, to the Pincher Creek situation. Now, I want
to represent this as our own idea based upon our experience in northwestern
New Mexico. There may be some latitude when a plant is actually constructed
at Pincher Creek, but this is our best thought at this time.

We have contemplated a ten-year amortization on this type of plant due
primarily to the fact that we are handling an acid gas, hydrogen sulphide, that
will have some water in it. Replacement costs may even be higher than on a
ten-year basis, therefore, when the plant is in actual operation we might have
to figure a five-year amortization. There are eighty-seven pounds of sulphur
content in one thousand cubic feet of hydrogen sulphide gas. The plant that
we have contemplated will have an eighty-five per cent efficiency factor which
leaves seventy-two pounds net of sulphur to be recovered. The gas at Pincher
Creek runs approximately seven and one-half per cent, leaving a total of 5-4
pounds of recoverable sulphur per thousand feet of gas. This comes up to a

total figure of $2.04 a ton for fixing sulphur. This figure does not contemplate

a cost for the hydrogen sulphide gas. We are considering it as a residue, a
waste product that would be converted to a useful chemical. Incidentally,
this, of course, does not take into consideration handling cost; it considers
only stock piling in large bins. There would be an additional cost for handling
and certainly freight costs would be quite high. In our own figuring at
Pincher Creek, the freight problem was the most difficult one because freight
rates are pretty high, say from Pincher Creek to the consuming areas in
the east. 1 do not have the exact figures but it seems to me that freight rates
from Calgary to Winnipeg were something of the order of $24 a ton. I do
not want to be tied to this figure but I believe it was $24 a ton from Calgary
to Winnipeg. That is a figure I am drawing from memory and I do not want
to be stuck with it later on.

Mr. Mugrray: Mr. Chairman, since we have an eminent engineer here this
morning, Mr. Schultz, he might tell us some of the byproduets which could be
manufactured from sulphur on the spot, too.

The Cramrman: Could we not confine our interest to this statement in the
meantime and later we can call on the engineer.

By Mr. Murphy:

Q. In addition to this information and essential also, I think, to the ques-
tion: are there any other chemicals as byproducts that could be produced in
quantity from this same source?—A. From the Pincher Creek?

Q. Yes.—A. Yes, sir. There are more hydrocarbons.. There would be
approximately when the field is completely exhausted a total of some twenty-
seven million barrels of various hydrocarbons; that would include propane,
butane, ethane, gasoline, diesel oil.

‘?

e
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. Q. Do you purpose getting those products in your processing before gas
18 delivered in the line?—A. Oh, yes, sir. The gas will be dried completely
before it is put in line. "All of the liquids will be removed by a gasoline
absorption plant.

Q. Do you purpose showing revenue from those byproduets?—A. No; the
transmission company, and I want to make this perfectly clear, at the present
time does not have a purchase contract with the Gulf Oil Corporation. We
are trying to deal with the Gulf Oil Corporation. The transmission company
will buy or produce only the dry gas from any of these fields. It will not
have a side income from the byproducts, so to speak.

Q. You purpose only to have the one plant for the recovery of these
products?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. At Pincher Creek?—A. Pincher Creek is the only field so far that we
contemplate would be tied into this transmission system that produces hydrogen
sulphide.

Q. The recovery of other products would not be possible in the one plant?
—A. No, it would not. I am sure that the Gulf would have no interest in
disposing of twenty-seven million barrels of liquids, and if they recovered it,
undoubtedly the plant would belong to them. It would be a separate item.

Q. There is one point I would like to get some information on. We have
here the possible cost of the sulphur plant. Mr. Schultz has indicated that
he thinks the freight rate is some $20 odd, say from Calgary to Winnipeg.
This being such an essential product at this time I was wondering if we could
obtain the freight rates from the source to certain parts of Canada where this
product would be required in order to determine probably its comparative cost
against the sulphur we get from other sources not so close?—A. We do not
have those figures.

The CHARMAN: I do not imagine they have the figures but the figures
would be obtainable by anyone. It just prolongs this situation by asking Mr.
Schultz to bring this information to the committee when the information is
available to all of us to make comparative laid down costs. I see what you
are getting at and it is a good point, but I do not think we should detain Mr.
Schultz by asking him information of this kind. '

Mr. Murray: No, but I think it is important the committee should have the
information. I wonder if it is not equally important, in view of this project, to
get information on the volume of the other very essential byproducts.

The Cuamrman: Mr. Schultz, are you in a position to give that now, based
on the extraction of sulphur?

The Wrrness: No, but I would say this, that when we first considered this
product we considered that the sulphur was almost a break-even proposition, that
there would be very little profit to be made in the sulphur, it might even have to
be produced at a loss, but we were prepared if we built this line to fix the sulphur
regardless of whether it could be operated at a profit or a loss because we knew
that over a period of time if we were piling up 350 to 400 tons of sulphur a day,
ultimately the market would come and get it. Of course, it can be stored with-
out any difficulty, by just piling it up in several thousand ton blocks. Since our
figure was prepared the price of Gulf Coast sulphur has advanced several times
and there is not too much doubt in our minds now that the project could have

_ . operated at a profit, on some small margin of profit. There is one fact I have

not figured in here and I do not know where the cost rightly belongs, but it will
take about two cents a thousand of the raw gas to treat it out and remove this
hydrogen sulphide, carbon dioxide, from the marketable gas.

The Cramrman: If there are any other questions on this subject you can ask
them now, if not, we can probably have Mr. Schultz give further evidence when
we get further on with the bill. ;
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Now, as far as your question was concerned, Mr. Murray—

Mr. Murray: I'am thinking of the manufacture of acids and so forth which
are vital to the industrial development of that area of western Canada.

The CaatrMAN: You feel that some engineer present was qualified to answer
that?

Mr. Mugray: I do not ask for very detailed information.

The CuatrmMAN: Mr. Schultz, I believe, has the answers.

Mr. Mugrray: There is a great market there for some of the byproducts such
as sulphurie acid, and sulphurous acid and other products, say in the manufacture
of storage batteries, a demand right in the neighbourhood.

The Wirness: Yes, that is true. Particularly, I understand, there is a
fertilizer plant at Calgary that could undoubtedly utilize some part of this
sulphur as sulphuric acid. Approximately twenty-five tons a day of sulphur are
already being manufactured at Trail by Consolidated Smelters and I understand
that that is being converted directly to sulphuric acid and marketed in that
general area. We recognize that with this amount of sulphur available and a
freight rate that might work to a disadvantage that it would be an ideal situation
if we could bring in some new industry to Alberta and in that respect we have
talked to one concern, the International Mmgrals and Chemical Corporation.
They have indicated an interest, if we work out this development and produce
this sulphur, of coming into Al-berta and working out an arrangement to utilize
this sulphur. We think that is very important that a company intending to
take a natural resource from Alberta should induce new industry to come in, if
we can, and that is one of our problems which we are working on. However,
until something definite is done in the development of sulphur, an industry is not
in a position to say it will or will not locate there, but at least we have had dis-
cussions and are carrying forward those discussions for the utilization of this
sulphur within Canada.

The Cuarman: Does that answer your question, Mr. Murray?

By Mr. Murray:

Q. What products does that company you just mentioned deal in?—A.
Fertilizer, primarily. It is the biggest fertilizer making company in the world.

Q. They would establish at Pincher Creek or Calgary?—A. The general
thinking was, somewhere in Alberta, to utilize that sulphur; that is the basis on
which we are talking to them, that it would be a Canadian utilization of the
sulphur.

Q. Thank you.

Mr. SHaw: May I as an Albertan commend Mr. Schultz’ company for the
energy he has indicated they displayed in trying to encourage an industry to
become established in that province. It is very important. Yesterday, I made
an enquiry with respect to the policy in connection with serving the various
communities along the proposed route of the pipe line. To me that is extremely
meortant especially where this is likely to be the only pipe line company serv-
ing the area traversed by this pipe line.

" The CHAIRMAN: Yes, Mr. Shaw, we are coming to that. You are qulte in '8

order, though.

By Mr. Shaw:

Q. T asked yesterday if the sole right to determine which communities are
to be served is to be left with this company. Have you been able, Mr. Schultz,
to get that information? You will understand why I feel keenly about this. If,
for example, there are eight communities, and I am thinking of a specific area
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now, ranging from 500 to 1,400 people, two of them in the neighbourhood of
1,400, a company could pick out those two large ones and make it economically
impossible for any other company to come in and serve those remaining com-
munities—A. All I can say is that I cannot answer the legal aspect on it, but
we have tried to demonstrate that we are willing to serve the small communities,
and the only example I can cite is that we have been dealing with and have dug
wells to supply the community of Picardville in Alberta. We have recognized
the principle that home folks have to be taken care of and we are willing to do
it where we have a gas field or a gas purchase contract in the field to take care
of the local community. We do know that this transmission and gas gathering
system will enable us to serve a large number of small communities that are
not now being served.

The CuarmaN: Thank you very much, Mr. Schultz. I think we appreciate
your interest in serving as many communities as possible but I think there is a
legal aspect that covers this point that Mr. Shaw brings up and I would ask Mr.
Matthews to come forward a minute and explain clause 51 in the Pipe Lines
Act which takes care of that situation.

Mr. W. J. Matthews, Director, Administration’ and Legal Services,
Department of Transport, recalled:

The Wrirness: Well, Mr. Chairman, I presume the committee is familiar

_ With this clause 51 of the Pipe Lines Act, but I will read it.

51. Where the Board finds such action necessary or desirable in the
public interest, it may direct a company to extend or improve its trans-
portation facilities to provide facilities for the junction of its company pipe
line with any pipe line of, and sell gas to, any person or municipality
engaged or legally authorized to engage in the local distribution of gas to
the public, and for such purposes to construct branch lines to communities
immediately adjacent to its company pipe line, if the Board finds that no
undue' burden will be placed upon the company thereby, but the Board
shall have no power to compel a company to sell gas to additional custom-
ers if to do so would impair its ability to render adequate service to its
existing customers, :

- That section gives the Board power to order a company to extend its pipe
lines to serve any communities which they think should have the service, but
there is a limiting provision, that the Board shall have no power to compel the
Company to sell gas to additional customers if that would impair the economie
Position of the company -and its ability to serve its existing customers.

By Mr. Shaw:

Q. Let us assume that this company is incorporated and secures a permit
to export. They run their line through to Montreal. They decide they can
brocure customers enough in several of the larger cities including Montreal,
Toronto, Ottawa, and so on, to take the gas; this line will carry gas to serve

0se communities, but the communities along the way which may feel they
ave a justifiable demand for gas are in effect told to jump in the lake—A. I
think it puts it up to the Board: “Where the Board finds such action necessary
Or desirable in the public interest, it may direct the company to extend or
mprove its line”. So I presume if anyone had a complaint along the line
they would apply to the Board and have it decided upon there.

. . Q. In the final analysis is it not a fact today that the Board has the
right to say to the community or to the people of the community, “Now, if
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you desire to form a company, we will force the transmission conmipany to
supply you with gas”, but they cannot force a company to go in and establish
a distribution system, that is, in any given community.—A. I think that is so.

Q. Well,' this is the thing that concerns me. It may be economically
feasible for a large company like this to supply gas to a local community
where it may not be economically feasible for a local company to establish
a distribution system because the company operates, as you appreciate, as
an entire business, whereas, this one little group may have to function in one
little community, after possibly building a three-mile long line to that com-
munity. Of course, I understand we probably have not had enough experience
as far as the transmission of gas is concerned, and I would urge the Board
to learn all it can about this Pipe Lines Act and if it requires to be amended
I hope the government will see to it that the necessary amendments are
submitted to Parliament.—A. In answer to that I will just say that this pro-
vision is something similar to the same provision in the Natural Gas Act
of the United States where they have a good deal more experience than we
have.

Q. How has it worked out?—A. They tell us it works out all right. How-
ever, if there is any difficulty about the operation of the Acet the board will
bring forward any amendments needed.

Q. While I am here I will keep my eye on it.

The CuairMaN: There is another question arising out of the meeting we
had yesterday and that is one raised by Mr. Noseworthy, who asked for addi-
tional information as to the constitutional provisions which render it impossible
for a pipe line of this kind to be classified as a common carrier.

The Wirness: I do not think there is any constitutional difficulty about
that because oil pipe lines can be declared to be common carriers and I should
think gas pipe lines could be also. The difficulty seems to be one of a practical
nature. Gas experts of the United States have told me that none of the gas
lines there have ever been declared to be common carriers. The difficulty is a
practical one arising out of the receipt and delivery of the gas. The gas comes in
and flows along the line, and if it were a common carrier it would have to
arrange to segregate the gas of .the different companies, they would have to
arrange to deliver it to different distribution systems, arrange for storage
facilities for each company’s gas, and so on.

Mr. Suaw: There is one common carrier in Alberta, if I am nét mistaken,
between Turner Valley and Calgary. I understand that the Alberta Conserva-
tion Board there made a decision forcing this particular pipe line to take gas
from other companies. It was felt that there was too much waste in Turner
Valley, and the company insisted on carrying its own product only.

The CramMan: But that law has been changed since.

Mr. Suaw: Yes, it has been made a common carrier. That company has
been forced to take gas from small independent companies operating in that
area.

The Cramman: But they cannot get any gas unless they gather gas from

different sources?
' Mr. Seaw: It is my understanding that that is an example of a gas pipe
line that has been made a common carrier. That is what I wanted to convey.

Mr. AppLewnAITE: They have more than one client? Are they carrying
gas for more than one person?

Mr. Smaw: They have been forced to take gas from the various wells in

Turner Valley.
Mr. AppLewnarte: They carry it for a fee, they do not buy it?
The Wrrness: Is that not a common purchaser line?
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By Mr. Shaw:

Q. It is conceivable that the corporation distributing gas is a common
purchaser.—A. Yes, one company operates the line for its own gas?

Q. Yes.—A. It is not a common carrier then, that is a common purchaser.

Q. One company built and owned the line and were carrying their own
product. Many of the smaller wells could not dispose of their product, and
action was taken to force the company to carry gas from the various wells
owned by the different companies, and it is probably sold in bulk in the city of
Calgary.

Mr, AppLewsAITE: With your permission, Mr. Chairman, I would like
to ask Mr. Shaw one question. - What happens to their own customers while
they are carrying gas for somebody else? _

Mr. Spaw: Mr. Chairman, I do not profess to have all the details. I was
merely pointing out that this was an example of a common ecarrier. I assume
that they know the volume of gas they take from each company owning wells
in Turner Valley into the main pipe line, and then, I understand, it is sold in
bulk or distributed in Calgary.

Mr. ApprewnArre: Then, the gas is all mixed up?

Mr. Smaw: Naturally, it has to be.

The Cuamman: This is really of indirect interest to this committee.

Mze. SHaw: Except it is an example of a common carrier.

By Mr. Noseworthy:

Q. I think in the case of the United States there is a limit placed on the
profit that gas-carrying pipe lines can make. We have that limitation, I under-
stand, in regard to pipe lines for oil but we have no provision whereby such a
limitation can be placed on these gas pipe lines. What do you think is the
necessary step to take in order to have that apply to gas?—A. I do not under-
stand your question.

Q. In the case of the United States you said yesterday the federal
authorities had placed a limit on the profit that may be earned by these gas
bipe lines and that we had that in Canada in the case of the oil pipe lines. Now,
Wwhat steps are necessary in order to secure similar legislation regarding gas pipe
lines?—A. Well I do not think I did say that in the United States they put a
limit, on the profits that are made on these gas pipe lines. I have not any
knowledge of that. In Canada I do not.think they put a limit either on the
profits, except under the Income Tax ‘Act. A company such as the Imperial Oil
carries oil by pipe line and I do not think there is any limitation placed on the
profits made by the company except under the Income Tax Act. They carry
their own oil from the well to the refinery, and I presume that it is all treated
as part of their organization. ;

_ The CuamrmaN: Can you tell us how the pricing is done? I think that
Will clear up all the unfinished business that was left over until today’s meeting.
Mr. Noseworthy has brought up the last point there. Who controls the pricing
of the product? Is that a provineial jurisdiction?

The Wirness: Well, we have been ‘advised by the Department of Justice
that it is a provincial jurisdiction. I do not know who controls it in the different
Provinces or whether there is any control on gas carried from one province to
another at the present time. Perhaps it is the Utility Board. There is a Utility
Board in Saskatchewan. I do not think there is any Board in Ontario which
controls the price—there may be but I do not know. Anyway, our advice is
that it is a matter of provineial jurisdiction and that it is up to the provinces to
control the price at which gas is sold to the consumer. : :
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By Mr. Murray:

Q. In British Columbia does not the Public Utilities Board control the
price?—A. I presume it would.

Q. There is an actual example there, is there not?—A. I do not know what
the gas situation is there.

Q. Gas is brought from Alberta to Dawson Creek, British Columbia, and
distributed?—A. I do not know what the situation is.

Q. It is a fact that the Public Utilities Board have to give a certificate and
to approve the price?—A. It would be a matter for the province.

By Mr. Shaw:

Q. I have one more question to ask Mr. Matthews. Do the provisions
of that Act apply to the gathering system within the province?—A. I do not
think so.

Q. Then, I do not know whether this is fair or not, but would you conclude,
therefore, that it is a matter of provincial jurisdiction when it comes to laying
down policy relative to servicing communities within the province—as far as
the gathering system is concerned?—A. Well I am not very familiar with the
pipe line business but, as I understand the split up, one company will handle the
main trunk pipe line and another company will look after the gathering lines.

Q. Not necessarily in this case? I believe they have indicated that they
would like to operate the entire gathering system as part of their main trans-
Canada pipe line system—however they may have to do otherwise?—A. I think
it is all operated by the same company and I would think they would have just
as much control over the gathering line as over the main line.

Q. You are speaking from the point of view of the Board of Transport Com-
missioners?—A. Yes, as I understand the split up that is my answer. In this
case it seems to be different.

The CuarmaN: Well, gentlemen, are we ready to consider the bill?

Agreed.

Shall clause 1 carry?

1. Clinton Williams Murchison, oil and gas executive, and Frank
August Schultz, oil and gas executive, both of the city of Dallas, in the
state of Texas, one of the United States of America, John Ross Tolmie,
barrister and solicitor, John McCreary Coyne, barrister and solicitor,
and Ross Garstang Gray, barrister and solicitor, all of the city of Ottawa,
in the province of Ontario, together with such persons as may become
shareholders in the company, are incorporated under the name of Trans-
Canada Pipe Lines Limited, hereinafter called “the Company”.

Mr. AppLewHAITE: With respect to clause 1 I wish to raise a small question.
It may seem a silly question or it may not. The trans-Canada highway—a
- purely national endeavour, and Trans-Canada Air Lines, a nationally owned
air line, use the word “trans-Canada” and I think that a lot of people not only
in Canada but elsewhere have come to think of that name as being connected
with a national or publicly owned operation. I do not suppose the Dominion of
Canada has any vested interest in the words “trans-Canada” but I wonder
whether the committee does or does not consider that there is some merit in
perhaps trying to retain the term “trans-Canada’ for things which are purely
Canadian and owned by the people of Canada. I think the question is at least
worthy of consideration by the committee.

The CuAIRMAN: Is there any discussion?

Mr. Murray: Well I would say that if they called it “Canada pipe lines”
it would be just as all-embracing as “trans-Canada”, when they are building
a pipe line across Canada through the various provinces.
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The CuAmMAN: It involves a change of name for the company. Would
you care to remark on that Mr. Tolmie?

Mr. ToLmie: With respect to the name “trans-Canada” I may say that we
checked with the companies branch and they had no objection to the name.
We reserved it with them. It is true that the companies branch will now allow
a company to be incorporated with the name “dominion”, “federal” or “Canada”
to denote national ownership. There is Trans-Canada Air Lines and what is
commonly referred to as the Trans-Canada highway. There are, however, other
trans-Canada operations. I believe that the Canadian Pacific Railway had
*a train called the “Trans-Canada” and there are highway operations. The
name has not been arrogated to any dominion or federal use as such.

The CrarrMAN: Shall clause 1 carry?

Carried. o

Clause 2.
Carried.

Clause 3.

3. The éapital stock of the Company shall consist of five million
shares of the par value of one dollar per share.

Mr. Green: On clause 3 may I ask a question. Apparently the applicants
are only making provision for sufficient capital to get the company set up and
not to actually do the construction. When they come to construet the pipe
line will they then have to come back to parliament for an increase in capital?

Mr. Toumie: Yes, Mr. Chairman, that is contemplated. We would have
to seek, like any other company. 1ncorporated by parliament, authorization for
an increase in capitalization. However, there is no point in shooting at a very
large figure now because of the mcorporatlon fees. When we know the exact
amount we would want to fix on that. Then, there is also the transfer tax on
the transfer of stock and we do not want to have t00 large a par value at this
stage. If recapitalization were required we would have to come to parliament
and have the exact amount settled then.

Mr. Mclvor: Are these shares offered for sale in Canada only?

The CrAlRMAN: No, and I think that is covered in yesterday's evidence.
Shall clause 3 carry?

Carried.

Clause 4.
Carried.

Clause 5.
Carried.

Clause 6.

6. The Company, subject to the provisions of any general legislation
which is enacted by Parliament relating to pipe lines for the transmission
and transportation of gas or oil or any liquid or gaseous products or
‘by-products thereof, may
(@) within or outside Canada construct, purchase lease, or otherwise

acquire and hold, develop, operate, mamtam control, lease, mort-

gage, create liens uponv, gell, convey or otherwise dispose of and turn
to account any and all interprovincial and/or international pipe
lines and all appurtenances relative thereto for gathering, processing,
refining, treating, transmitting, transporting, storing, and delivering
natural and artificial gas and other gaseous or liquid hydrocarbons,
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and purchase, or otherwise acquire, process, refine, treat, transmit,
transport, and sell or otherwise dispose of and distribute natural
and artificial gas and other gaseous or liquid hydrocarbons, and own,
lease, sell, operate, and maintain aircraft and aerodromes for the
purpose of its undertaking, together with the facilities required for
the operation of such aireraft and aerodromes; and own, lease,
operate and maintain interstation telephone, teletype and telegraph
communication systems and subject to The Radio Act, 1938, and
any other statute relating to radio, own, lease, operate and maintain
interstation communication facilities;

(b) purchase, own, lease or otherwise acquire and develop and turn to
account and sell, deal in and dispose of real and personal property
of whatsoever nature used or capable of being used in connection
with its undertaking; and

(¢) exercise as ancillary and incidental to the purposes or objects set
forth in this Act, the powers following, unless such powers or any
of them are expreszly excluded by this Act, namely, the powers set
forth in paragraphs (a) to (bb) inclusive of subsection one of section
fourteen of The Companies Act, 1934.

Mr. TaomAs: Possibly I should have asked this question in the general
discussion before the bill came in, but I see by this gathering map that almost
half the gas is to be obtained from the Pincher Creek field. I wonder if
Mr. Schultz could tell us the comparative cost of drilling or producing in the
Pincher Creek area as compared with other sections of the gathering system?

Mr. Scaurrz: The study we have made at Pincher Creek indicates that
the wells will cost approximately $750,000 each. It is our thinking that to
fully: develop the field will take approximately 21 wells. The drilling cost out
_on the prairies is considerably less. I would say that for a completed well
there our average cost to date is approximately $50,000. The only difference
is that the fields in the prairies are figured to contain as much as 30 billion
feet of gas for an entire field. In the Pincher Creek area the best engineering
shows a trillion and a half feet of gas to be produced. So, although the wells
are more expensive at Pincher Creek the amount of gas to be recovered from

the wells makes the over-all cost probably less in the long run than for drilling

on the prairie fields.

Mr. Taomas: That is what I wanted to know. I was under the impression
that wells had to be almost twice as deep in the Pincher Creek area.

Mr. Scavrrz: Yes, 12,500 feet. ;

Mr. THoMmas: Production would offset the cost of drilling?

Mr. Scuuwrz; Exactly. '

The CrarmaN: Shall clause 6 carry?

Mr. Morr: With reference to paragraph (a) I see it says “within or outside
Canada”. TIs it the intention for this company to run gas outside of Canada?
You can branch off anywhere on this trans-Canada line, go down into the
States over various routes. You could even turn around in this case and run
out to the coast. Is not that a very wide clause—“within or outside of Canada?”

That was the very cause of all the argument last year in this committee.
Now we have what is supposed to be an all-Canada line but you have here
“—outside Canada”.-

The Cramrman: Would you answer, Mr. Tolmie?

Mr. Torumie: That is probably an abundance of caution of the legal
draftsmen, for which we must take full responsibility.
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It is quite usual, and in order, to provide that any company incorporated
in Canada has power to carry on its activities within or without Canada. That
1s in accordance with the precedents and the standard form which we adopted,
largely because we do not want to have it ever raised that we have not the
power to carry on any activity outside Canada.

As you will notice the special powers include a lot of ancillary powers,
some of which may have to be carried on outside the country. For instance,
in connection with the sulphur problem, it-may be that the marketing of
sulphur or the treating of it cannot be undertaken in Canada economically,
and the company would have to set up some branch or some plant outside
of Canada.

Likewise, with any of the ancillary powers referred to in paragraph (c)
in connection with the pipe line, they would want to have the power legally
to carry on business outside the country. It is really to get around any
suggestion that the doctrine of ultra vires would be used against this company.

Now, on the broad question of whether or not with this charter the company
may turn around and apply for the right to build a line outside of Canada,
or to go out to the west coast through the states of Idaho or Washington, all
I can say is that the Board of Transport Commissioners are the ones who will
*decide on the route. As you have heard the whole preparation and conception
of this is an all-Canadian route east, and that is where the study has been
made; that is the way the application has been prepared, both for the Transport
Board and for Alberta. It would be very difficult to change or about face and
use this charter for a line designed to go somewhere else.

Mr. Cannon: It is not the intention?

Mr. Tormie: It is certainly not the intention and the whole preparation
and the work that has been done is completely propounded upon this -all-
Canadian route or eastern route where the market has been surveyed with great,
expense and a great deal of particularity with respect to the small towns and
communities.

Mr. Morr: In so far as this act is concerned, and in so far as we are
concerned in passing it, this line can be outside of Canada or branch off
anywhere under that clause. That is what caused the whole diseussion last year
and here is the same thing.

They can go to Winnipeg, and then get permission from the Board of
Transport Commissioners to run down to Duluth or somewhere else. We were
given to understand that this was an all-Canadian route, and then in the first
baragraph of this clause you have “within or outside Canada”.

It is all right with me, but it is the same thing over again. We hear all
about Canadian routes and then, in this clause, we say that you can take them
anywhere,

. The Cuamrman: I think Mr. Mott has brought up a very good point and

1t is one on which the committee should be reassured. In the committee and in

the House last year, rightly or wrongly, opposition developed on that very point.

I think the committee should assure the House on the point, and also that the

committee should be assured that this is an all-Canadian plan or project as we
ave been led to believe that it is.

Now, if Mr. Tolmie or any of his people here can give us that assurance
I think the committee would like to have it.

. Mr. Mugrray: Would it not be possible to just strike out the second and
third words in subelause (a)? ;

The CrarmaNn: I beg your pardon?

Mr. Mugray: Could we not delete the words “or outside”?
81675—2
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Mr. ToLmie: If I may suggest it, that is the very thing, out of an abundance
of caution as a lawyer, that you should not recommend. You state specifically
that this company can only do business in Canada. The powers of the company
to hold property and to negotiate any kind of contract would be specifically
stated to be within Canada and that would be contrary to the normal method
of incorporation of a company to carry on business anywhere in the world.
The alternative would be to drop all of the phrase “within or outside Canada”.
Then the inference would be the same as that for any other company, that it
has the power to earry on business anywhere in the world.

Mr. Murray: There has been very strong feeling in areas right across
Canada with respect to whether these operations would be within Canada. I
think you could change the wording of it so as to give the company full right
to proceed with business activities outside of Canada.

The CuamrmaN: Yes, disposing of by-products and that sort of thing in
the United States,

Mr. Murray: It seems to me that the understanding is that the line is to:

run across Canada.

Mr. Suaw: When this company applies to the Alberta government for an
export permit, which they will do I understand before they start construction,
they are going to have to specify, are they not, and to specify very definitely,
where they are going to export the gas? Is that right or wrong?

The Wrirness: If we go before the Alberta Board we will have to specify
specifically the route we intend to follow. We assume that we will obtain an
export permit based upon an all-Canadian route. I do not see how we can possi-
bly get an export permit for 365 million feet of gas for the eastern market and
then turn around and build to the south or west. Our entire thinking has been

an all-Canadian route from the beginning and I think an export permit would have

no basis if we obtained it with the understanding the gas was going east and then
try to do something else with it.

Mr. Mort: Why not cut out that “outside Canada”, for the transport of gas
and o0il? It is easy enough to say that it is an all-Canadian route now, but you
may go to the Alberta board later on and say that you are trying to put gas out
to the Pacific coast or, all of a sudden, say that you have found a route down to
Duluth or somewhere else in the United States. Then you would say: “Well, our
line is in, why can’t we transfer it down there”. If you did that you would not
then get a permit to transfer gas to the Pacific coast.

The whole argument hinged on that last year in both the House and the com-
mittee. If this is going to be inside Canada why not cut out “outside Canada”
—except for by-products where you could say “outside Canada”.

Mr. TaoMmAs: I might suggest that this discussion should have been carried
on when the master pipe line bill was in the House in 1949. :

The Caamman: Well, we have to deal with this particular bill.
Mr. Grius: The matter was raised in 1949.

Mr. Herrmee: Following up the statement made by Mr. Murray, possibly
this act could be changed to provide for the piping of gas within Canada but to
provide for other activities of the company outside Canada. Mr. Murray has

mentioned, as Mr. Mott has, the strong feeling in Canada that we want these

natural resources to serve Canadian requirements. I would like to ask if this

section cannot stand and consideration be given to amending it so that it is clear

there is authority to build a pipe line in Canada and to conduet the other business

outside of Canada. That should be confirmed by these gentlemen and the

Canadian people assured.

Sapifan §

T

e T T PR RN e T R

s




i)

RAILWAYS, (ﬁANALS AND TELEGRAPH LINES 71

Mr. Sruarr: There has been a lot of discussion about gas and oil for
Canadians and we have heard these arguments before. I am not saying that the
members are not sincere but it would appear to me that if the gas or oil goes to
British Columbia the members there would not worry too much about where
else it went.

Mr. Morr: No, it is just the opposite.

Mr. Stuarr: No, I am of the impression that they say: “If we get what gas
Wwe want in British Columbia, and we want to be on the line, if there is any
surplus then send it to the United States or anywhere else you wish”.

I might suggest a plan' for putting a smaller pipe line into British Columbia,
enough to service their needs, and then there would be none for the United States
and they could send some down to the maritime provinces,

Mr. Herrioe: That is what we are fighting for.

Mr. Sruart: Well, if we are, let us be consistent. If it is an all-Canadian
broposition let it be for Canada.” You people, though, seem to say that you want
enough for British Columbia but you will let the rest of us, down in the mari-
times for instance, fend for ourselves. Your argument is: give us all we want
in British Columbia, and what is left you can ship over the border or anywhere

“ else. As long as you get what you want you are satisfied.

.. Mr. NoseworrHy: Is there any provision in this Act whereby this company,
If they found it economical and more profitable, could not build this line from
the head of the lakes down into United States territory? Is there anything in

 the bill that they cannot in fact do that if they can persuade the Board of Trans-

port Commissioners to give them a permit? Is there anything in the bill to that
effect?

Mr. Torumig: All I can say in answer to that is that this bill is to incorporate
a.company to build pipe lines in accordance with the Pipe Lines Act and the
Pipe Lines Act requires this company, or any company when incorporated, to
apply to the Board of Transport Commissioners to get authorization for the
route,

I would suggest, sir, that it is inconceivable that a company ighat hz_zs gone-
to the lengths this company has, both in telling parliament and in telling the
public, and in spending money in the investigations it has made of markets across

€ country and on engaging engineers to survey routes, would with a straight
face go to the Transport Board and say: “Notwithstanding all we have said
We now want to apply for a route different from that which we sald we were
going to apply for”. Even if they did that the Transport Board, I thmk_, would
Tefuse the application because the company would have showed bad faith.

This bill to incorporate the company is giving it all the powers co-nsuiere.d
DNecessary for it including the carrying on of activities outside the country if
Decessary. Included is, incidentally, the power to borrow money and to issue
their stock. As we heard yesterday or the day before, a large part of this money
will have to be borrowed from American insurance companies thro'ugh A_meri-can
underwriters. I would suggest, with respect, that if amendment is desired, the
Words “within or outside Canada” should be dropped so that there is no specific
Stfi'“ﬁemen.t that this company is incorporated only to do business in Canada.
Give it the powers of a natural person to do business as a company, so when
1t comes .to carry on business outside of the country someone will not raise the
Question of the company having no powers to do this or tl_lat. They would say
1t is limited to carrying on business in Canada, and that is very different from
any other dominion incorporated companies which have been incorporated

- Under the Companies Act.

Mr. Greex: Mr. Chairman, if you will remember when this pipe line question
first came up in the House, and during the discussion that has taken place since,
81675—23 '
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some of us suggested that there should be written into each charter the route
that was to be followed just as has been done in the case of a railway. We were
not able to convince the government that should be the method followed. The “§
government took the position that this Act was to be for a general charter. Then,
we were put, back in the position where all we could do was deal with the state- -

ment of the applicants as to where they intended to build the line. It was on =
that basis that last year we opposed the charters of the companies which were
proposing to build through the United States. Certainly it would have been *F
much better if in each charter there could have been written the route where
the line would go. However, we have never been able to have that suggestion &
accepted. 3

Here, in this case, we have a company which is committed up to the hilt
so far as representatxons are concerned and so far as preparations are concerned, =
to build an all-Canadian gas pipe line right from the west to the east—~someth1ng
which I personally did not dare argue last because I did not think it was feasible. -
I thought I would have been laughed at if T had argued that and I certamly 3
would have been. However, I am all in favour of a plan of this type. ]

However, these people have come in and are prepared to go ahead and rlsk
development of this kind, which somebody said yesterday may be as important
to Canada as the construction of the Canadian Pacific Railway line. I think it
has helped to change the thinking of a great many Canadians on this question
of using Canadian products for Canadians first. ]

To just simply take this Act and change it when other companies’ acts were
allowed to go through on the other basis, the basis adopted by the government, -
is hardly fair. Last year some of us moved an amendment to put in words into
what would be section 6. I forget how we worded it because I have not got ™
my file this morning but it provided they would have to build their pipe lines -
through Canada or had to serve Canada first. We did have an amendment of
that type moved which was voted down. We moved it on both the bills but it
was voted down both times. Perhaps something of that kind may be written =
into this section 6. I do not know whether it could be or not. 3

Mr. RiLey: Where was that?

Mr. Greex: It is in the middle of paragraph (a) of what is section*6 of thls
bill and I think it said somethlng about serving Canada first, something about . &
the main transmission line being in Canada. The records w1»11 show just what |
the terminology was. I think these people certainly are proposing to do something
which would be very much to the interest of Canada and I believe they are
genuine in their proposal. If it turns out they are deceiving us they will
certainly get a rough ride in several different directions. I do not think they
would be able to build their pipe line at all if they are putting over a deception
in this committee, but I think the way they have given evidence is enough to
convince anyone they are straightforward about their proposal.

Mr. McCurrocH: If they serve Canada first they should have the right to ]
sell their surplus anywhere else they can.

Mr. Murray: The word “deception” should not be used in this committee. |

Mr. Suaw: I would say in the sense it was used it was perfectly all rlght‘
He did not accuse anyone of deceptive action. !

Mr. Murray: We are not dealing with matters of opinion, we are dealing
with a great national issue here and when these other pipe line bills were before
us we were dealing with a little factor known as the Rocky mountains. We
have no Rocky mountains to surmount in this case, we have open prame and
open territory all the way to Montreal and we can very nicely build a pipe line.
to Montreal and follow the lines of nature.
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. The Cramman: T do not, think that is the question exactly. The question
18 that the House generally assumes that this is to be an all-Canadian pipe line
and it met with a very good reception in the House in the various speeches that

were made, and I heard them all. The only thing that we want as a committee

is to be able to go back to the House and recommend the hill on that under-
standing. If the company could work out something through their solicitors
to satisfy that angle I think it should be done.

Mr. NoseworraY: Mr. Chairman, there is this difference. The other com-
Panies last year had no intention of building an all-Canadian pipe line. These
People point out they have every intention of building an all-Canadian pipe line
and if that is their obvious intention why do they not give us assurance by
Writing that into the bill that the gas will come to Montreal by an all-Canadian
route.

Mr. Morr: As far as T am concerned I am not one of those who feel that I
Want to be narrow-minded on this at all. It is set out to be an all-Canadian
Pipe line but I think if this line is going to Montreal and if there is some
rearrangement along the line which will take gas to the consumer cheaper, 1
Would be all for it. On the bill that we had before us last year, in order to
lay a line to Vancouver, British Columbia, they had to duck down around the
Mountains to save something like ten millions of dollars to get to the coast, but
I was for it. We have been given the impression that this is to be an all-Cana-
dian pipe line and that is what we think it is, it is a Trans-Canada line; and you
should be able to take off taps anywhere along that line for a large ecity or a
large industry or even for an atom bomb industry which consumes a lot of gas
located across the border somewhere, if this would be the closest line to take off
the gas. As far as T am concerned I think they should give all latitude to help
the other side, which will, in turn, help us. We are given to understand that
this pipe line is to be laid within Canada and as far as I am concerned if they
Want to take it down that way I do not mind as long as we can get the gas
as cheaply as we can.

Mr. Gruuis: T just want to say this. The wording there is unfortunate.

I was quite impressed with the witnesses, and apart from the effect it might
4Ve on our maritime coal industry I am in favour of this project. I objected
to all those other bills from the start but not because of the route they were
ollowing, My main objection, I might say to Mr. Thomas, to all those pipe
line hills was based on the fact that we were handing over -for all time our
Tesources to American capital, and that if risk capital could not be found in
vanada then I thought the Canadian government should develop these pipe
es; it certainly could have raised the capital. I am convineed of the sincerity
of the people making this proposal. At least we have one thing that we did not
get from any. of the other pipe lines, we have a map here which shows us that
€ Toute is going to be straight across Canada from Calgary to Quebec City. If
We g0 back to the House with that bill as it is worded now, we are going to
Taise all the discussion that we have had on those other pipe lines, and it will -
€ picked on and hung up week after week. If some way could be found to
ehange that wording I think it would avoid a lot of friction. Now, we may
check all these statements the witnesses have made, but we have had on a good
Many oceasions cabinet ministers who came before us on a bill and assured us
they were absolutely certain on a point and then months after that they would
3Tgue in the House and say that this law is not being applied in accordance with
What the minister said and the reply is that what the minister said does not
Matter, it, is what the bill says. There is not a thing to stop this company from
80Ing down from Calgary and shooting in any direction they like. There is

Rothing in the hill to say that this pipe line is going to be built on an all-
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Canadian route to Montreal. If we had something in there that would give us
that assurance or remove the ambiguous language that is there now, I think
it would save the company a lot of trouble.

The CramrMAN: Mr. Tolmie has just saild he is quite willing under the cir-
cumstances to take out the first four words of clause (a) in section 6 “within
or outside Canada”.

Mr. NosewortHY: That would not make an iota of difference as far as
this bill goes; the omission of those words does not make one iota of difference.

Mr. Caxnon: Mr. Chairman, I think that the committee ought to be
satisfied with the assurances, the clear assurances that are being given by the
promoters of this bill that an all-Canadian route will be followed., Last year
I remember we were not able to pin anybody down. We would be told that
the route would be where the beard said it would have to be, and the pro-
moters of the bill would not take a definite stand or undertaking that it
would be an all-Canadian route. Here we have evidence to that effect, it is
on the record, we have a map, we have the notes taken in shorthand and we
will have the printed report of the committee. The statements that have been *
made here will be on record and I think that we have ample safeguards with
these statements and with the fact that all plans have been made for it to
be an all-Canadian line, and also we have safeguards in the fact that the
permits will have to be obtained from the Alberta Conservation Board. I think
we have ample safeguards that it will be an entirely Canadian route and under
these circumstances we should accept the assurances of the people behind this
bill that it will be such. I know, as a lawyer, it would not be advisable to put
in clause 6, simply the words “within Canada” as we would be so restricting
the activities of the company that it would make the charter absolutely useless.

Mr. Hargness: I am quite satisfied myself as to the intentions of the
company, but I am wondering if they would be willing to write into the bill
to meet the wishes of the committee, a clause some place containing simply a
phrase along this line: that the main transmission route will go from Alberta
to Toronto and Montreal along the general line of the Canadian Pacific
Railway.

Mr. Tomie: I am afraid, Mr. Chairman. This is a form of bill which
has been worked out by the law officers of the crown. It is standard form with
regard to the creation of a company to carry on a pipe line business, build a pipe

line, maintain it and carry on ancillary business to it. Now, the big objection to
~ specifying that this company is only incorporated to do a certain thing in a
certain area is that you have immediately restricted the powers of that company
to the point that we may not be able to finance it. The words “within Canada”
would block our efforts. The suggestion we take out the words “within or outside
Canada” contracts our whole program; at least, though it does not point up
that it is limited within Canada, it still leaves the company incorporated to do
business anywhere in the world. We must have that power, otherwise we cannot
raise the money to finance the projeet. The British-American Pipe Line Com-
pany incorporated in 1949 to build a pipe line between Montreal and Toronto had
the same words exactly “inside or outside of Canada”. They have to sell or
purchase oil outside of the country, and they were given the powers of a natural
person to do that. I cannot imagine what we would have to do- outside’ of
Canada later on but we eertainly must borrow money outside of Canada and for
that reason if there is a disposition to amend we should not, point up that it is
only limited within Canada by taking the words out “within or outside Canada”.
Futhermore, we would have to check with the law clerks of the two Houses, the
Department of Justice and T think the Counsel for the Department of Transport
who have settled on a form of bill. We thought we were strietly within it, but if
t{llese words are taken out then it is just as it is, it has powers to do certain
things.




7

St

RAILWAYS, CANALS AND TELEGRAPH LINES 75

Mr. Hargngss: I think Mr. Tolmie has misunderstood my meaning. I do
not suggest that these words “inside or outside Canada” or “interprovineial pipe
lines” should be taken out at all. I suggest there should be added the words
that the main transmission line will run from Alberta to Toronto and Montreal
In Canadian territory; in other words there will be nothing taken out which
will restrict your powers in any way but there would be an assurance contained
In the bill that the main transmission line would run across Canada.

Mr. ApprewnAITE: I do not know these people from Adam. They have
apparently satisfied the majority of this committee that they are not only
sincere but they are going to operate along the lines that the majority of this
committee wish, undertakings which the sponsors of a great many other pipe
line bills which we have passed did not give to satisfy the committee along those
lines. Under those circumstances it would be unfair to place restrictive
provisions in this bill which did not appear in other bills which have already
been passed by this parliament, and I do not want to be a party to make fish
out of one and flesh out of another. I do not think it would be fair under any
circumstances to issue two similar bills, one restrictive and one not, and I
think it would be particularly unfair to do so in the bill before this committee,
as we seem to be satisfied with the bona fides of the sponsors.

The CrAmrrRMAN: You must not overlook the fact that there are other bills
coming to this committee, Mr. Applewhaite, and if you take that broad view-
point on this bill, to be consistent you will have to consider the other bills in
the same light.

Mr. Hopeson: This bill is called the Trans-Canada Pipe Line Bill. There
should be something in that bill to say that this line is going to be in Canada.
Because we have been fooled before is no reason why we should be fooled
again. Two wrongs do not make a right. There should be some clause in that
bill guaranteeing that this pipe line will be built in Canada.

Mr. NosewortHY: This company obviously intends to build this pipe line
between Alberta and Montreal through Canada. They have given us that
assurance. All we ask is that there should be something written in the bill to
_tha‘t effect, but which will not limit them to carrying on a business anywhere
In the world. We should insist that the main transmission line from Alberta to
Maontreal should go through Canadian territory, I might say that we have never
been given that assurance by any of the gentlemen who have ecome before us
Previously, and since these people give us that assurance in committee here
Wwe just cannot see their objections to having that declared in the bill, that as
far as the main pipe line is concerned it is to be laid from Alberta to Montreal
through Canadian territory. -

Mr. Meclvor: I am not a lawyer, but sometimes I have some practical
sense, This is the first time that we have had a pipe line of any description
that is all Canadian and T thought that there would not be any doubt about
1t in committee because the pamphlet we received stated the different places,
towns and ecities that were to be served by this pipe line. I am concerned

ecause I do not want anything to stop this pipe line bill going through because

I think it is fair. The company has shown itself to have initiative. When
somebody in Alberta announced there was not enough gas to keep this pipe line
going the company found seven other sources of gas. I think this shows
Initiative that should get encouragement.

Mr. Riuey: In line with the suggestions that have been offered to date I
am wondering just what reaction is in the minds of the intended incorporators
In respect to this assurance going into the bill that the main transmission line

e carried in its entirety across Canadian territory. If they are prepared to
glve us that assurance, then, what objection would they have to a clause being
Inserted in the bill which would require that the main transmission line go
across Canadian soil in its entirety? They may have had a reason for giving
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that assurance; then if they had such a reason, surely they would have no
objection to the clause being inserted in the bill. I do not doubt but that at
some time in the future it may be necessary to bring gas to this transmission
line from some section of the United States and as the country develops to tap
gas off that transmission line to flow into the United States, but in the light
of their assurances what objection would they have now to having a clause
inserted in the bill?

The Cuamman: I think we ought to have a reply to that and have it cleared
up.

Mr. Toumie: Mr. Chairman, there is no objection whatsoever and I thought
that was made clear. We are dealing with a standard form of pipe line act
and to suggest that we make this or that change without regard to what it does
to other provisions and powers of this company is going to take some careful
consideration and I would not like, for instance, to state that the main trans-
mission line shall follow the Canadian Pacific Railway or the Canadian
National Railways main line or to restrict the company’s powers to do business
outside the country in any ancillary way; and more than that I would suggest
that since the law officers of practically all bodies of the government concerned
with this have pretty well settled on the bill T should consult with them if we
are going to make any change in the standard form. We might do it hastily
and so make this particular company a rather special case corporatewise.

Mr. Rey: I am very much disappointed in the way Mr. Tolmie answered
this question. I want to give him to understand that I have no objection to this
bill at all other than the fact that a suggestion was made that in order to confirm
the verbal assurance, a section be put in the bill to confirm that assurance. In
answer to that Mr. Tolmie comes back with this matter of doing business inside
and outside of Canada. I have no objection to amending that section in any
way. Add a section to the bill which will not destroy any part of the bill but
will give assurance to the Canadian people in the light of the assurances already
made verbally by the incorporators that the transmission line will be carrled
across Canada. I would like to get that specific question answered.

Mr. Green: I think T have an answer here. This is the amendment whlch was
moved last year:

That paragraph (a) of Section 6 of the Bill be amended by inserting
after the word ‘hydrocarbons’ in the twenty-eighth line the following:
‘provided that the main pipe line or lines, either for the transmission and
transportation of oil or gas shall be located entirely within Canada.’

The CaalRMAN: What bill was that on?

Mr. Green: The Alberta Natural Gas Company. It just so happens, Mr.
Chairman, that the same word is in the same line in this bill. The additional
words will be “provided that the main pipe line or lines, either for the trans-
mission and transportation of oil or gas shall be located entirely within Canada.”
Now, I think that that meets Mr. Riley’s suggestion and it would not conflict with
the company’s power to do-business outside ofCanada and it would make abso-
lutely certain that the main line must be built within Canada. I think perhaps
the word “gas” should go ahead of “0il” because this is a gas company. I
realize if the sponsors of the bill would like to diseuss this not only among them-
selves but perhaps with the departmental officials they should be given time to
do so. If they would approve of an amendment of that type I suggest it would
meet all our objections and would be settling a very fine question for some- of
these other lines.

Mr. Mort: 1 raised this question because last year each one of the gas and.
oil lines was going to go through the United States and then up to Canada, but
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~» In this particular case we are given to believe that there is none of this gas to

be exported to the United States, it is a separate Trans-Canada line running to
Toronto, Ontario, and through to Montreal over all-Canadian territory. I did

*not raise that objection because this company is to carry on business within Can-

ada, but the others were in Canada but were going through the United States.

. The Cumamman: I believe this point that has been raised is extremely
Important, and I believe that we have had a good discussion which probably will
lead into something definite being done to satisfy the members of the committee.
I would suggest we adjourn at this point to allow the company and the legal
officers who are handling their case, to clarify this point and try to satisfy us,
when they come back. I think today, we could meet at 4.00 o’clock to give us
an opportunity to carry on this discussion. They have to check with the law
officers and I think that would be reasonable.

_ Mr. Green: We are in a particularly bad spot today. At 4.00 o’clock we
will be dealing with a bill in the House.

The CrarmaNn: We have given away to that viewpoint for three sittings.
Mr. Tolmie has said they can do it by this afternoon. I might say that I have
a busy day myself in front of me. -

We will adjourn until 4.00 o’clock.

The committee adjourned.

AFTERNOON SESSION

!

The committee resumed at 4:00 p.m.
The CrARMAN: Before adjournment we were discussing clause 6.

~ Mr. Smaw: On a question of privilege: before you get into something else,
this morning I made a statement that I think was not true and I am one who
likes to admit the need of making a correction. I suggested that the gas pipe
line from Turner Valley to Calgary was a common carrier. I am advised now
that that line is owned by the distributor but that the distributor is & common
Purchaser. It is the oil pipe line that is a common carrier. I would like to have
that correction made.

'_I‘he CuamrMAN: Thank you very much, Mr. Shaw. The committee appreci-
ates it and the correction will be made.

Mr. Suaw: I was speaking only from memory this morning. Common pur-
chaser is the term.

The Cuamrman: Getting back to clause 6, and particularly subclause (a),

r. Tolmie and Mr. Schultz have had an opportunity of discussing this matter.

ave you any suggestions to meet the desire of the committee in way of an
amendment,?

Mr. Toumie: Mr. Chairman, concerning the amendment which M». Green
Proposed this morning, I took the liberty of checking that with the law clerks
of the Senate, the House of Commons, and the Department of Transport and

€y see no technical or legal difficulty with such a wording under the Pipe Lines

et and as far as we are concerned it does not handicap this company in- the
ancillary powers or the general powers of the company which was the main
boint that we were worried about and we would have no objection whatsoever
to that amendment. ’

The Cramrman: Have we the wording of the amendment?
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The Crerx: That paragraph (a) of section 6 of this bill be amended by

inserting after the word “hydrocarbons” in the twenty-eighth line the following:
“provided that the main pipe line or lines, either for the transmission or trans-
portation of gas or oil shall be located entirely within Canada.”

Mr. Green: I so move.

Mr. Herrmce: I second that, Mr. Chairman.

The CaairMAN: I think you meant line twenty-four, did you not, Mr.
Green? Hydrocarbons is in line twenty-four of the present bill. :
Mr. LaronTAINE: You have the word “hydrocarbons” in line twenty-eight
too. .

Mr. ToLmig: Yes, it occurs in two places.

The CuAmrMAN: Is that where it comes in, in line twenty-eight? After the ‘
word “hydrocarbons” in the twenty-eighth line the following words are to be
added: “provided that the main pipe line or lines, either for the transmission or
transportation of gas or oil shall be located entirely within Canada.”

Mr. LaroxTaiNe: Why should it not be only gas pipe lines?

Mr. Toumie: In this case it is only gas.

The CramrMAaN: There would be no objection to leaving both- gas and oil in. i

Mr. ToLMmie: No, it does not matter.

The CHamMmaN: Does any member of the committee have an objection?
Shall the amendment carry?

Carried.

Clause 6, subelause (b)?
Carried.

Cla'use 6, subelause (¢)?
Carried.

Clause 77
Carried.

Clause 87
Carried.

Clause 9(1)? v

9. (1) The Company shall not make any loan to any of its share-
holders or directors or give whether directly or indirectly, and whether
by means of a loan, guarantee, the provision of security or otherwise,
any financial assistance for the purpose of, or in. connection with a
purchase made or to be made by any person of any shares in the
Company: Provided that nothing in this section shall be taken to prohibit:
(a) the making by the Company of loans to persons, other than directors,

bona fide in the employment of the Company with a view to enabling

or assisting those persons to purchase or erect dwelling-houses for |

- their own occupation; and the Company may take, from such
iemp]oyees, mortgages or other securities for the repayment of such
oans;

(b) the provision by the Company, in accordance with any scheme for
the time being in foree, of money for the purchase by trustees of fully
paid shares in the capital stock of the Company, to be held by, or
for the benefit of employees of the Company, including any director
holding a salaried employment or office in the Company; or

~(c¢) the making by the Company of loans to persons, other than directors, |

bona fide in the employment of the Company, with a view to enabling

those persons to purchase fully paid shares in the capital stock of = |

the Company, to be held by themselves by way of beneficial ownership.
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(2) The powers under paragraphs (b) and (¢) of subsection one of
this section shall be exercised by by-law only. :

(3) If any loan is made by the Company in violation of the fore-
going provisions, all directors and officers of the Company making the
same or assenting thereto, shall, until repayment of said loan, be jointly
and severally liable to the Company and to its creditors for the debts of
the Company then existing or thereafter contracted: Provided that such
liability shall be limited to the amount of said loan with interest.

Mr. Hrrrie: Would the witness just explain the full meaning of that
section?

Mr. Tormig: Clause 9, Mr. Chairman, is the usual provision to prevent
the company making loans to shareholders or directors or officers that might
dissipate the funds of the company.

The CumamrmAaN: Shall the clause carry?

Carried.

Clause 9 (a)?
Carried.

Clause 9 (b)?
Carried.

Clause 9 (¢)?
Carried.

Clause 9 (2)?
Carried.

Clause 9 (3)?
Carried.

Clause 10?
Carried.

Clause 10 (a)?
Carried.,

Clause 10 (b)?
Carried.

10. The redemption or purchase for cancellation of any fully paid
preferred shares created by by-law pursuant to the provisions of this Act,
in accordance with any right of redemption or purchase for cancellation
reserved in favour of the Company in the provisions attaching to such
preferred shares, or the redemption or purchase for cancellation of any
fully paid shares of any class, not being common or ordinary shares,
and in respect of which the by-laws provide for such right of redemption
or purchase, in accordance with the provisions of such by-laws, shall not
be deemed to be a reduction of the paid-up capital of the Company, if such
redemption or purchase for cancellation is made out of the proceeds of an
issue of shares made for the purpose of such redemption or purchase for
cancellation, or if, :

(a) no cumulative dividends, on the preferred shares or shares of the
class in respect of which such right of redemption or purchase exists
and which are so redeemed or purchased for cancellation, are in
arrears; and

(b) if such redemption or purchase for cancellation of such fully paid
shares is made without impairment of the Company’s capital by pay-
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ments out of the ascertained net profits of the Company which: have
been set aside by the directors for the purposes of such redemption
or of such purchase for cancellation, and if such net profits are
then available for such application as liquid assets of the Company,
as shown by the last balance sheet of the Company, certified by the
Company’s auditors, and being made up to a date not more than
ninety days prior to such redemption or purchase for cancellation,
and after giving effect to such redemption or purchase for cancellation;

and subject as aforesaid, any such shares may be redeemed or purchased
for cancellation by the Company on such terms and in such manner as
is set forth in the provisions attaching to such shares, and the surplus
resulting from such redemption or purchase for cancellation shall be
designated as a capital surplus, which shall not be reduced or distributed
by the Company except as provided by a subsequent Act of the Parliament
of Canada.

Mr. Herrmee: Would the witness mind explaining subclause (b) to a person
who is not versed in legal terminology? -
Mr. Toumie: That, Mr. Chairman, is to take care of thé redemption of any =
redeemable preferred shares that might be issued if made out of cumulative
profits of the company. It will not be deemed to be a reduction of the authorized
capital of the company, if the redemption for cancellation of the fully paid
shares is made without 1mpairment to the capital; having been paid out of the
net profits, that would be permitted, and it is permitted under the Dominion
Companies Act. ‘
The CramrMAN: Shall the clause carry?
Carried.

Clause 11?7 :

Carried. y
Shall the preamble carry?

Carried.

Shall the title carry?
Carried.

Shall T report the bill as amended?
Carried.

There is nothing before the chair, gentlemen.
Mr. LaroNTAINE: I move we adjourn.
The committee adjourned.
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REPORT TO THE HOUSE

Monpay, March 19, 1951.

The Standing Committee on Railways, Canals and Telegraph Lines begs
leave to present the following as a

FourtH REPORT

Your Committee has considered Bill No. 115 (Letter M-1 of the Senate),
intituled: “An Act to incorporate Trans Mountain Oil Pipe Line Company”
and has agreed to report it with an amendment.

A copy of the proceedings and evidence taken is appended.

Clause 3 of the said Bill No. 115 provides for Capital Stock consisting of
5,000,000 shares without nominal or par value. Your Committee recommends
that for taxing purposes under Standing Order 93(3), each share be deemed
to be worth $11.00.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

L. O. BREITHAUPT,
Chairman.




MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Monpay, March 19, 1951.

The Standing Committee on Railways, Canals and Telegraph Lines met at
ten thirty o’clock a.m. this day. Mr. L. O. Breithaupt, Chairman, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Applewhaite, Carter, Dewar, Fulton, Gillis,
Harrison, Hatfield, Herridge, Lennard, Macdonald (Edmonton East), Mac-
Naught, Melvor, Murray (Cariboo), Noseworthy, Riley, Robinson, Rooney,

_Stuart (Charlotte), Weaver, Whiteside, Whitman.

In attendance: Mr. A. Laing, M.P.; Mr. S. M. Blair, Parliamentary Agent;
MR, L Bridges, Director, Bechtel Corporation, San Francisco, California,
USA.; Mr. D. L. Roberts, Vice-President, Bechtel International Corporation,
San Francisco, California, U.S.A.; Mr. G. 8. Colley, Executive Vice-President,
International Bechtel Inc., Saudi Arabia; Mr. I. G. Wahn, Barrister, Toronto,
gnfgario; Mr. J. Fortier, Legal Adviser, Department of Transport, Ottawa,

ntario.

The Committee commenced consideration of Bill No. 115 (Letter M-1 of
the Senate), intituled: “An Act to incorporate Trans Mountain Oil Pipe Line
ompany”’.

Mr. Laing, M.P., sponsor of the Bill, addressed the Committee and intro-
duced Mr. S. M. Blair, Parliamentary Agent for the Petitioners.

Mr. Blair was called, explained the purposes of the Bill and was questioned.

Messrs. Bridges and Roberts were called, heard and questioned regarding

€ project contemplated in the Bill; its practicability from a construction and

engineering point of view; potential markets in the area to be served, and
€ proposed methods of financing the undertaking.

The Preamble and Clauses 1 and 2 were severally considered and adopted.

On Clause 3:
On motion of My. Meclvor:—

. Resolved,—That, for the purpose of levying a charge on the ecapital stock,
Which will have no par value, the Committee recommends that each share be
deemed to be worth eleven dollars ($11.00).

Clauses 3, 4 and 5 were severally considered and adopted.

On Clause 6:
Mr. Fulton moved:

P

That paragraph (a) of Clause 6 of this Bill be amended by inserting after

the' words pipe lines in the 9th line thereof the following: “provided that the

main pipe line or lines for the transmission or transportation of oil, shall be *

located entirely within Canada”.

After discussion, and the question having been put, the said motion was
agreed to, : '

83



Piehs — AT ¥ T R T T ot
AR S L e R T S . - -
= S

STANDING COMMITTEE

Clause 6 as amended, Clauses 7 to 11 inclusive a.nd the Title were severally :

considered and adopted.
The Bill, as amended, was adopted and the Chairman ordered to report the

same to the House.
At 12.05 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

R.J. GRATRIX,
Clerk of the Committee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or ComMoONs,
Marcu 19, 1951.

The Standing Committee on Railways, Canals and Telegraphs met this
day at 10.30 a.m. The Chairman, Mr. L. O. Breithaupt, presided.

The Cmamrman: Members of the committee, will you please be seated
0 that we may count you. We need a quorum. Gentlemen, we now have a
quorum. I am sorry that we are starting a little bit late, but it could not be
helped. We shall proceed with Bill M-1, that is, Bill 115 which was referred
to this committee.

The preamble to the bill reads as follows:

Whereas the persons hereinafter named have by their petition
prayed that it be enacted as hereinafter set forth, and it is expedient
to grant the prayer of the petition: Therefore His Majesty, by and with
the advice and consent of the Senate and House of Commons of Canada,
enacts as follows:—

Mr. Laing introduced this bill to the House. Is it your wish that he appear
before us here to explain the bill further?

Agreed.

Mr. Laing, would you please come forward?
Mr. LaiNg: Mr. Chairman and gentlemen of the committee: I intend to
do nothing more this morning than to introduce to you the parliamentary agent,
r. 8. M. Blair, who has brought along with him a number of specialists in
nance, legal affairs and engineering. I would like to say that Mr. Blair is
the gentleman who, a very short time ago, made a report for the Alberta
Overnment on the tar sands of Alberta. That report attracted a great deal
of attention not only in Canada but in other countries. With him today are
IR, 1. Bridges, who will deal with the question of finance; Mr. Tan Grant
ahn of Toronto, who will deal with legal matters; and two engineers in the
Persons of Mr. D. L. Roberts, who will deal specifically with engineering
Problems of this particular pipe line, and Mr. G. S. Colley, an engineer, who,
think, two or three weeks ago was in Iran. Mr. Blair will deal with the
general situation in regard to the pipe line as a whole. I thank you and your
mMemhers for the consideration you have given us today and if I may, I would
Dow ask Mr. Blair to come forward. Thank you.
The Cmamrman: Is it your wish that Mr. Blair be heard?

Agreed.

Mr. Blair, will you please come forward?

Mr. Sydney Martin Blair, called:

The Cramrman: Are you prepared to give us an outline of this bill and of
the general aspects of the whole situation? If so, you may procee(_i after which
€ members of the committee might like to ask you some questions.

Mr. Lexnagrp: After Mr. Blair has finished?
85
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The CaamrMan: Yes. We shall first hear Mr. Blair’s statement and then
ask him our questions. ;

The Wrrness: Mr. Chairman and gentlemen; I shall just give you a
very quick outline of our proposal. We have with us here today a group of
gentlemen who have already been mentioned, who are thoroughly familiar
with the different subjects in connection with this development, and of whom
you might like to ask questions.

—  Qur proposal iz to build the Trans Mountain Oil Pipe Line, which Mr.
r Laing has so thoroughly described for you previously. It is a line running
from Edmonton to Vancouver via the Yellowhead Pass. It is an all Cana-
, dian line, of 24 inches in diameter, and approximately 715 miles in length.

§ ‘/ The line will have an ultimate capacity of the order of 200,000 barrels
a day, and the immediate capacity will be approximately 75,000 barrels a day.

If the proposal meets with your agreement and the different regulations

are completed at a sufficiently early date, it is proposed to commence the =
_line in July of this vear and to complete it by the 31st of December, 1952.

In going over this subject thoroughly, there will be questions of route,
engineering, costing, financing and so on as to which you will doubtless want
more information. So I might say that we shall be happy to do our best to
answer such questions that may be put to us.

The gentlemen who are here today are Mr. R. L. Bridges, who is a Director
of the Bechtel Corporation. Mr. Bridges will be pleased to answer any ques-
tions on financing. Mr. D. L. Roberts, who is a Viee-President of Bechtel
; International Corporation. Mr. Roberts will be happy to answer any questions

on engineering, route, or costing. Mr. G. 8. Colley, a Vice-President of Inter- =

national Bechtel. I might say that Mr. Colley has just returned from the
» Middle East where he has been the executive in charge of all the work out |
i there. He, of course, has had varied experience in pipe line work in general
i and he is present here today to answer any general pipe line questions that you
might care to ask him, and that might assist you. And Mr. I. G. Wahn, who
is a solicitor from Toronto. Mr. Wahn will be able to answer any legal questions.

If there are any miscellaneous questions respecting oil operations in
: Alberta, as to which I can be of assistance to you, I would be very happy to |
& attempt to answer them. = 4

o The CHAIRMAN: Thank you very much, Mr. Blair. Now, before Mr. Blair
i retires and before we call on the other witnesses who are present, are there
any questions you would like to ask on the general topic of the bill?

Mr. AepLewHAITE: Might I ask, Mr. Chairman, why there is such a differ-
1 ence between the estimated initial capacity and the ultimate expected capacity.
| Is that due to marketing or what?

The Wirness: Actually it is due to the initial demand and the engineering
arrangements that are made for that line. When it first goes into operation it

would be obtained by the addition of further pumping stations on the line as |
the market requirements and production go up. 3
Mr. AppLEwHAITE: Both production and quantity?
The WrirNess: Yes, both production and quantity.
Mr. Herrmoce: Might I.ask the witness a question, Mr. Chairman?
i The CHAIRMAN: Surely. :
' Mr. HerrincE: When we were discussing the Trans-Canada Pipe Line Com-
pany, the company in question agreed to an amendment of section 6, that it be
provided for and stipulated that the main pipe line of the company would be

will have pumping stations designed to handle the immediate requirements,
having regard to the estimated production from Alberta. The ultimate capacity
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entirely within Canada. Might I ask the witness if he would be willing, when

. We come to section 6 of this bill, to have a similar amendment inserted at the

appropriate place in this bill?
The Wrrness: We would welcome such an amendment, Mr. Chairman.
The CrarMAN: Are there any other questions?

By Mr. Fulton.:

Q. Might I ask the witness whether he can tell us with what oil companies
this particular company has any connection or affiliation? We have been told in
the House that the Bechtel Corporation is behind the building of the line itself.
I see the name of Stephen Davison Bechtel in section 1 of the bill. Could the
Witness tell us what oil company affiliations or connections exist with the present
company ?—A. The Bechtel Corporation has discussed the building of the line
with a group of major companies, but no company has been asked formally to
Sign any agreement and it is not proposed to ask them to do so until the legisla-
tion which is now in the House is enacted. But the intention would be that there
would be agreements with these companies which would be particularly affected
bY_ this operation. I do not feel I can go much further than that. It is simply

eing developed for the oil situation there as it exists at the present time and
the companies that would be affected. However, I might add that the line would

€ a common carrier for any company which wished to ship through the line.

Q. As to financing and construction, is it contemplated that the Bechtel
Corporation would actually carry out those arrangements itself, or is it con-
templated to have oil companies assist?—A. As to the details of financing, I think

r. Bridges would be happy to deal with them. But the intention is that the

nancing would be carried out by Bechtels, who naturally would be supported

¥ any financing in-the way of agreement they might have with other companies
as to through-put.

Q. You say that you think Mr. Bridges will be in a position to answer my
Question?—A. Yes, I think Mr. Bridges will be able to answer your question.

Mr. Fuuron: Mr. Chairman, I notice that the witness is standing.

. The Cuarmax: Yes, but I gave him permission to sit down before you came
. And I might say that before you came in Mr. Laing told us that Mr. Blair
would deal with the general aspects of the problem, because we have other wit-
nesses here who will deal with financing, engineering, and so on.

By Mr. Murray:

Q. Mr. Chairman, does not defence have a great deal to do with the need of
an oil line to the Pacific?—A. Yes.

Q. Would you follow the Canadian National main line to tide water?
A. The line goes through the Yellowhead Pass, and for a considerable distance
In the same general route, it follows the Canadian National. But the latter part
to“’{lrds the west is not on the Canadian National route. However, Mr. Roberts,
I think, will be happy to deal with the details of the route,

Q. It will be necessary to service those industries along the coast, let us say,
at Prince Rupert and at Vancouver with oil depots and loading stations?—A. Yes.

t would lead to the establishment of bulk terminals at Vancouver, at which
Pomt the oil would be under pressure for delivery to any refinery.

Q. Might I ask if the line goes to Prince George?—A. No. It would have to
be a coastal shipment up there.

Q. But you go through the Yellowhead Pass?—A. Yes.

Pri Q. Do you not think that the shortest route to Vancouver would be through
tnee George and then down the Fraser River?
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The CuairMaN: I wonder if we should not postpone that question for the
engineer, subject to your consent?

Mr. Murray: Very well, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Macponarp: Mr. Chairman, I am very glad to see this company has its
head office in the city of Edmonton, which is really the oil centre of Canada.
And T am happy to see that they have chosen their route through the Yellowhead
Pass. The economics of the Yellowhead route are well known to everyone in the
west, and I am going to have an opportunity, I hope, to develop or to ascertain the
fact that this route is definitely going through the Yellowhead Pass, the Blue
River road, and Valemount.

There is another little point I would like to ask about, and I am sure that
Mr. Blair can answer. Some time ago we had a firm in Edmonton, Bechtel, Price,
Callahan, and I would like to know if this is the same Mr. Bechtel who was
associated with that firm?—A. The same Mr. Bechtel.

Q. I can say for the benefit of the members of the committee that the firm
was held in the highest regard in the city of Edmonton. They had very excel- =
lent people with them. The job they had to do at that time was completed with
good results, and I am quite sure that the people of Edmonton would welcome |
him back with open arms.

Mr. AppLEwHAITE: May I ask one question?
The CrAIRMAN: Yes,

Mr. AppLEwHArre: Will this trans-mountain company be in the business of
buying and selling oil, or just earrying oil for other people?

The WrrNess: Its primary purpose is to carry oil.

By Mr. Robinson:

Q. I would just like to follow up the few questions asked by Mr. Fulton.
As T understand your answers to Mr. Fulton’s questions, you have no definite
commitments with any oil companies at the present time?—A. May I put it this
way: no signed commitments.

Q. No signed commitments, or signed contracts?—A. No.

Q. But you have approached a number of oil companies in that con-
nection?—A. That is right.

Q. Would there be any objection to stating what companies you have
approached?—A. May I answer that this way, sir? Through-put agreements
are really part of the financing and I think it would be more appropriate to get
that as part of Mr. Bridges’ over-all story.

Q. That will be given to us later?—A. Yes, I am not avoiding the issue
but it would work in most efficiently at that point, if you are agreeable.

Q. Following up the question Mr. Herridge asked, I understand that you
contemplate the line will run from central Alberta to Vancouver, is that
correct?—A. That is correct. A

Q. And I understand your present intention is that the line shall end at
Vancouver?—A. That is correct. :

Q. Are you at the present time considering any plans for an extension
of the line from Vancouver to Portland or Seattle, or other places?—A. No,
it is our intention to go to the terminal at Vancouver.

Q. You have no plans and you have not considered taking the line
further south in the States?—A. No, our present plans are entirely with respect
to the bulk terminal at Vancouver—the other arrangements being in the
future.

Q. Will you find the necessary refinery capacity at Vancouver?—A. That,
you appreciate, will be the responsibility or the undertaking of the different
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I‘e_ﬁning'companies. There will undoubtedly be refinery expansion concurrent
Wlth‘ pipe